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VISION 

ARMSCOR’s vision is to be a truly South African organisation that is valued locally and 
globally as a centre of technical excellence for defence acquisition and support services.

MISSION 

ARMSCOR’s mission is to meet the acquisition, maintenance and disposal needs of the 
South African Department of Defence and other clients in terms of defence materiel, related 
products and services. ARMSCOR maintains strategic capabilities and technologies and 
promotes the local defence-related industry.

VALUES 

ARMSCOR believes that its values constitute the building blocks of the manner in which 
it conducts its business. We believe in the highest standards and are committed to equal 
opportunities, transparency and accountability.

We pledge commitment to the following values: 

•	 Leading	by	example

•	 Results	driven

•	 Customer	focus

•	 Care	and	respect	for	others

•	 Excellence

•	 Teamwork	and	integrity.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Ltd (Armscor) is a South African state-owned entity mandated by the Armaments 
Development and Production Act, 1968 (Act 57 of 1968), and continues its existence through the Armaments Corporation of South 
Africa, Limited (Ltd) Act, 2003 (Act 51 of 2003).The Minister of Defence and Military Veterans is the executive authority responsible 
for Armscor. 

THE BOARD

Armscor is a statutory body. The management and control resided during the period under review with the Board of Directors 
under the leadership of the Chairman, Dr. PS Molefe and Deputy Chairman, Ms. R. Msiza. To execute its responsibilities and 
accountability effectively, the Board has two committees, namely the Audit and Risk Committee and the Human Resources 
Committee. These committees were chaired by Mr. EL Borole and Mr. SA Msibi respectively. 

ARMSCOR’S REPORTING STRUCTURE TO THE MINISTRY OF 
DEFENCE AND MILITARY VETERANS

Minister of Defence and
Military Veterans

Chairman of ARMSCOR

ARMSCOR
Board of Directors

Armaments Corporation
of South Africa

(ARMSCOR)
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THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The	main	function	of	the	Chief	Executive	Officer	is	the	overall	management	of	the	organisation.	The	responsibilities	include,	but	
are not limited to providing strategic direction and leadership, formulating policies, directing the operations of the organizations 
and developing strategic plans to achieve organisation’s mission and objectives.  In undertaking these responsibilities, the CEO 
is supported by an executive management structure called the Management Board. All departments are represented at this level. 
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M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D

Mr S Mkwanazi: Acting Chief Executive 
Officer

Mr TT Goduka
GM:Dockyard

Mr K Hanafey
Acting GM: Armscor Business (Pty) Ltd

Mr JG Grobler
 GM: Finance and Infrastructure

Ms NRM Borotho
GM: Logistics & Materiel Support 

Mr MM Matibe
Acting GM: Quality & IT

Mr  D Griesel
Acting GM: Acqusition

Mr S Mbada
GM: Human Resources
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1. ACQUISITION

In the execution of its functions, Armscor maintains capabilities 
and	technologies	that	are	required	to	fulfil	its	mandate,	such	as	
appropriate programme management systems, the Defence 
Industrial Participation (DIP) programme, the management of 
technology projects and strategic facilities.

Armscor acquires defence materiel for the Department of 
Defence and for any organ of State that may require such 
services, including the South African Police Service (SAPS). 

The acquisition role of Armscor pertains to all the actions that 
need to be taken to satisfy the need for materiel, facilities 
or services intended for client use or in support of client 
requirements. These actions include: 

•	 long-term	 operational	 research	 and	 requirement	
planning

•	 establishment	and	development	of	technology

•	 design	 and	 development	 of	 products	 and	 systems	
aimed at industrialisation, and manufacturing of 
mature products and systems that fully meet the 
stated user requirements. 

Armscor remains focused on and committed to its role of 
acquiring	 equipment	 economically,	 efficiently	 and	 cost-
effectively.

Armscor’s acquisition role can be broadly divided into four 
categories, namely: 

•	 Technology	Acquisition

•	 Capital	Equipment	Acquisition	

•	 Systems	Support	Acquisition	

•	 Procurement	

1.1 Technology acquisition 

Technology acquisition management involves the contracting 
for and development of technology in support of future 
acquisition projects. It involves activities such as translating 
mission and related needs into appropriate technical 
specifications	and	the	provisioning	of	operationally	effective,	
suitable, survivable and supportable products and systems.

1.2 Procurement 

Procurement management entails the procurement of 
existing commercial or military off-the-shelf equipment.

1.3 Systems support acquisition 

Systems support acquisition management entails the support 
provided to Armscor’s clients during the operating phase 
of products and systems and includes maintenance and 
provision of logistic support for such products and systems.  
With the acquisition phase of most Defence Strategic 
Packages nearing the end and the bulk of these systems 
now entering the operating phase, the relative extent of effort 
expended on systems support activities is increasing rapidly. 

1.4 Capital equipment acquisition 

Capital equipment acquisition represents the bulk of Armscor’s 
acquisition function and involves all the activities from the 
translation of mission and related needs into appropriate 
technical	 specifications,	 to	 the	 provision	 of	 operationally	
effective, suitable survivable and supportable products and 
systems in accordance with the stated requirements of 
Armscor’s clients.

2.  ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES (PTY)  
 LTD - ADI 

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Limited is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Armscor and is mandated to manage, support 
and maintain strategic facilities and essential defence 
industrial capabilities, resources and technologies as 
identified	by	the	Department	of	Defence.	

These strategic facilities are structured into two groups; 
namely the Defence Science and Technology Institutes, 
which houses the research and development facilities, and 
the Test and Evaluation Centre, which is responsible for 
rendering comprehensive testing and evaluation services in 
both the military and civilian environments
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3. DOCKYARD

Armscor manages and operates the Naval Dockyard as 
the South African Navy’s (SAN) third-line maintenance and 
refitting	authority.	The Dockyard focuses on maintaining the 
required capabilities to support the nation’s submarines, 
ships and shore-based support facilities. It executes activities 
such as planned preventative maintenance, corrective 
maintenance, reconstruction and repairs, as well as upgrades 
to and modernisation of the South African Navy’s vessels 
(ships and submarines).

4. SUPPORT FUNCTIONS 

4.1 Human Resources 

The Human Resources Department provides leadership 
in the development, implementation and administration of 
sound human resource policies, procedures and programmes 
that support Armscor’s statutory mandate. Its goal is to 
be responsive to the changing needs of its stakeholders,  
including employees, management, employee organisations 
and other defence -  related entities while advancing the 
strategic goals and interest of Armscor. 

4.2 Defence Support 

Armscor is responsible for providing an integrated defence 
industry support function, which entails the facilitation of 
South African Defence Industries (SADI) at international 
defence exhibitions and the management of requests for the 
utilization of South African National Defence Force (SANDF) 
equipment, personnel and facilities for marketing of South 
African defence industry (SADI) products and services/
capabilities. 

Defence Support is also responsible for defence matériel 
disposal, eNaTIS registration of military vehicles destined 
for	 disposal,	 asset	 management,	 data	 and	 configuration	
management as well as provision of freight and travel 
logistics.  

4.3 Quality and Information Technology 

The Quality and Information Technology Department 
provides strategic guidance and services to Armscor and 
other	clients	in	the	following	fields	of	expertise:

•	 Quality	management	

•	 Quality	engineering

•	 Information	technology	(IT)	

•	 Arms	control

•	 Project	security

•	 Broad	-	based	black	economic	empowerment		 	
(BBBEE) 

•	 Safety,	health	and	environment	(SHE)	

4.4 Finance and Infrastructure

The core functions of the Finance and Infrastructure 
Department	are	to	provide	strategic	and	day-to-day	financial	
services in support of the execution of the mandate and to 
meet	external	and	internal	financial	reporting	requirements.	In	
addition, the Department is responsible for the maintenance 
of the infrastructure and operational procurement activities 
required by the organisation.
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This is my last Annual Report as the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors of the Armament’s Corporation of South Africa 
Limited (Armscor) presented on behalf of the Board as a 
collective. This is an act not in the ritualistic observance of 
a tradition, but a discharge of the imperative of the cardinal 
principle of accountability to the South African public for the 
use of their resources entrusted to Armscor. 

I have completed the two consecutive terms of service 
permitted by the legislation. The last six years provided 
me with a rare opportunity and the privilege of serving the 
Ministry of Defence and Military Veterans, the Department 
of Defence and our country, by guiding the Armscor Board 
towards	the	fulfilment	of	its	legislative	mandate.	

I am grateful to  the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans, 
Dr.	Lindiwe	Sisulu,	for	her	encouragement	and	her	confidence	
in me to lead this organisation. The biggest challenge was to 
execute this mandate in a manner that did not implicate a 
misplacement	 of	 the	 trust	 and	 confidence	 that	 the	Minister	
had in me and the Board. I was just a small cog in the big 
grinding wheel of Armscor as well as in the Department of 
Defence and could only play that part permitted by my ability.

My successor will naturally be expected to take the 
organisation	to	a	higher	level	of	efficiency	and	effectiveness.	
I truly believe that the time that I have spent at Armscor has 
been	fulfilling	and	that	it	has	provided	me	with	the	opportunity	
to gain valuable experience in the space of defence 
acquisition.

1. MANDATE OF ARMSCOR

The	mandate	of	Armscor,	flowing	from	the	Armscor	Act	(51	of	
2003, as amended) formed the basis for all the actions and 
decisions taken by the Board over the preceding six years of 
my tenure. 

This mandate includes the acquisition and maintenance of 
defence materiel, defence - related research and evaluation, 
disposal needs of the Department of Defence, goods and 
services required by other government approved clients 
such as the South African Police Service and Correctional 
Services.  Armscor has consistently delivered on this mandate 
in	an	efficient	and	cost-effective	manner.	

Armscor adheres to the principles of good corporate 
governance enshrined in the Public Finance Management 
Act 1 of 1999 as amended (PFMA). The observance of these 
principles ensured that Armscor maintained the integrity of its 
operations,	thus	gaining	credibility	from	and	confidence	of	its	
important stakeholders. 

Good	 corporate	 governance	 and	 stakeholder	 confidence	
are fundamental elements in determining the nature of the 
relationship between Armscor, its shareholder represented 
by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans, the defence 
industry and the South African public as a whole.  

C H A I R M A N ’ S 
R E P O R T

Dr PS Molefe
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2.  HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The mandate given to Armscor by the South African 
government to acquire systems and defence capabilities on 
behalf of the Department of Defence as part of the Strategic 
Defence Package (SDPs) was accomplished over the last 
few years.

The	SDPs	formed	a	significant	part	of	Armscor’s	acquisition	
portfolio. It included the acquisition of four frigates, three 
submarines and four maritime helicopters, twenty- four Hawk 
lead–in	fighter	trainer	aircraft	and	thirty	light	utility	helicopters.		
The SDPs were well managed, a sentiment echoed by many 
key stakeholders - both in and outside the defence industry. 
These systems are now in use by the South African Navy 
(SAN) and the South African Air Force (SAAF) and are 
achieving excellent results as was witnessed when they were 
deployed for surveillance work during the 2010 Soccer World 
Cup event and in the response by the South African Navy to 
the threat posed by sea pirates off the coast of Somalia. 

With this mammoth acquisition work behind it, Armscor 
focused on the support, maintenance and repair of these 
systems. In the period ahead, the Landward Systems will 
be the major focus for Armscor with a view to equipping the 
South African Army with land - based equipment. 

It is pleasing to note that other programmes such as the 
development of the short-range air-to-air missiles are 
progressing exceptionally well, as is the case with the 
A-Darter missile, which is a jointly funded programme with 
the Brazilian Air Force. 

Human capital remains a key strategic asset for Armscor 
due to the skill intensive nature of its work. During my tenure 
as Chairman, the Board encouraged the organisation to 
transform itself in accordance with the employment equity 
requirements,	 so	 as	 to	 reflect	 the	 demographics	 of	 the	
country. These efforts are gradually paying off as part of the 
process of the revitalisation of the organisation. 

While	 significant	 progress	 has	 been	 made	 on	 this	 front,	
the organization is yet to meet the challenges of gender 
balance,  retention of skills and talent in order to remain 
at the cutting edge of technology. In particular, Armscor 
needs to give attention to transformation of the Institute of 
Maritime Technology(IMT) and Information Technology(IT). 

It is imperative for the organization to design and pursue 
strategies that enable it to meet the afore –said challenges. 
The Board and the new CEO must pay particular attention to 
these matters.

Stakeholder engagement was vital for Armscor’s sustainability 
in the year under review. It formed a critical element in 
the organisation’s dialogue and communication with key 
stakeholders.	The	 past	 financial	 year,	 afforded	Armscor	 an	
opportunity to forge close and cordial working relationships 
with our principals and key stakeholders in the Department 
of Defence. This relationship paved the way for Armscor to 
establish and maintain positive relationships with other key 
stakeholders.

3.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The organisation is stable and runs effectively under the 
leadership of the Acting CEO, Mr. Sipho Mkwanazi. The 
process	 of	 appointing	 the	 Chief	 Executive	 Officer	 was	
initiated.	As	the	term	of	office	of	the	Board	was	about	to	end,	
the actual appointment process was left to the incoming 
Board	to	finalise.	The	process	is	receiving	due	attention	from	
the Ministry of Defence and Military Veterans. It is expected 
that the appointment will be effected as a matter of urgency.

4.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I am immensely grateful to the Hon. Minister of Defence 
and Military Veterans, Dr. Lindiwe Sisulu, for her unstinting 
support and well considered counsel during my tenure as 
Chairman. It has been a privilege to serve her and the people 
of South Africa. We noted with appreciation the advice and 
support of the Deputy Minister Thabang Makwetla and of the 
Secretary for Defence, Ms Mpumi Mpofu.

I am indebted to the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on 
Defence and Military Veterans for its abiding guidance and 
contribution	to	the	building	of	a	resilient,	efficient	and	effective	
defence capability in South Africa. Its  robust oversight 
role expressed in a meticulous attention to detail  is truly 
appreciated. 
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A special thank you goes to the members of the Board of 
Directors for their counsel and support. The professionalism 
that the Board displayed in the discharge of its responsibilities 
continues to make Armscor a centre of technical excellence 
for defence acquisition and support services. I also wish to 
extend a special word of thanks to my former colleague on 
the Board, Mr Roelf Meyer, whose two terms of service at 
Armscor were characterised by distinctive leadership.  

My unreserved appreciation goes to the Acting CEO, Mr. 
Sipho Mkwanazi for his commitment and diligence in leading 
this organisation that many aspire to work for. Also thanks 
to the staff complement for their level of professionalism, 
intellect as well as passion for innovation and a quest for 
excellence. 

Lastly, I wish to thank the aerospace, maritime and defence 
industry under the able leadership of the AMD for having 
been a valuable partner over the years.

A bright future continues to beckon and Armscor is ready to 
embrace it.

___________________

Dr. P.S. Molefe

CHAIRMAN
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Despite the challenging economic times, Armscor continued 
to make substantial progress in executing its mandate. 

In order to maintain its position as a truly South African 
organisation that is valued locally and globally, as well as to 
be the centre of technical excellence for defence acquisition 
and support services, Armscor had to keep evolving, while at 
the same time embracing and appreciating the constraints 
stemming from the defence environmental dynamics in the 
country, which impacted on Armscor’s operations. 

Despite this scenario, I am delighted to report that Armscor had 
a	good	performance	in	the	2010/11	financial	year,	fulfilling	our	
mandate of being an agency of the Department of Defence 
that can meet its main client’s needs and requirements in an 
efficient	and	cost-effective	manner.	

This year’s report will focus on the following areas: 

•	 strategic	focus;	

•	 highlights	and	challenges;	and

•	 review	of	the	previous	financial	year.

STRATEGIC FOCUS 

During the period under review, most of the strategic goals 
were met in accordance with the strategic plan and in some 
cases even exceeded. 

1. Funding and growth

The period under review, required a concerted effort to ensure 
that the Armscor Group focused its available resources on 
rendering	an	efficient	and	effective	service	to	its	main	client.

To this extent, cost containment initiatives resulted in a 
positive net result being achieved. However, the Group 
remains	 under	 considerable	 financial	 pressure	 to	 obtain	
sufficient	sustainable	funding	to	address	equipment	renewal,	
rejuvenation and transformation matters. 

Progress was made with the development of the Armscor cost 
model, which will serve as a predictor of the future capacity 
and	 financial	 resources	 required	 to	 execute	 the	mandated	
tasks.

2. People and capabilities

Human capital is the most valuable asset held by 
Armscor and remains key in Armscor’s achievement of its 
organisational goals. The organisation strives to attract and 
retain competent and high-performing employees who live by 
the organisation’s values and ensures that the mandate of 
the	organisation	is	fulfilled.	

F O R E W O R D  B Y 
T H E  A C T I N G 

C H I E F 
E X E C U T I V E 

O F F I C E R Mr S Mkwanazi
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Human capital strategies were implemented - salient to 
the strategies were the implementation of the leadership 
development programme and the cultural audit exercise. The 
results of the cultural audit were used in formulating strategic 
programmes that will enhance people capabilities in the 
organisation. 

3. Broad-based black economic empowerment 
 (BBBEE)

Broad-based black economic empowerment is one of the 
strategic measures adopted by Armscor. This is to ensure 
that the implementation of the national transformation 
objectives is achieved and that the local defence industry is 
transformed. 

To this end, Armscor has implemented a BBBEE strategy and 
monitoring system, with the aim of improving management 
information on the transformation status of the industry 
and Armscor’s spending on those suppliers that are doing 
business with it. This intervention yielded positive results 
in the transformation of Armscor and the defence industry. 
However, despite these successes, Armscor recognises 
that the defence industry is still characterised by gender 
inequalities.

In the future, efforts will be put in place to ensure the active 
participation of black female-owned enterprises in Armscor 
programmes.

4. Local industry support

The local defence industry is vital to the execution of 
Armscor’s mandate. The sustainability of capabilities in the 
defence industry is critical for Armscor to be able to deliver 
the required services and equipment to the SANDF. Armscor 
has therefore developed strategies and policies to enhance 
and strengthen support for the local industry.

The highlight of Armscor’s industry activities during the 
past	 financial	 year	 was	 the	 organisation’s	 participation	 in	
organising – together with AMD, CAASA and the Department 
of Defence – the African Aerospace Defence (AAD) show in 
Cape Town in September 2010. This show was the largest 
ever and participation exceeded all expectations. Armscor 

was also responsible for coordinating the local industry’s 
participation in various international exhibitions, with a view 
of promoting the local defence industry.

5. Stakeholder relationships

The year under review afforded Armscor an opportunity 
to forge close and cordial working relationships with our 
principals and colleagues in the Department of Defence. 
This relationship paved the way for Armscor to establish and 
maintain positive relationships with other key stakeholders, 
such as the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Defence 
and Military Veterans, other Government departments, the 
defence industry and the public in general. 

Armscor will continue to ensure that it improves relationships 
with key stakeholders in order to enhance the organisation’s 
image and reputation. It will also continue to build goodwill 
and enhance it with its stakeholders through its Corporate 
Social Investment Programmes.

As a truly South African organisation, Armscor continued 
to build goodwill with its stakeholders through its corporate 
social investment programmes. This is because Armscor 
believes in nation building and in improving the quality of lives 
of our people – a duty and responsibility it embraced fully. To 
this end, Armscor has adopted Phelindaba Secondary School 
in Atteridgeville and offers learner enhancement programmes 
with the aim of assisting learners from this disadvantaged 
community to improve the school’s results in Mathematics, 
Science and English.

Armscor is proud to announce that the intervention has paid 
off, with the school obtaining an 88, 6% pass rate in the 2010 
academic year – up from the 38% pass rate in 2009. 

6.	 Operational	efficiencies

Armscor cannot afford to continue business as usual. As a 
result, it had put important steps in place towards continuous 
improvement processes and systems in order to ensure 
that it fully meets the requirements of the Department of 
Defence(DOD), thus strengthening its commitment to a 
customer-focused culture.
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Once	 again	 Armscor	 obtained	 an	 unqualified	 audit	 from	
the Auditor-General. This was as a result of Armscor’s 
commitment to best management practices, good governance 
and continuous improvements.

HIGHLIGHTS AND CHALLENGES

Progress with the Strategic Defence Packages (SDPs)

In December 1999, Armscor concluded contracts with 
six international suppliers for the acquisition of frigates, 
submarines,	 and	 lead-in	 fighter	 trainer	 aircraft,	 advanced	
light	fighter	aircraft,	light	utility	helicopters	and	maritime	patrol	
helicopters. 

Except	 for	 the	 advanced	 light	 fighter	 aircraft	 (Gripen),	 all	
the product systems acquired under the SDP programmes 
have been delivered to the SANDF and have been taken into 
operational use. Several of the product systems acquired 
under the SDP programme were successfully deployed by 
the SANDF during the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup event. 

At the end of the reporting period, all nine dual-seat Gripen 
aircraft	and	the	first	six	single-seat	aircraft	had	been	delivered	
to the SAAF. Eleven aircraft, together with their support 
systems, were utilised by the SAAF during the 2010 FIFA 
Soccer World Cup.

Progress on other cardinal acquisition programmes

In	 the	 period	 under	 review,	 the	 first	 locally	 implemented	
upgrade of the Pilatus Astra trainer aircraft was handed over 
to the SAAF. 

The	technical	challenges	that	delayed	the	first	phase	
of the ground-based air defence system for a number 
of years were resolved. Indications are that the system 
will be ready for delivery to the South African Army Air 
Defence	Formation	early	in	the	next	financial	year.	

The development of the upgrade of the Rooivalk 
combat support helicopter to the deployment baseline 
was	 finalised	 during	 the	 past	 year.	 The	 first	 five	
aircraft	was	upgraded	to	final	status	for	delivery	to	the	
SAAF. This upgrade concludes the development of 
the Rooivalk helicopter.

The development of the short-range air-to-air missile, 
which is a jointly funded programme with the Brazilian 
Air Force, has continued to show good progress. This 
project has served to further strengthen ties with the 
Brazilian Air Force and has paved the way for possible 
future jointly funded programmes.

The new short-range missile was successfully 
launched from a South African Gripen aircraft and 
a	number	of	 successful	 flight	 tests	were	 concluded,	
which served to keep the programme on track. 

ARMSCOR Defence Institutes (PTY) Limited - ADI

Through its accredited and state of the art facilities 
in the country and in the world, Armscor Defence 
Institutes (ADI) continues to provide defence operational 
research as well as test and evaluation services to the 
Department of Defence and to ancillary industries. 

Initiatives are underway to better position ADI as 
strategic facilities which will serve the defence and 
national interests. The development of skills and 
capabilities within these facilities remains a high 
priority, while the successes achieved on the projects 
of ADI are highly regarded by the client base.

Simon’s Town Naval Dockyard

The	2010/11	financial	year	was	the	third	year	that	the	
Dockyard has been under Armscor management. The 
year under review commenced with the successful 
completion of maintenance work on various South 
African Navy vessels in time for the 2010 Soccer 
World Cup.

The East Dockyard centenary celebrations on 3 
November 2010, which commemorated 33 souls of 
all nationalities and race who perished during the 
construction was another highlight.

Whilst the Dockyard had registered many successes in 
its core functions, it however experienced challenges 
resulting	 from	 insufficient	 capacity	 and	 capability	 to	
execute	 its	 mandate.	 The	 challenge	 of	 insufficient	
funding of the Dockyard not only precludes the critical 
renewal and expansion of ageing infrastructure, 
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but has also resulted in the loss of critical skills and 
knowledge in critical areas.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank the Minister of Defence and Military 
Veterans, the Honourable Dr. Lindiwe Sisulu, and her 
deputy, Mr Thabang Makwetla, for their valuable support 
and guidance to Armscor. The leadership support has 
made the overall performance of Armscor and the effective 
fulfilment	 of	 its	mandate	 possible.	 I	 also	 thank	 the	 officials	
of the Department of Defence and Military Veterans who 
were available and willing at all times to assist in operational 
matters. 

I am thankful to the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee 
on Defence and Military Veterans for its continued and 
determined contribution to the building of a resilient, 
efficient	and	effective	defence	environment	 in	South	Africa.	
The Committee’s guidance and robust oversight role are 
appreciated. 

A special thank you goes to the members of the Board 
of Directors for their leadership. They executed their 
responsibilities with diligence and loyalty and have contributed 
immensely in bringing this organisation to the level it is today.

I wish to extend a special recognition to the outgoing Board 
Chairman, Dr. Popo Molefe, and the outgoing Board member, 
Mr Roelf Meyer, who demonstrated passion and long service 
to	 Armscor.	 They	 both	 served	 two	 terms,	 with	 significant	
accomplishments in creating new ways of thinking and 
excellent leadership. I thank them immensely for their service 
to the country by serving on the Armscor Board of Directors.  

The Armscor Management Board and all employees have 
been indispensable human capital. I wish to express my 
appreciation to the management and staff – it is through their 
efforts	that	Armscor	continues	to	stand	firm	as	an	organisation	
of exceptional calibre. Their dedication has ensured that 
Armscor remained at the cutting edge of service delivery and 
efficiency	 and	 that	 it	 remained	 a	 reservoir	 of	 scientific	 and	
engineering excellence. I thank them immensely, for without 
their contributions the successes recorded during the year 
under review would not have been realised. 

I thank the Unions who continued to engage with Management 
in a constructive manner. 

___________________________

Mr. Sipho Mkwanazi 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 



16
ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The	year	under	review	saw	significant	progress	being	made	
with all the acquisition programmes, despite the declining 
defence budget and limited human resources.

1. ACQUISITION 

A	significant	 portion	of	 the	project	management	 function	 in	
Armscor is centred on the acquisition of complex systems.

Armscor’s acquisition involvement, traditionally starts with 
the receipt of approved user requirement from its client. From 
there, a formalised process of risk reduction is followed, 
which eventually leads to the contracting of suitable suppliers 
to	 develop	 and	manufacture	 the	 fully	 specified	 products	 or	
product systems. 

A formalised source - selection process, entailing the 
development and application of value systems, is followed to 
identify preferred suppliers that would provide the best value 
for	money	solutions	for	specific	user	requirements.	

In	 cases	where	no	existing	products	 can	meet	 the	 specific	
user requirements, selected suppliers are contracted to 
develop the required product systems and deliver successive 
development models. These development models range 
from experimental development models, advanced 
development models and engineering development models 
to pre-production models. After successful evaluation and 
qualification	of	the	designs	and	related	production	processes,	
contracts are established and managed for the required 
number of products and product systems.  

The proper management of acquisition projects demands 
the	 management	 of	 many	 diverse	 technical,	 financial	 and	
other disciplines, such as systems and logistics engineering, 
resource management, contracting, quality assurance and 
design assurance. At the core of all acquisition projects are 
integrated project teams that consist of members of Armscor 
and the Department of Defence with the responsibility of 
properly and adequately meeting all the project management 
requirements of acquisition projects. Such integrated project 
teams are led by Armscor project managers and, depending 
on the extent and complexity of the project, various domain 
specialists	 are	 allocated	 to	 the	 teams	 to	 perform	 specific	
roles.

In order to properly execute their professional project 
management responsibility as required by the Armscor Act, 
it	 is	essential	 that	 the	proficiency	 level	of	Armscor’s	project	
managers be maintained and continually updated – in all 
the	 required	 domains.	 To	 achieve	 this,	 specific	 in-house	
training courses and modules have been developed, which 
are	 focused	 specifically	 on	 the	 competencies	 required	 by	
personnel in the various sub-disciplines within the acquisition 
environment. During the past year, two-week long formal in-
house courses on acquisition and project management were 
presented to project managers. These mandatory courses 
served as refresher courses for experienced personnel as 
well as introductory courses for new personnel.

Armscor’s Acquisition Department is functionally structured 
with	 technical	 divisions	 focusing	 on	 specific	 technical	
disciplines. The technical divisions thus provide a home base 
for	 project	 managers	 specialising	 in	 the	 specific	 technical	
domains. In order to improve liaison and interaction with 
Armscor’s main client, divisions in the Acquisition Department 
have been grouped together to mirror the acquisition and 
procurement structures within the Department of Defence. 
These groupings, as far as possible, provide single points 
of entry to the respective acquisition and procurement 
directorates,	and	serve	to	provide	significant	improvement	in	
communication with the Department of Defence.  

The utilization of new technology in the design and 
development of equipment is important in optimising the 
cost-efficiency	 and	 effectiveness	 of	 new	 equipment.	 In	
order to ensure that the development of new equipment 
and capabilities for the SANDF is based on the utilization of 
suitable, modern and mature technology, Armscor and the 
Department of Defence identify and manage a number of 
technology development projects in local industry aimed at 
supporting	identified	future	system	development	projects.		

Armscor project managers, making use of their specialist 
knowledge in the various technological domains, have 
been successful in identifying the technological building 
blocks needed for the eventual implementation of planned 
development projects. The research into and development 
of	identified	critical	technologies	that	are	subsequently	used	
in the development of new products systems have, in the 
past, contributed greatly towards providing the SANDF with 
competitive advantages pertaining to the  performance of its 
weapon systems. 
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Involvement in the initiation of new technology development 
projects remains an important aspect of the responsibilities of 
Armscor’s project managers. In order to effectively execute 
this responsibility, it is imperative that the project managers 
remain	 technologically	 up	 to	 date	 in	 their	 specific	 areas	 of	
expertise. It is essential, therefore, that the project managers 
gain as much exposure as possible to new developments in 
the international arena. 

Although most of the product systems acquired under the 
Strategic Defence Package (SDP) projects have been 
delivered and are in operational use by both the South 
African Air Force and South African Navy, the activities 
required towards establishing the Operating Baseline for 
these	systems	still	 form	a	significant	part	of	 the	acquisition	
portfolio of Armscor. 

During the period under review, several of the Product 
Systems acquired under the SDP programmes were 
successfully deployed by both the South African Navy and 
South African Air Force during the 2010 FIFA Soccer World 
Cup event. The experience gained during these deployments 
has indicated that the platforms, especially the Gripen and 
Hawk aircraft of the SAAF, have displayed reliability and 
availability	figures	that	far	exceed	expectations.	

The	 first	 of	 the	 locally	 implemented	 upgrade	 of	 the	Pilatus	
Astra trainer aircraft was handed over to the South African 
Air Force in the year under review. The embodiment of the 
upgrade of further aircraft is progressing exceptionally well.

After many setbacks spanning a number of years, the 
challenges that plagued the development of phase 1 of 
the Ground Based Air Defence System were resolved. The 
system will be ready for delivery to the South African Army Air 
Defence	Formation	early	in	the	next	financial	year.	

The development of the upgrade of the Rooivalk Combat 
Support Helicopter to the deployment baseline which is the 
final	 functionality	 status	 required	 by	 the	 South	 African	 Air	
Force,	was	finalised.	In	the	same	period,	the	achievement	of	
the	Type	Certification	and	embodiment	of	 the	final	upgrade	
of	 the	 first	 five	 (5)	 aircraft	 was	 concluded.	 This	 upgrade	
concludes the development of the Rooivalk helicopter which 
spanned a period of close to 20 years. 

Good progress was recorded with the development of the 
Short Range Air-to-Air Missile, which is a jointly funded 

programme with the Brazilian Air Force, as well as the New 
Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle. 

A	 number	 of	 successful	 flight	 tests	 have	 been	 concluded	
with the Short Range Air-to-Air missile, including successful 
launches from the Gripen aircraft. The New Generation 
Infantry Combat Vehicle development programme achieved 
a major milestone with the establishment of the Product 
Baseline of the Section Variant.

1.1 ACQUISITION OBJECTIVES

In the year under review, a great deal of effort was focused 
on	 finalizing	 the	 detailed	 business	 information	 required	 for	
the establishment of an updated Service Level Agreement 
(SLA)	with	the	Department	of	Defence.		For	the	first	time,	the	
SLA will contain a Business Plan that details the cost of every 
activity executed in the organization. 

This was a complex task entailing allocation of every person 
and	 financial	 resource	 in	 the	 organisation	 to	 the	 provision	
of	 specific	 services	 to	 specific	 clients.	The	 information	had	
to be closely aligned to the organisational budget to ensure 
accurate costing of the services to clients. A tool which records 
the Budget and Workload allocation of the entire organisation 
was developed, successfully implemented and tested. The 
exercise was a steep learning curve for organisational 
management who had to analyse their business and make the 
relevant allocations of personnel and costs, but has resulted 
in a clearer organisational understanding of functional 
responsibilities and business breakdown throughout the 
organisation. 

A draft version of the updated Business Plan was completed 
and incorporated into the draft Service Level Agreement 
which is ready for distribution to the Department of Defence 
for	comments	before	finalization.	

The Acquisition Department Business and Capability Register  
which contains detailed and up - to - date information on every 
project being executed, as well as the resources utilized for 
each project and the capabilities of those resources, has 
become a useful and valuable management tool. 

Information from the Business Register has been integrated 
with the internal cost model. The cost model was completed 
to such an extent that the detailed cost of every acquisition 
activity has now become visible. 
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A	 first	 order	 predictor	 for	 acquisition	 manpower	 was	 also	
developed in order to predict the resources and associated 
cost of future programmes that will be executed. This 
predictor will be used for planning purposes and to provide 
visibility with respect to the resources and funding required to 
execute the total scope of acquisition activities on an annual 
basis. 

During the review period, effort was expended to implement 
a	system	 for	 identification,	 registration	and	management	of	
Intellectual Property on behalf of the Department of Defence. 
A practice has been developed to regulate and guide the 
registration and management of intellectual property (IP). The 
Acquisition Business Register is being updated to capture all 
the relevant information as determined by the new IP Policy 
of the Department of Defence. 

The updating of the Acquisition Policy and associated 
Practices is prioritised within the Acquisition Department. The 
Acquisition Policy was completely rewritten and reviewed. 
This is ready for submission to the Board of Directors for 
approval. This policy is fully aligned to the national legislation 
and the Department of Defence policy and serves as a 
basis	 for	 the	final	development	of	 internal	practices	 for	 the	
Acquisition Business. 

In continuation of this effort, a detailed mapping of both the 
Capital Acquisition and Contract Management processes 
was completed. This mapping has established the basis for 
the relevant practices that are to be developed. A Contract 
Management Practice is at an advanced stage to the point 
where key sections are ready for review. This practice 
which can be seen as the single most critical practice in 
the acquisition environment, is complex having more than 
four hundred individual activities during the contract life 
cycle. It addresses the highest risk area of endeavour in 
the organization and will be subjected to review across the 
organization.

With respect to Acquisition Capability Management, the 
established tools and systems have advanced and effort has 
been made to establish a career and personal growth model 
to be used as the basis for the development of resources 
within the department. This model addresses all aspects of 
personal competency, educational requirements, training 
and development and personnel mentoring as well as on the 

job training. The model is also aligned with the Policy and 
Practice, to ensure that the Acquisition Department have the 
right resources for the core business into the future.

1.2 ACQUISITION HIGHLIGHTS

1.2.1 MARITIME SYSTEMS

1.2.1.1 MEKO A-200 SAN Frigates and Maritime Patrol 

Helicopter

This programme entails the acquisition of four MEKO A-200 
SAN frigates from a consortium consisting of German, French 
and South African partners. All four Valour Class Meko A-200 
Frigates were handed over to the South African Navy and 
are being actively deployed in local and international waters.  

Since March 2007, project activities have to a large extent 
focused on the completion of the system integration and 
performance acceptance of the gun system (consisting of 
the 76mm Main Gun Weapon and the 35mm Dual-Purpose 
Gun).	Progress	in	this	respect	was	hampered	by	difficulties	
experienced with the coordinating of all the variables that 
needed to come together simultaneously, such as vessel 
availability, good weather conditions, specialized target 
availability, sub-contractor availability, etc. Due to these 
delays,	the	official	project	closure	date	was	extended	by	one	
year from March 2011 to March 2012.

Four Super Lynx 300 Maritime Patrol Helicopters were 
acquired from Agusta Westland in the UK. These helicopters 
are currently operated by 22 Squadron from Air Force Base 
Ysterplaat in support of the four frigates of the South African 
Navy, thus enhancing the capabilities of the frigates. 

At the end of the reporting period, there were only four 
functional items to be completed and accepted prior to project 
being	finally	concluded	and	handed	over	to	the	South	African	
Air Force. These items comprise the Electronic Support 
Mission System, Secure Communications, Data Link and IFF 
Mode SA.

During this period, the Maritime Patrol Helicopters were 
granted limited partial release to enable them to participate 
in numerous deployments such as “Operation Kgwele” 
in support of the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup event. The 
technical integration of both the Super Lynx and Oryx 
helicopters with the Frigates is virtually complete. 
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1.2.1.2 Class 209 Mod 1400 Submarines

Following the commissioning and delivery of the three 
submarines, the project’s emphasis shifted towards the 
implementation of a number of engineering changes in order 
to meet operational, safety and support related requirements 
which were omitted from the original contract due to budget 
restrictions	at	 the	 time.	The	 fulfillment	of	 these	engineering	
changes will take the project into 2012.

The	most	significant	of	these	engineering	changes	relate	to	
the	acquisition	of	submarine	specific	shore	facilities	located	
in Simon’s Town, including amongst others:

•	 The	 establishment	 of	 a	 combat	 suite	 engineering	 test	
facility, required for diagnostic maintenance and training 
purposes.  This is scheduled for completion by February 
2012, 

•	 The	development	of	a	periscope	simulator.		The	simulator	
has been completed and integrated into the Engineering 
Test Bed; 

•	 A	 submarine	 escape	 training	 facility	 which	 is	 nearly	
completed. Few  observations are currently being 
resolved.

1.2.2 AIRBORNE SYSTEMS 

1.2.2.1 Light Utility Helicopters

This project entails the acquisition of thirty Agusta A109 Light 
Utility Helicopters from Agusta Westland in Italy. All thirty 
helicopters	ordered	were	delivered	and	updated	to	the	final	
production standard.

Good progress was made in concluding the outstanding 
additional requirements which included a cabin-mounted 
gun capability and an increase in the all up weight of the 
helicopter.

1.2.2.2 Airbus A400M Strategic Heavy-Lift Transport 

Aircraft

The programme entailed the acquisition of eight Airbus 
A400M Strategic Heavy Lift aircraft from Airbus Military S.L. 
(AMSL) as part of a nine nation co-operative project.
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Delivery of the South African Aircraft was contractually 
scheduled over the period 2010 to 2012. The project suffered 
serious	 delays	 and	 first	 flight	 of	 the	 aircraft,	 originally	
scheduled to take place in January 2008, only took place in 
December 2009.

Subsequent to a decision by Cabinet in this regard, Armscor 
Board of Directors instructed the Armscor Chief Executive 
Officer	 on	 5	 November	 2009	 to	 terminate	 the	 purchase	
agreement due to unacceptable project schedule delays. 

Negotiations for the reimbursement of the advance payments 
are at an advanced stage.

1.2.2.3 Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft

The programme entails the acquisition of 26 SAAB JAS 39 
Gripen Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft from BAE Systems/
SAAB consortium, with the assembly of the aircraft at 
Linkoping, Sweden.

All	nine	dual	seat	aircraft	and	the	first	six	single	seat	aircraft	
were delivered to the South African Air Force. Eleven aircraft, 
together with their support systems were successfully utilised 
by the South African Air Force during the 2010 FIFA Soccer 
World Cup event.

Acceptance of the next four Single Seat Aircraft was 
completed in Sweden by end March 2011. Three single seat 
aircraft were shipped to South Africa during March 2011 with 
scheduled arrival in South Africa by mid-April 2011.

The	first	Gripen	Pilot	Conversion	Course	conducted	by	 the	
South African Air Force was successfully completed, which 
included	the	first	Gripen	female	pilot.	

The integration of the A-Darter Missile and Reconnaissance 
Pod onto the South African Gripen Aircraft is on schedule for 
delivery as part of Block 4 in October 2011. The testing of the 
full capability of the Electronic Warfare System was delayed 
and will be delivered after Block 4.

 1.2.2.4 Lead-In Fighter Trainer Aircraft

This programme provides for the acquisition of twenty-four 
Hawk 120 Lead-In Fighter Trainer (LIFT) aircraft from BAE 
Systems in the UK. The LIFT aircraft are primarily utilized 

as lead-in trainers during the progression of pilots from their 
initial	 flying	 training	 on	Pilatus	Astra	 trainers	 to	 the	Gripen	
Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft. 

A	total	of	1989	hours	were	flown	during	the	reporting	period,	
of	which	203	were	flown	during	the	2010	FIFA	Soccer	World	
Cup event.

The aircraft functionality was enhanced with the development 
of Operational Capability 4, which introduced simulated use of 
infra-red and radar guided missiles. The upgrade also served 
to replace the original analogue video recording equipment 
with a digital recording capability which vastly improves the 
quality	of	 the	HUD	picture	and	video	 images	 for	debriefing	
purposes.

To meet changes in data transmission legislation (UHF 
data Link), a V/UHF antenna was installed and the data link 
software was upgraded to enable the sharing of simulated 
radar data with the Gripen aircraft. 

1.2.2.5 Rooivalk Combat Support Helicopters

Following delays resulting from the moratorium that was 
placed	 on	 any	 further	 financial	 commitments	 for	 further	
development and upgrade of the Rooivalk Combat Support 
Helicopter (CSH) including all issues relating to Denel 
Aviation, the developer and manufacturer of the Rooivalk 
Helicopter assuming full responsibility and liability as the 
Original Equipment Manufacturer of the platform were 
resolved,	 work	 resumed	 on	 the	 upgrade	 of	 the	 fleet	 of	
helicopters	to	the	final	deployment	baseline.	

The	upgrade	of	 the	first	 five	Mk1	Rooivalk	helicopters	was	
completed at the end of the reporting period. The hand over 
to the Chief of the South African Air Force is scheduled for 
1	April	2011.	The	Military	Type	Certification	for	the	Rooivalk	
CSH	 was	 obtained	 on	 31	 March	 2011.	 The	 retrofit	 of	 the	
remaining six helicopters is planned to be complete by March 
2012 and the release to operational service is planned for 
September 2011. 

The Mokopa anti-tank missile was successfully launched 
from the Rooivalk CSH platform in January 2011.
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1.2.2.6 Pilatus Astra Trainer Aircraft Avionics Upgrade

The Pilatus Astra training aircraft is currently being upgraded 
with a new glass cockpit avionic system by the local company 
Aerosud under the auspices of Pilatus Aircraft Ltd. Twelve 
of the 35 aircraft that were upgraded were completed and 
handed back to the South African Air Force under their new 
name, the PC7 MKII. 

At	 the	 end	 of	 the	 reporting	 period,	 the	 first	 12	 upgraded	
aircraft	had	already	accumulated	over	1000	flying	hours	with	
the new avionics and demonstrated reliability to allow the 
commencement of both an instructor conversion and student 
course to commence in January 2011.

The	flight	training	simulator	for	the	new	avionics	system	was	
installed at Air Force Base Langebaanweg in June 2010 
and forms part of the new curriculum of both the instructor 
conversion and student training courses.

Another	flight	simulator	is	dude	for	deliver	and	installation	in	
June 2011 whilst the remaining aircraft will be delivered at a 
rate of one per month until 2013.

1.2.2.7 New Generation Short Range Air-to-Air Missile

This project entails the development of the A-Darter short 
range air-to-air missile system by Denel, co-funded by the 
Brazilian Air Force. 

In the period under review, work was directed towards pre-
programmed	missile	 (ground	 launcher)	 flight	 testing	 of	 the	
missile	and	flutter	and	clearance	flight	testing	on	the	Gripen	
aircraft. Emphasis of the work was directed towards the 
design	finalisation	of	 the	missile	and	 its	subsystems	and	to	
the	separation	flight	trials	from	the	Gripen.

Flight testing from the Gripen aircraft entailed carriage 
clearance	of	 the	missile	over	 the	full	Gripen	flight	envelope	
and	 conducting	 six	 successful	 missile	 separation	 firings.		
These	 clearance	 firings	 satisfied	 the	 requirements	 of	 the	
Gripen manufacturer (SAAB).  Except for the completion 
of the necessary documentation, the A-Darter missile has 
been successfully integrated on the Gripen aircraft.  The 
Gripen	flight	trials	were	preceded	by	the	last	series	of	ground	
launched	flight	tests	which	proved	the	missile	flight	control	at	
low altitude.
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The design formalisation of the missile progressed well, with 
the majority of subsystems completing their critical design 
reviews (e.g. the airframe and the rocket motor, etc.) while 
the	warhead	was	formally	qualified.		The	final	series	of	wind	
tunnel testing was completed, with only the analysis of the 
data gathered still to be completed. The data will be used to 
update	the	aerodynamic	modeling	and	for	qualification	of	the	
missile itself.

Work	scheduled	 for	 the	next	year	 includes	 the	qualification	
of	 subsystems,	 further	 flight	 testing	 with	 the	 project	 being	
completed within the next 24 months.

1.2.3 LANDWARD SYSTEMS 

1.2.3.1 Ground Based Air Defence System for  

the SA Army.

The project was aimed at the development and delivery of the 
Local Warning Segment (LWS) of the new Ground Based Air 
Defence System (GBADS). The project experienced a further 
slippage of six months due to technical problems experienced 
with the communications functional element. 

During the reporting period, the technical matters around the 
communication functional element were successfully resolved 
and integration of all the functional elements commenced in 
February 2011.

By the end of the reporting period, the integration effort was 
progressing well and it is anticipated that integration and 
testing of the complete system will be completed by the end 
of May 2011.   

1.2.3.2 New-Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle

The project provides for a complete New Generation Infantry 
Combat Vehicle Products System (NGICV-PS) to replace the 
Ratel Infantry Combat Vehicle that has been in service since 
1976.

The	 project	 essentially	 comprises	 five	 combat	 variants,	
including their logistic support and ammunition. The 
vehicle platforms are initially sourced from Patria Land and 
Armament in Finland, while turrets and weapon systems are 
locally developed by Denel Land Systems (DLS) as the prime 
contractor.

Both the local and foreign components of the project are 
progressing well. Manufacturing of the 5 Engineering 
Development	Model	(EDM)	platforms	(common	configuration)	
by Patria in Finland was completed on 24 February 2009.  
Four	 platforms	 are	 in	 South	Africa	 and	 delivery	 of	 the	 fifth	
platform is scheduled for December 2011 after completion 
of the Health and Usage Monitoring System (HUMS) and 
Navigation System integration. 

The Product Baseline A for the Section Variant was achieved 
during September 2010. This was a critical milestone and 
it determined the date by which Armscor had to commit to 
activation of the Manufacturing Phase of the contract.  As a 
result of a pending decision on the extent of the requirements 
for the production units of this system, the Prime Contractor 
has granted Armscor extension on the commitment date until 
10 June 2011. 

The development of the local 30mm Camgun is progressing 
well after initial technical problems. The environmental test 
and evaluation of the EDM’s are in progress. The development 
by Denel PMP of the 30mm TP and AP ammunition has been 
completed.

The completion of the SAPHEI ammunition is planned for 
June 2011. Assembly of the two Sections Variant Turrets has 
started and the other variants will follow soon.

System safety is a high priority on this project and good 
progress	 was	 made	 towards	 the	 mitigation	 of	 identified	
potential	 safety	 hazards	 and	 risks.	 This	 will	 be	 the	 first	
system that will be developed under the guidance of the 
newly established Landwards Safety Board of South Africa. 
The	aim	 is	 to	achieve	 full	safety	certification	of	 the	product	
system by the end of completion of the development phase.
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1.2.4 COMMON WEAPON SYSTEMS 

1.2.4.1 New Generation Tactical Communication 

System

This project addresses the acquisition of a complete new 
generation tactical communication system for the South 
African National Defence Force (SANDF).

This system will make provision for all tactical communication 
requirements for all arms of service and will ensure 
interoperability between all users. The communication system 
will encompass state of the art transmission and information 
security techniques, whilst incorporating semi real time data 
link performance characteristics as well as digital voice 
communication.  Backwards compatibility to existing systems 
will be possible, utilizing an advanced management system.

Interoperability	between	all	elements	of	the	battlefield	(South	
African Air Force, South African Army, South African Navy, 
etc.) will be possible without making use of gateways or 
protocol	converters	–	the	first	system	in	the	world	capable	of	
total interoperability.

The communication system will consist of seven sub-systems, 
which will be contracted separately. The development and 
industrialization phases of the four major sub-systems, 
HF (High Frequency) Radio system, the V/UHF (Very/
Ultra High Frequency) radio system, IPCS (Intra Platform 
Communication System) and the SRCS (Short Range 
Communication System) have been contracted and full- 
scale development of these four systems is progressing well.

The allocated baselines have been established and it is 
anticipated to have the Development and Industrialization 
phases will be completed by February 2013.

2. ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES (PTY) LIMITED 
(ADI)

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Limited (ADI) is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Armscor and is mandated to manage, 
support and maintain those strategic facilities and essential 

defence industrial capabilities, resources and technologies 
as	identified	by	the	Department	of	Defence.

It also maintains special capabilities and facilities that are 
regarded by Armscor as not commercially viable, but that 
may be required by the Department of Defence for security 
or strategic reasons.

Armscor Defence Institutes also provides defence operational 
research and management of technology projects, as required 
by the Department of Defence, and supplies engineering 
and technical capability to the Department of Defence and 
Armscor. 

ADI exploits commercial opportunities as may arise out of 
Armscor’s duty to acquire defence materiel or to manage 
technology projects.

The divisions of ADI are the following: 

2.1 TESTING AND EVALUATION 

2.1.1 Gerotek Test Facilities 

Through its various subdivisions, Gerotek supports the 
acquisition process of Armscor and the South African 
National Defence Force (SANDF), testing and driver training 
requirements from the defence industry and other commercial 
industries as well as requirements from the South African 
Police Service (SAPS).

Gerotek Testing Services provides accredited testing 
services to verify conformance of components, products or 
systems	to	set	quality	standards	and	specifications.		Gerotek	
Events provides an environment in which these products and 
services can be introduced to the marketplace.

The	SANAS	re-certification	audit	conducted	during	February	
2011 was successful and ISO 17025 accreditation for 
Gerotek was extended.

The Transport Education Training Authority (TETA) 
accreditation	and	the	SABS/SASETA/POLICE	small	firearms	
training facility accreditation which are all essential for service 
delivery	 were	 also	 maintained.	 Official	 ISO	 14001/18001	
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certification	is	planned	during	2011/2012.

Gerotek	 participated	 in	 a	 proficiency	 testing	 scheme	 with	
15 international test laboratories in which the same sample 
was tested by all laboratories. Gerotek was among the 
75% of laboratories whose results complied with expert 
benchmarking results.

Capital equipment upgrade and replacement activities such 
as the new drive-in climatic chamber are in full operation 
with  positive feedback received from clients. A facility at 
Gerotek	 for	 the	 testing	of	fibre-optic	cable	and	ducting	was	
successfully constructed in-house. Once accredited, this 
service can be extended to the rest of Africa to satisfy current 
requirements. 

The long overdue upgrade and maintenance of some test 
tracks	and	access	roads	was	executed	during	this	financial	
year.

Commercial testing activities were again prominent during 
the year and the international client base was expanded. 

Gerotek continues to contribute towards the improvement 
of driver training skills in South Africa. Training has been 
conducted for the SAPS, SARS and the SANDF, amongst 
others. 

2.1.2 Alkantpan

Alkantpan is a strategic ballistic test range situated 70km 
west	of	Prieska	in	the	Northern	Cape.	It	is	ISO	9001	certified	
and SANAS ISO 17020 accredited.

The test range is located to serve the Republic of South 
Africa’s defence industry. It complies with the requirements 
for such terrain as remote area, low population density and 
flat	topography	in	which	the	environment	can	accommodate	
the required activities.

Surveillance and project related weapon and ammunition 
tests are executed by technical specialists and explosive 
experts for the SANDF and the ordinance industry as well as 
for various foreign defence clients.  

The following ordinance testing capabilities are provided:

•	 Management	 of	 ballistic	 testing	 and	 related	 activities,	
such as insensitive munitions testing, environmental 
testing, ageing testing, drop testing, unmanned aircraft 
testing, arena testing and recovery testing.

•	 Measurements	 and	 data	 analysis	 on	 pressure	 (Piezo	
and copper), muzzle velocity, tracking radars, stresses 
and strains, barrel temperatures, barrel wear and ram 
characteristics, to mention but a few.

•	 Weapon	 and	 ammunition	 operators	 in	 the	 domain	 of	
artillery, armour, mortars (120mm, 81mm, 60mm, 82mm 
systems), rockets (122mm, 127mm,  40mm systems), 
rocket rail testing systems, short range missile systems, 
sub munitions systems, insensitive munitions systems 
and surveillance test systems.

•	 Support	 services	 in	 the	 domain	 of	 various	workshops,	
stores, magazines, heavy lifting machinery and cranes, 
transportation, accommodation, airstrip facilities up to 
C130	and	the	manufacturing	of	specified	client	required	
items such as targets, mock-ups and weapon stands as 
well as broad band Internet facilities to address client 
requirements.

In the period under review, new foreign client requirements 
provided opportunities to Alkantpan to explore new test 
methods. This achievement opened up opportunities for 
future business.

The placement of client weaponry and ammunition for long 
term storage and frequent ammunition tests at Alkantpan 
over the next few years is an indication of the well-established 
client relations which have been built.

Alkantpan successfully developed the capability of relaying 
high	quality	live	video,	from	the	impact	area	to	the	test	firing	
points, using long distance network repeaters. It is now 
possible for the client to observe the live impact within the 
test	firing	point.	All	video	data	is	time	stamped	with	GPS	real	
time code.
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An	 external	 re-certification	 audit	 by	 Bureau	 Veritas	
Certification	(BVC)	was	conducted	in		March	2011.		The	BVC	
lead	auditor	has	recommended	the	continued	certification	of	
Alkantpan’s ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management System 
(QMS) for the next three years.  

2.2. DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 
INSTITUTES 

2.2.1 Armour Development

This specialised division conducts continuous research and 
development to maintain and advance Armour Protection 
technologies as well as to establish industrial capability to 
timeously satisfy Armour Protection requirements over the 
entire threat spectrum, in a cost-effective manner.

The service includes the analysis of customer protection 
needs,	 development,	 testing	 and	 qualification,	 vehicle	 hull	
structural	 and	 ballistic	 design	 as	 well	 as	 specification	 of	
bonding or welding. This division has extensive experience 
in	retro-fitting	armour	packages	on	main	battle	tanks	and	the	
supply of modular adaptable armour packages for light and 
medium vehicles. 

The main focus in the past year was on developing more 
effective protection against RPG-7 attack by testing new 
concepts	 and	 refining	 existing	 systems.	A	 lot	 of	 work	 was	
also done on non-metallic reactive armour, aimed at reducing 
the collateral damage caused by the steel shrapnel that 
is produced by conventional reactive armours. Further 
work has been done on the Combat Armour suite for the 
new Generation Mechanised Combat Vehicle with weight 
reduction as the main goal.

Thirty	five	test	series	were	conducted	for	different	commercial	
companies, mainly aimed at qualifying or verifying the 
protection capabilities of the products.

2.2.2 Defence Decision Support Institute (DDSI)

Defence Decision Support Institute, supplies defence 
analysis, decision support, operational research and 
capability analysis to defence practitioners in the Department 

of Defence, focusing on the higher system levels (level 5+) 
over the total life cycle of defence capabilities.  

The scope of services inherent in this statement conducted 
by DDSI includes, but is not limited to, the following:

a. Policy Analysis – studies to support Department of 
Defence decision makers in the formulation and/or 
implementation of policy regarding defence issues.

b. War	&	Conflict	Studies	–	analysis	of	past	and	future	
conflict	and	war-fighting	trends,	typologies,	concepts,	
lessons learned and doctrine with a view to a better 
understanding of, and insight into, contextual aspects 
of	 conflict	 &	 war	 to	 inform	 and	 educate	 defence	
practitioners.

c. Future Studies & Trend Analysis – research into 
plausible futures as a context for defence planning 
and requirements setting.

d. Environmental Analysis – studying and monitoring of 
the multi-dimensional operational environment.

e. Defence Capability Analysis – support to the 
Department of Defence in the development and 
application of tools and methodologies to determine 
future defence capability requirements.

f. Weapon System Analysis – studies supporting the 
determination of high - level characteristics of weapon 
systems, trade-offs between possible alternatives and 
life-cycle cost analyses

g. Operational Analysis – study and analysis of current 
and past military-relevant operations (operational and 
tactical levels) with a view to supplying solutions to 
current problems and guidance for future operational 
requirements.

h. Process Development & Support – support to the 
management	 of	 defence	 capabilities,	 with	 specific	
focus on the role of core systems 
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i. Product System Management Support – is the support 
to the military personnel who are responsible for the 
management of level 5 Product Systems currently in 
operational use.  Some of the key aspects of product 
systems management are: 

•	 Baseline	management

•	 Material	readiness

•	 Inventory	control

•	 Operational	performance	measurement

•	 Operational	 data	 analysis,	 trend	 and	 tracking	
performance

•	 Phase-out	management.

j. Integrated Logistic Support Management Services 
(ILSMS) - the provision of comprehensive and 
integrative mechanisms and enablers for Integrated 
Logistic Staff Support to the South African Army to 
direct, control and coordinate the execution of cost - 
effective logistic/system management

The services described are delivered by a Centre of 
Excellence, benchmarked against international norms and 
practices, applying multi- and inter-disciplinary methodologies 
with a joint and integrated focus.

DDSI provides to the client environment a continuous 
source of knowledge and skills that also serves as a form of 
Department of Defence corporate memory.

This is demonstrated by the projects currently being executed 
in order to satisfy the DOD requirements.

The main highlights for the Defence Decision Support 
Institute (DDSI) were:

•	 The	 sustainment	 of	 capabilities	 in	 terms	 of	
retention and attraction of required resources, 
rejuvenation	 of	 the	work	 force	 and	 the	 financial	
sustainability in terms of effective management 
and funding of the organisation.  

•	 The	 establishment	 of	 a	 continuous	 employee	
training and development programme in order to 
empower people in the execution of their tasks 
was one of the major highlights in terms of the 
effective operations.  

•	 The	effective	service	delivery	in	terms	of	Product	
Systems Management and close working 
relationship with the client contributed to and 
ensured increased availability and operational 
effectiveness of defence materiel in the 

Department of Defence.   

In terms of Operational Research conducted, the highlights 

achieved for this year were:

•	 Several	 studies	 completed	 for	 the	 Defence	 
Secretariat, 

•	 Capability	 Management	 completed	 for	 the	 Joint	 
operations division,

•	 Policy	and	Strategy	support	provided	to	Command	 
Management and Information Services (CMIS) 
and 

•	 Several	 effectiveness	 and	 design	 studies	
conducted for the South African Air Force

2.2.3 Ergonomics Technologies (ERGOTECH)

ERGOTECH provides a comprehensive service in military 
ergonomics (human factors) to the Department of Defence in 
order to satisfy the Departments’ requirement for a Structured 
Ergonomics Programme. The Ergonomics Programme is 
directed	at	ensuring	the	effective	and	efficient	integration	of	
ergonomics in all defence systems of the SANDF.  

ERGOTECH’s	main	objective	 is	 to	provide	an	efficient	and	
quality ergonomics service to the DOD.  This was again 
achieved during the past year.  All the contracted outcomes 
were delivered on time and within the project budget.  Quality 
also received the necessary attention and ERGOTECH 
retained	its	ISO	9001:2008	certification.		

ERGOTECH was responsible for the generation and 
maintenance of the soldier characteristics database for the 
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SANDF and additions were made to the anthropometry and 
biomechanics sections of the database.  This database is 
critical for the successful integration of ergonomics into soldier 
equipment and systems within the operating environment of 
the SANDF soldier.  

The ergonomics services provided in the period under 
review	 included	military	 ergonomics	 research,	 specification	
and design of human-machine systems and the evaluation 
of environmental stressors and human-machine systems. 
Specialised health and safety investigations pertaining to 
hearing protection that are unique to the SANDF environment 
were also conducted.

Each research project was grouped into one of the following 
ten domains: 

•	 anthropometry	

•	 biomechanics

•	 human	physiology

•	 cognitive	ergonomics

•	 human	performance

•	 technology	and	capability	maintenance

•	 research	equipment

•	 design	and	specification	support

•	 test	and	evaluation	support	

•	 special	ergonomics	services.

Domain specialists were responsible for the leading the 
research with each of the groupings.   

The following are some of the objectives that were achieved 
during the last year:  

•	 The	 anthropometric	 database	 of	 the	 SANDF	
was expanded. This was done with the addition 
of conventional measurement data and three 
dimensional size and shape data by means of a 

whole body scanner and foot scanner. The three 
dimensional anthropometric data enables detailed 
analysis on human body shapes and directly 
supports the design and evaluation capabilities of 
ERGOTECH for the Department of Defence. 

•	 The	impact	of	technology	on	human	performance	
was investigated by studying the performance 
enhancement of head-up-displays for information 
transfer for military vehicle applications.  

•	 Within	 the	 human	 physiology	 domain,	 work	
proceeded	on	the	fluid	replacement	strategies	for	
soldiers performing high - intensity tasks under 
extreme environmental conditions.  Valuable 
results were obtained with direct application and 
potential	benefit	for	the	SANDF.

ERGOTECH was also involved in providing ergonomics 
inputs to various acquisition projects of the Department of 
Defence. Ergonomics specialist inputs were provided to the 
infantry	 fighting	 vehicle	 programme,	 the	 operational	 supply	
support transporter programme, the command and control 
technology programme and the communication equipment 
acquisition programme.

During the last year, ERGOTECH also performed ergonomics 
and health and safety related work for the South African 
Military Health Service (SAHMS). Considerable progress 
has been made in the design of purpose - made footwear for 
the SANDF by utilising the three dimensional anthropometric 
data collected with the scanners.

Work also focused on the measurement of mental workload 
by means of psychological metrics. Noise abatement 
measurement techniques were developed to support the 
Department of Defence in providing effective occupational 
health and safety devices to its personnel.

2.2.4. Flamengro 

Flamengro is a Centre of Excellence for Computational 
Mechanics Modelling in the South African defence 
environment. 

Flamengro is a strategic asset to the Department of Defence 
and is mandated to develop, maintain and expand the 
Computational Mechanics Modelling capability for use by the 
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Department of Defence. It also provides a cost-effective and 
integrated support service to Department of Defence system 
procurement and support activities. Flamengro performs 
research in support of acquisition activities. 

Some of the highlights of the past year include: 

§	 Presentation of three research papers at the South 
African Ballistics Organisation.

§	 Successful development and testing of an extremely 
high yield, low explosive mass pre-formed warhead 
concept at RDM North – this warhead shows an increase 
the lethal area footprints on soft targets of 20%, from 
the state-of-the-art 155 mm Assegaai ammunition, using 
less than a quarter of the explosive mass used in the 
Assegaai.

§	 Completion of the 10-year DRDB funded research into 
the formation of pressure waves in artillery guns and the 
total	elimination	of	these	from	the	current	systems,	a	first	
in the world and performed in conjunction with RDM.

§	 Modelling and simulation support to Project 
HOEFYSTER,	 specifically	 the	 30	 mm	 weapon	 of	 the	
HOEFYSTER vehicle.  The support was provided as a 
quick reaction task and the analyses were completed 
and reported on within a month of the request from 
Denel Land Systems.

§	 The work on the Extended Range Munitions led to 
a requirement for a test facility for validation of the 
modeling and simulation results.  

2.2.5 Hazmat Protective Systems

Hazmat Protective Systems manufactures and markets a 
comprehensive	range	of	filter	cartridges,	canisters,	half	and	
full - face mask respirators to protect the individual and soldier 
against the majority of respiratory health hazards.

Hazmat also manufactures impregnated activated carbon, 
which is used in a range of cartridges, canisters and industrial 
filter	 applications.	 This	 technology	 was	 developed	 by	 the	
military	 in	 order	 to	 supply	 chemical	 and	biological	 filters	 to	

the	SANDF.	Military	carbon	used	in	the	manufacture	of	filters	
for individual or collective protection is not readily obtainable 
and is controlled.

Canisters, cartridges and half masks are also manufactured to 
benefit	the	workforce	of	companies	-	in	the	mining,	industrial,	
agricultural and private sectors. 

Hazmat works closely with Protechnik Laboratories to ensure 
that it has an active R&D infrastructure to maintain the 
capabilities	 identified	 as	 strategic	 by	 the	SANDF,	 and	 also	
to develop new products. This dynamic approach allows 
Hazmat to stay current with technological advances, thereby 
providing the latest products to clients. 

All respiratory products are approved (homologated) by the 
(NRCS) and comply with the applicable military standard. 

Hazmat is currently the only manufacturer of respiratory 
canisters	and	chemical	and	biological	filters	 in	South	Africa	
for use in the military and industrial environments. 

The period under, review posed a major challenge for 
Hazmat.	The	fire	 incident	on	23	June	2010	destroyed	most	
of Hazmat’s facilities and equipment. However, with the 
remaining facilities and equipment, Hazmat still managed 
to	 achieve	 most	 of	 its	 financial	 objectives	 and	 succeeded	
in	making	a	modest	 financial	 surplus	 for	 the	financial	 year.	
This is no small feat since Hazmat had to re-establish the 
entire operation within a limited time frame, in a much smaller 
space. 

Reconstruction	of	the	building	destroyed	in	the	fire	has	started	
and	good	progress	 is	being	made.	Procurement	of	 the	 fire	
damaged manufacturing equipment started in the previous 
review period (i.e. the equipment required to manufacture 
filters	 in	 accordance	 to	 the	 new	 compulsory	 standard	 on	
respiratory protection EN 143).  

In spite of the challenges faced by Hazmat during this review 
period, Hazmat staff remained optimistic. Their dedication 
and the obstacles Hazmat had to overcome motivated staff 
to continue to delight their clients by delivering high - quality 
products. 
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2.2.6. Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT)

The Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT) founded in 1975, 
provides science based technological support to the South 
African Navy.

Initially, work undertaken at IMT was mainly centred on naval 
operations research and the establishment of underwater 
technology in the local defence research environment. As time 
went by, the scope of activities was continuously increased to 
meet the growing demands of the South African Navy.

Over the past year, IMT performed in accordance with 
requirements and expectations of its primary client. This 
achievement	 is	 reflected	 in	 the	 highlights	 set	 out	 in	 the	
following paragraphs.

2.2.6.1 Underwater Security Support: 2010 FIFA 
World Cup

One of the main tasks of the South African Navy during South 
Africa’s hosting of the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup was to 
provide underwater security in the South African ports of the 
coastal host cities Cape Town, Durban and Port Elizabeth. 
IMT’s involvement started well before this, with the conceptual 
design	and	specification,	as	well	as	direct	participation,	in	the	
procurement of a Shallow Water Route Survey System for 
the South African Navy. 

The primary function of the South African Navy was to 
provide a detailed survey of each port and its approaches 
in order to detect potential threats. A team of IMT specialists 
assisted with the establishment and preparation of the data 
management system for this capability before deployment.

The central data processing and management system was 
housed on the hydrographic survey ship - SAS PROTEA 
that was deployed to Port Elizabeth for the duration of the 
operation. During the initial underwater survey, IMT had to 
assist	 with	 the	 definition	 of	 data	 processing	 for	 Standard	
Operating	Procedures	(SOPs)	and	fine-tune	the	GIS-based	
data management tools so that survey products could be 
prepared for distribution to all authorities involved.

The GIS system was manned by IMT personnel and received 
data processed in the data centre by South African Navy 
specialists in oceanographic survey. Apart from assisting 
with survey data processing, IMT also gathered relevant 
environmental information and distributed this to each of the 
Harbour Venue Operational Centres (HVOC) in each port. 

2.2.6.2 Maritime Domain Awareness (MDA)

South African maritime authorities are limited in patrol 
resources and have large territorial coastal and maritime 
areas to guard and protect. Adequate Maritime Domain 
Awareness (MDA) could be a major force multiplier.

IMT is actively involved in assisting towards this capability, 
not only on behalf of the South African Navy, but on behalf of 
all stakeholders. 

IMT’s effort is aimed at providing technological insight into all 
aspects of MDA and to provide national maritime authorities 
with a technology plan to guide the establishment of a 
comprehensive national and regional MDA capability.

This includes investigating:  

a) various sensor systems;  

b) the latest technological advances in such systems 
and establishing which elements contribute to an 
understanding of an integrated MDA picture; 

c) acquiring a state-of-the-art, commercial-off-the-shelf 
(COTS) vessel tracking radar system for evaluation 
with a view to future deployment; 

d) evaluation of existing coastal surveillance systems 
(e.g. COASTRAD); and  

e) investigating the management of vast amounts of 
real-time data i.e. how technology can used to aid in 
real-time decision making and control.
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2.2.6.3 Advanced Concept Technology Demonstration 
Model

IMT was actively involved in the continued development of 
Naval Electronic Warfare (EW) related technology. 

The main aim is to build an Advanced Concept Technology 
Demonstration Model (ACTDM) for an Off-board Active 
Decoy (OAD) system which could be effective in protecting 
South African Navy vessels from modern and advanced 
anti-ship missile attack.

The purpose of this project is to identify and reduce 
technology risks to the point where the South African Navy 
could	confidently	launch	an	acquisition	programme	for	such	
a system.

2.2.6.4 IMT Multi-Sensor Underwater Link

During the year under review, a new multi-sensor underwater 
link was completed and deployed at sea. This unit is in direct 
communication with the IMT building and measuring facilities. 
This sensor will be utilised to assist in IMT’s efforts towards 
measurement, analysis and interpretation of underwater 
signatures.

2.2.7 Protechnik Laboratories

Protechnik Laboratories is a research and development 
institute	performing	project	work	in	the	field	of	chemical	and	
biological defence on behalf of the South African National 
Defence Force (SANDF).

All Defence Research and Development Board (DRDB) 
project work and all SAMHS work was completed on time 
and within budget. This was a major achievement as many 
activities had to be rescheduled as chemicals, consumables 
and gases had to be repurchased and alternative storage 
space	 organised	 after	 the	 fire.	 	 Moreover,	 some	 important	
facilities	and	services	were	not	available	as	a	 result	 of	 fire	
damage.

Protechnik	 continued	 to	 be	 active	 in	 the	 training	 of	 first	
responders and scientists from Africa.  The Second Basic 
Analytical Chemistry Course was held at Protechnik from 13 
to 23 September 2010.

Twelve scientists from the rest of Africa participated in 
this course.  The course was regarded as useful by these 
scientists who were given hands-on training on sophisticated 
GC and GC-MS equipment.  At a meeting of African 
Laboratory Heads, which took place in Mombasa in March 
2011, the value of this course was acknowledged.

Protechnik also participated in the 6th OPCW Assistance and 
Protection Course which was co-organised by SAMHS, the 
OPCW and the Non-Proliferation Council.  The course was 
also held in September 2010.

Protechnik also played a major role in the development of 
a prototype transportable high containment chemical and 
biological laboratory.  The design of this laboratory was 
finalised	and	the	equipment	required	for	this	laboratory	has	
been purchased.

Further work was conducted at Alkantpan on the stability of 
toxic compounds under extreme environmental conditions. 
Much valuable data is being obtained from these results.  
The Alkantpan test site will also be utilised for training and 
the transportable laboratory will be evaluated. 

Tests	were	conducted	in	the	climate	chamber	to	finalise	the	
design of the fully encapsulated suit and the new Chemical 
Biological (CB) suit.  The suits were also evaluated by a wide 
range	 of	 military,	 industrial	 and	 first	 responder	 personnel	
and	 these	 inputs	will	 be	 utilised	 to	 finalise	 the	 design	 and 
pre-production versions to be made for thorough evaluation.

An in vitro model system, using human cells, has been 
developed to determine the effects of exposure to certain 
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chemical biological warfare (CBW) agents. To date, the 
complete genetic effect of exposure to representative agents 
has been determined and will promote the development of 
new countermeasures.

3. DOCKYARD

The Dockyard is the South African Navy’s maintenance 
and repair authority responsible for the upkeep of the South 
African	Navy	fleet.	This	 role	of	 the	Dockyard	entails	all	 the	
actions that need to be taken to satisfy the need for materiel, 
facilities and services intended for use in support of client 
requirements. 

The Dockyard is expected to further integrate reliability, 
maintainability, systems safety and other factors into the 
total maintenance and repair engineering effort in supporting 
the South African Navy to meet product systems operating 
performance objectives. 

The Dockyard embarked on a management exercise for the 
development of its business processes during the period 
under review. The Dockyard strategy, value chain and 
business plan were established and approved. The purpose 
of the value chain analysis was to outline the business 
process model, key functions and ultimately the resources 
associated with the Dockyard capacity requirements. This 
value chain formed an integral input into the Dockyard 
structure. The funding requirements are documented in the 
Dockyard Business Requirement Plan. 

The	Dockyard	resources	reflected	a	shortfall	in	both	human	
and	technical	capability	to	fill	its	intended	capability	to	support	
the full South African Navy upkeep capability. This included 
the upkeep of the Drydock caisson and the Electrical Test 
House. The upgrade to the Electrical Test House enhanced 
the testing capability of electrical generators and alternators. 
The	challenge	is	the	non	–	fixed	or	non	–	guaranteed	nature	
of this funding, which does not allow for effective planning 

The Dockyard assets transfer from the Department of 
Defence was effective from 1 April 2010.  This necessitated 
Armscor to undertake valuation of the transferred assets, by 
an	independent	firm	of	chartered	accountants	in	March	2011.

 

3.1 PROJECTS

A number of projects were undertaken during the reporting 
period and executed in accordance with the respective scope 
of work.  

3.1.1. SAS ISANDLWANA DED

The SAS Isandlwana underwent a planned maintenance 
work, which was successfully executed despite the numerous 
challenges experienced. This project took considerably 
longer than the planned dates due to the large amount of 
supplementary work raised as a result of scope growth.  

3.1.2. SAS UMHLOTI REFIT

This	 project	 entails	 the	 refit	 of	 SAS	 Umhloti.	 The	 key	
challenge was the overhauling of the main engines by the 
Original Equipment Manufacture (OEM) and associated 
major equipment, including the generators and compressors. 
A large percentage of the systems were successfully tested 
in accordance with operational requirements. 

3.1.3 SAS ISAAC DYOBA

The	vessel	was	docked	for	“small	hull	repairs”.	The	findings	
revealed further hull damages, which can be attributed 
primarily to the age of the vessel, especially its prolonged 
use.	 The	 repair	 solution	 is	 under	 review,	 to	 confirm	 the	
envisaged operational life and requirement.

3.1.4 TUG DE MIST REFIT

The tugs play an integral role in both docking and undocking 
activities of South African Navy vessels. Tug De Mist was in 
service	for	her	major	upkeep	-	the	refit.	

The Dockyard’s focus during this period was the 
commissioning of the main engines following their renewal 
and the upper deck plank renewals.

3.1.5 TUG TSHUKUDU REFIT

Tug	Tshukudu	underwent	her	normal	refit,	which	commenced	
in January 2011 and should be completed in the next 
reporting period. This included the overhaul of a number of 
equipment, engineering changes and work arising out of the 
statutory surveys.
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3.1.5 SAS QUEEN MODJADJI II DED

The submarine SAS Queen Modjadji underwent her planned 
Docking Essential Defect (DED) repair period. Additional 
tasks including engineering changes were undertaken, which 
included repairs to secondary work discovered through 
normal statutory surveys.

The implementation of the Engineering changes during this 
DED	was	a	first	of	class	fit.	Germanischer	Lloyd,	the	inspection	
authority witnessed the pressure tests and has carried out 
an installation inspection to the external component of the 
Engineering Change. All maintenance work and engineering 
changes were successfully completed and the vessel 
undocked and is ready for operational deployments. 

3.1.6 SAS CHARLOTTE MAXEKE 

The SAS Charlotte Maxeke had two Assisted Maintainance 
Period (AMP’s) scheduled for the period under review. Both 
AMP’s were successfully completed, despite challenges 
experienced during the execution. 

3.1.7 SAS MANTHATISI 

SAS	 Manthatisi	 is	 the	 first	 of	 class	 submarines	 acquired	
as part of the Strategic Defence Packages and operated 
by the South African Navy. SAS Manthatisi is undergoing 
maintenance. The Original Equipment Manufacturer was 
involved and has conducted the necessary surveys during 
this period. The associated work packages are outstanding 
and it is anticipated that the execution of the work will be 
finalised	in	the	next	reporting	period.

3.2 Planning

Planning formed an integral part of effective work execution. 
The South African Navy and the Dockyard embarked on 
joint planning efforts, to ensure streamlined planning efforts. 
These interfaces an ensured execution and project feedback 
between the stakeholders.

Internally, the legacy system is being utilised. This is until 
the corporate system, which the Dockyard must ultimately be 
integrated	with,	 is	properly	defined.	The	Dockyard’s	part	of	
the solution is to ensure integration with the South African 
Navy tasking and planning system. 

3.3 Business strategy

The Dockyard Business Strategy was developed and 
approved by the Board of Directors in February 2010. This 
paved the way for the development of the Dockyard Business 
Plan approved in July 2010.  

A	 number	 of	 strategic	 objectives	 have	 been	 identified	 and	
agreed to between the South African Navy and the Dockyard 
to ensure the effective execution of the mandate. These  were  
costed and incorporated into the Business Plan.

The Business Plan also interprets the expectations of the 
South African Navy as determined in its Maintenance Upkeep 
Plan (MUP).

Furthermore, a joint Dockyard Business Support 
Requirements Plan between the Armscor Dockyard and 
South African Navy Fleet Management was developed and 
endorsed by both parties. It outlined the resources required 
to ensure the optimal maintenance, repairs and support 
services.	It	also	reflected	a	significant	shortfall	per	annum	to	
ensure optimal support.

Over the years, the Dockyard skill set and capabilities 
suffered	 a	 number	 of	 setbacks.	 The	 loss	 of	 qualified	
personnel resulted in lack of resources, loss of critical skills 
and knowledge in critical areas. The rejuvenation of both 
the human resources and technical capabilities is greatly 
dependent on the requisite funding. 

The	 insufficient	 funding	 is	 posing	 a	 great	 risk	 in	 ensuring	
effective support. 

3.4 Customer Support

A Performance Management Agreement document was 
concluded between the South African Navy and Armscor 
Dockyard for the maintenance, repair and support services 
to be rendered by Armscor Dockyard to the SA Navy (Fleet 
Command).

The agreement covers the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 
2014, where after it will be reviewed. 

The aim of the Agreement is to document all aspects relating 
to the collaboration and co-operation between the South 
African Navy (Fleet) and Armscor Dockyard in an effort to 
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deliver services required by the Fleet in accordance with 
maintenance upkeep plan. The Agreement seeks to also 
ensure its operational capability in accordance with the 
Dockyard Transfer and Service Delivery Agreements.

3.5 Commercial Projects 

In the year under review, the Dockyard conducted a number 
of commercial dry dockings, repairs and maintenance work in 
both Simon’s Town and Durban.

Of the commercial undertakings, the key highlights were the 
completion of Robben Island World War II guns and a number 
of successful commercial dry dockings. Armscor Dockyard 
has also supported the local shipbuilding industry by making 
its facilities available for lease.  

The Dockyard remains focused and committed to its role of 
maintaining	the	South	African	Navy’s	vessels	efficiently	and	
cost effectively.

4. DEFENCE INDUSTRIAL PARTICIPATION 
(DIP)

An important part of the South African National Defence 
Force (SANDF) objective of maintaining a critical minimum 
state of preparedness is the existence of an equally prepared 
and capable local defence industry. 

Where Department of Trade and Industry (the dti) through 
its National Industrial Participation (NIP) programme aims 
to grow and develop various economic sectors, Defence 
Industrial Participation (DIP) complements this process by 
specifically	focusing	on	the	defence	industry.	

DIP is an integral part of the Department of Defence policy 
framework for the retention and development of the South 
African defence industry, which is regarded as a national 
strategic and economic asset. 

In order to stay abreast of the changing environment since the 
conclusion of the SDP agreements, Armscor has embarked 
on an inclusive process to review and revise the current DIP 
Policy and Practice to ensure a more focused approach. The 
process	will	be	completed	in	the	next	financial	year.

DIP	contributes	significantly	to	the	retention	of	self	sufficiency	
in key areas, the establishment of life cycle support of 
sophisticated equipment, the earning of foreign exchange 
through exports, the creation of domestic employment and 
the development of defence technology.

The DIP programme also actively contributes to the 
Government objective of BBBEE development and now 
requires at least 25% of all obligations to be discharged 
through	benefit	 to	companies	 that	have	at	 least	25%	Black	
equity ownership. Since this policy change was introduced 
in 2009, in excess of R1,000 million worth of credits were 
granted	for	activities	benefiting	Black	empowered	companies,		
90% of which relates to export contracts.

Armscor manages the following portfolios under the DIP 
programme:

•	 Strategic	Defence	Packages	(SDPs)	Portfolio			
 addresses the DIP obligation resulting from the a 
 cquisition of Strategic Defence Packages signed in  
 1999.

•	 Active	 Portfolio	 addresses	 the	 DIP	 obligations	
resulting from all new procurements by the 
Department of Defence with an imported content 
equal to or higher than USD 2-million.

•	 Pro-active	 Portfolio	 addresses	 all	 the	 pre-emptive	
agreements with foreign companies - credits are 
banked in anticipation of future defence purchases 
by the South African Government.

•	 Police	contracts	Portfolio	addresses	DIP	obligations	
resulting from all procurement of the Police Service 
directed through Armscor.
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4.1 The status of the four DIP Portfolios at 31 March 2011 was as follows:

Portfolio Number of run-
ning contracts

Number of 
completed 
contracts

Total obligation

Rm

Credits Passed 
during current 
financial year

Rm

Total cred-
its passed 

to date

Rm

SDPs 3 5 15 111 1 058 14 165 

Active (SDA) 14 24 6 114 103 5 671 

Police Contracts 1 3 140  23 122

Pro-Active 34 11 - 399 1 737

Total 52 43 21 365 1 583 21 695
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4.2 DIP Status of the Strategic Defence Packages at 31 March 2011

Project Obliga-
tion

Planned 
Perfor-
mance

Actual Per-
formance

Actual vs 
Planned

Actual vs 
Obligation

Sales (Local 
and Exports)

Technology 
Transfer

Investments

Rm Rm Rm % % Rm Rm Rm

Corvettes 2 941 2 031 1 995 98 68 1 505 465  25

Subma-
rines

1 121 1 121 1 121 100 100 749 364 8

Light Utility
Helicopters

1 194 1 194 1 194 100 100 675 487 32

Hawk
Aircraft

4 252 4 252  4 252 100 100 3 262    973 17

Gripen
Aircraft

5 050 5 050  5 050 100 100 3 184 1 693 173

Maritime
Helicopters

553 553 553 100 100 519 31 3

Total 15 111 14 201 14 165 99 94 9 894 4 013 258
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4.3 Highlights of some of the DIP activities credited 
during the period under review:

4.3.1 Frigates

A value of R945 million related to MBDA’s portion of the 
obligation remains the only outstanding portion of the total 
obligation. It represents 32% of the total obligation and is to 
be discharged by March 2016. Two large projects proposed 
by MBDA, the Rejuvenation of the Armscor Dockyard and the 
Joint Venture with Denel Dynamics will no longer materialise 
in the discharge period. 

The DIP Division is already considering alternative proposals 
which include certain UK Royal Navy business for the 
Dockyard and export sales for Denel Dynamics.

4.3.2 Maritime Helicopters

AgustaWestland has successfully discharged the obligation 
of R553 million during the 2010/11 financial year. 

Companies such as Denel SAAB Aerostructures, Zeiss 
Optronics and Canvas & Tent will continue to benefit as 
suppliers to AgustaWestland.

4.3.3 Gripen Aircraft

In October 2010, BAE/SAAB fully discharged the obligation 
of R5 050 million, ahead of the scheduled completion date 
of April 2011.

4.3.4 Active Portfolio

Together with acquisition managed on behalf of the SAPS a 
variety of programmes such as Cytoon, GBADS, Hoefyster, 
Kingfisher and Klooster, have delivered R5,793 million benefit 
to date and in the last year alone, R126 million.

5. SUPPORT SERVICES 

5.1 HUMAN RESOURCES

Human capital remains a key and an important asset in 
Armscor’s achieving its goals. The Human Capital Strategy 
aims at enhancing the effectiveness of the organisation 
through its people by ensuring that competent and high-
performing employees, who live the organisation’s values, 

are attracted and retained to ensure that the organisation’s 
mandate is fulfilled whilst offering rewarding careers.

The necessary and appropriate measures have been agreed 
upon. These are currently being implemented in line with 
organisational objectives and obligations, in order to ensure 
that the entity remains competitive in the labour market 
environment.

5.1.1 STAFF COMPOSITION

The staff profile of Armscor, including Armscor Dockyard, 
as at 31 March 2011 per broad band, race and gender, is 
indicated below.



37
ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11

ARMSCOR STAFF PROFILE INCLUDING ARMSCOR DOCKYARD:

Broad Band
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL GRAND

M F M F M F M F M F TOTAL
EX 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 1 5
SU 11 4 1 0 3 1 36 3 51 8 59
MP 70 18 15 1 16 3 255 34 356 56 412
STS 51 53 26 12 10 10 45 81 132 156 288
AS 53 82 188 28 0 5 48 34 289 149 438
OS 39 26 47 4 0 0 1 0 87 30 117

TOTAL 227 184 277 45 29 19 386 152 919 400 1319

%
17.21 13.95 21.00 3.41 2.20 1.44 29.26 11.52 69.67 30.33  

31.16% 24.41% 3.64% 40.79% 100%
59.21% 40.79% 100%

EX = Executive, SU = Strategy Execution Unique Authority, MP = Management Professional, STS = Supervisory 
Technical Support, AS= Advanced/ Technical Support Services, OS = Operational Services    

The	staff	profile	of	Armscor,	excluding	Armscor	Dockyard,	as	at	31	March	2011	per	broad	band,	race	and	gender,	is	indicated	
below.

ARMSCOR STAFF PROFILE EXCLUDING ARMSCOR DOCKYARD

Broad Band
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL GRAND

M F M F M F M F M F TOTAL
EX 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 1 5
SU 11 4 1 0 3 1 35 3 50 8 58
MP 66 18 12 1 16 3 249 34 343 56 399
STS 50 53 14 12 10 10 35 80 109 155 264
AS 46 79 17 20 0 4 6 28 69 131 200
OS 36 26 3 2 0 0 0 0 39 28 67

TOTAL 212 181 47 35 29 18 326 145 614 379 993

%
21.35 18.23 4.73 3.52 2.92 1.81 32.83 14.60 61.83 38.17  

37.58% 8.26% 4.73% 47.43% 100%
52.57% 47.43% 100%

EX = Executive, SU = Strategy Execution Unique Authority, MP = Management Professional, STS = Supervi-
sory Technical Support, AS= Advanced/ Technical Support Services, OS = Operational Services

 AGE PROFILE OF ARMSCOR EMPLOYEES

The	age	profile	of	ARMSCOR	employees	is	as	in	the	histogram	below.

The ageing workforce remains one of the human resources challenges for the organisation. The histogram indicates that the 
age category with the highest number of employees is the category 51 to 55 years of age (254 employees or 19.26% of the total 
workforce). The average age is at 45, with majority (40% at 51 and above).
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5.1.2 PROGRAMMES

5.1.2.1 Employment Equity (EE)

In the year under review, the organisation embarked on a 
drive to revitalise its commitment to employment equity. 
As a result, it has re-established the Employment Equity 
Committee (EEC). Members were inducted accordingly, and 
a thorough process which involved the EEC members was 
undertaken through focus groups in setting the organisation’s 
new EE plan and numerical targets. The plan is yet to be 
approved by the Management Board.

An audit of universal access for people with disabilities 
was conducted. This was followed by disability awareness 
sessions for employees. 

As employment equity is part of the organisation’s overall 
human resources strategy and a key transformation 
imperative, an external service provider was sourced 
to review all HR policies in terms of the EE code of good 
practices. A plan co-driven by HR that includes the EEC was 
put	in	place	to	address	the	issues	identified	during	the	said	
policy review. 

5.1.2.2 Transformation

Transformation remains one of the key focus areas in the 
organisation. One of the strategic objectives of human 
resources is to transform the organisation in accordance 
with	the	Employment	Equity	requirements	so	as	to	reflect	the	
demographics of the population. 

An Employment Equity Committee was established to 
support the transformation drive.  The agreed Employment 
Equity Plan is monitored and reviewed annually.

Profile	movement	since	mid	1990’s	

•	 The	 percentage	 of	 black	 employees	 has	 grown	
from 20% in March 1996 to 52,57% by March 2011.      
(Figures exclude the Dockyard.) 

•	 The	 percentage	 female	 employees	 have	 grown	
from 34,49% in March 1999 to 38,69% in March 
2010 and employees with degrees in March 2011 to 
38,17%. 

Transformation: Targets 2010/11

Performance	 in	 this	 regard	 is	 driven	 by	 specific	 targets,	
action plans and continuous measurement and monitoring. 
The	specific	targets	and	achievements	during	the	year	were	
as follows:

Target: minimum of 82% of all new appointees in Armscor to 
be black.

Actual performance: 100% of all new appointments were 
from the black group.

Target:  minimum of 22% of external appointees in the 
technical functional group to be women.

Actual performance: 20% of external appointees in the 
technical functional group were women.
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Target: minimum of 65% of external appointees in the non-
technical functional group to be women.

Actual performance:  56,25% of external appointees in the 
non-technical functional group were women.

Target:  minimum of 30% of employees in the broad band 
Supervisory and Technical Support (STS) and above to be 
women. 

Actual performance: 30,30% of employees in the broad 
band STS and above are women.

5.1.2.3 Cultural Audit and Employee Satisfaction Survey

Following the outcome of the Cultural Audit and Employee 
Satisfaction Survey conducted early in 2010 by an external 
service provider, an Action Plan was developed to address 
the	issues	identified	during	the	audit	and	survey.	Most	of	the	
activities were completed, whilst others are monitored on an 
ongoing basis.  

5.1.2.4 Skills development

Armscor continued with actions to retain, obtain and 
develop the skills to achieve the organisational objectives. 
For this reason, skills development remained an important 
focus area.  A number of initiatives were embarked on in 
this area, namely:

5.1.2..4.1 Adult Basic Education and Training (ABET)

Armscor provided Adult Basic Education and Training to 
fifteen	(15)	Armscor	and	five	other	(i.e.	SANDF)	personnel.	

The programme comprises the following learning areas: 

•	 fundamentals

•	 compulsory	

	•	 elective

All these courses complete the ABET	 qualification.	 Some	
ABET learners participated in the fundamental learning 
areas only, namely numeracy (Maths) and communication 
(literacy).  The numeracy and literacy do not ensure that 
ABET learners will be able to rise above menial chores or 
even	NQF	level	1	(ABET	level	4)	qualification.	As	a	result,	
these	become	insufficient	due	to	its	academic	orientation.		

The ABET programme has therefore been extended to 
provide training in useful business-related skills, such as basic 
computer skills, telephone etiquette, etc. The programme 
is	 resourceful	 and	 has	 proven	 to	 be	 beneficial	 to	 both	 the	
organisation and employees, as most employees who were 
on the programme were promoted to better positions.

Managers acknowledge the capabilities of these employees 
who have acquired work experience to further develop their 
skills through the recognition of prior learning (RPL) process. 
This provides an opportunity for these disadvantaged adults 
to be integrated into the mainstream business activities.

5.1.2.4.2 Talent Development Programme

Armscor has developed a number of strategies and tools 
to rejuvenate itself, to source and retain critical skills and 
capabilities. One of these tools, is the Talent Development 
Programme (TDP). The TDP provides opportunities for newly 
qualified	graduates,	typically	from	designated	groups,	to	gain	
meaningful experience in Armscor’s work environment.  

The incumbents are contracted for a maximum period of two 
years, during which time they gain work experience whilst on 
a formal coaching programme.

In	the	past	financial	year,	17	incumbents	participated	in	the	
programme. All 17 were from the Black group (16 African 
and 1 Indian); 12 were males and 5, females. Seven 
were appointed in full-time positions on completion of the 
programme.

African Indian Total
Male 11 1 12
Female 5 5

17
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have	been	identified	for	the	organisation	using	a	specialised	
skills needs analysis tool. An external service provider 
was	 identified	 through	 the	 tender	 process	 to	 present	 an	
Armscor Senior Management and Leadership Development 
Programme. The programme commenced in May 2011.

5.1.2.6 Universities visited by ARMSCOR for sourcing 
bursary students

As part of the activity to address the shortage of critical, 
scarce skills within the organisation, as well as to encourage 
young South Africans to consider careers within Armscor and 
the Defence Industry, Armscor embarked on a campaign to 
present and introduce the organisation as the employer of 
choice. 

One of the ways to achieve this, was to visit and participate in 
Open	Days,	“Fairs	and	Expo’s”	of	identified	universities	who	
had faculties that will address the skills shortages in Armscor.  
In the year under review, Armscor visited universities in 
Gauteng, Free State and the Western Cape. Universities in 
Limpopo and Eastern Cape will be visited in the next reporting 
period. 

5.1.2.7 Armscor Mentorship Programme

A	Mentorship	programme	was	identified	and	will	be	presented	
by an external service provider specialising in mentor and 
protégé	 training.	The	first	presentation	 is	scheduled	 for	 the	
beginning	of	the	new	financial	year.

5.1.3 CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT 

As a truly South African organisation, Armscor believes in 
development and nation building, as well as in improving the 
quality of lives of our people – a duty and responsibility it 
embraces fully. 

African Total
Male 3 3
Female 5 5

8
 5.1.2.4.3 E-learning

Within	 the	 past	 financial	 year,	 Armscor	 has	 developed	
numerous courses to satisfy the e-learning requirement. 
These courses have been divided into a number of learning 
programmes:

•	 Survival	 courses,	 which	 include	 the	 History	 and	
Role of Armscor, Rank and Insignia Medals, Culture 
of the Military and Military Protocol, Force Design, 
and	History	of	Conflict.	

•	 Combat	 Readiness	 courses,	 which	 include	
the Systems Hierarchy, Standardization and 
specifications.	

•	 Contract	 Management	 courses,	 which	 include	
Contract law 1 and Contract law 2 and Source 
Selection.  

•	 Technical	 courses,	 which	 include	 Engineering	
Management	and	Configuration	Management.

Further courses are being developed.

Courses are delivered to personnel via an intranet-based 
Learner Management System (LMS).  The LMS tracks the 
learner’s progress and facilitates the learning process.   It also 
utilizes off-the-shelf courses for generic skills like business 
management and computer skills.

E-learning has good acceptance as a viable means of 
skills development, as evidenced by the growing number of 
learners enrolling for the various courses.  Some courses 
are, however, still presented using the traditional classroom 
delivery methods.

5.1.2.5 ARMSCOR Senior Management and Leadership 
Development Programme 

The critical leadership and management competencies 

In addition to the Talent Development Programme, Armscor 
also utilises the Armscor Bursary Scheme as a secondary 
tool to source and retain critical skills and to serve as a feeder 

for the recruitment of new talent.  Bursaries for engineering 
careers were granted to eight students, all from the Black 
group. Of these, 5 were females and 3 males.
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In line with the Armscor’s Corporate Investment (CSI) 
Strategy, Armscor had adopted Phelindaba Secondary 
School in Atteridgeville with the aim of assisting learners from 
this disadvantaged community improve the school’s matric 
results in Mathematics, Maths Literacy, Physical Science, 
Life Sciences and English. This intervention model adopted 
is in line with the Dinaledi Programme of the Department of 
Education. 

A	five	–	year	cooperation	agreement	between	Armscor	and	
Phelindaba Secondary School was signed in 2008. In terms 
of this agreement, Armscor’s obligations to the school are as 
follows: 

•	 Availing	financial	resources,	as	approved	in	the	CSI	
budget

•	 A	 learner	 education	 programme	 to	 enhance	
improved performance in  Mathematics, Physical 
Science, English, Accounting and Geography 

•	 Other	educational	interventions	aimed	at	improving	
learners’ performance in the above- mentioned 
subjects 

For Armscor, being socially responsible means that it is 
involved fully and treats its involvement not as a charity, but 
as an investment in time, skills and money which can be 
measured. The intervention has paid off, the school obtained 
an 88.6% pass rate in the 2010 academic year from a 38% 
pass rate in 2009. 

In July 2010 Armscor employees, under the leadership of 
the Acting CEO, Mr. Sipho Mkwanazi joined the world in 
supporting and celebrating Nelson Mandela Day. Mandela 
Day is a call to action for people all the over the world, to take 
responsibility for making the world a better place, by devoting 
67 minutes of their time to changing the world for the better, 
in a small gesture of solidarity with humanity. To this end, 
Armscor employees embarked on a “clean – up campaign” 
at Phelindaba Secondary School, re- painting the school 
hall	 and	 fixing	 and	 repairing	 areas	 that	 obviously	 needed	
maintenance. 

Armscor also participated in the “CELL C Take - a - Girl Child 
to Work”. Gerotek contributed towards the Armscor Corporate 
Social Investment and AAD Youth Development Programme 
by hosting this event. Eighty grade 12 students were exposed 
to career opportunities in the engineering environment in 
which Armscor, Denel and the CSIR play major roles. 

A contribution was made to the Kalafong Provincial Hospital 
through the implementation of an integrated service excellence 
model in order to support the hospital’s management team in 
striving towards service excellence.

5.2 LOGISTICS AND MATÉRIEL SUPPORT 

5.2.1 AB Logistics Freight and Travel 

AB Logistics Freight renders logistical services in support of 
the SANDF, the South African Defence Industry (SADI) and 
Armscor’s Acquisition function. 



42
ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11

AB Logistics Freight is a registered and accredited customs 
clearing agent with the South African Revenue Service 
(SARS); is a member of the International Federation of 
Freight Forwarders Associations (FIATA) as well as the South 
African Association of Freight Forwarders (SAAFF). 

In June 2010, AB Logistics Freight obtained an accreditation 
as a service provider from the SA Council for the Non- 
Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction. AB Logistics 
Freight has also maintained their registration as a “Regulated 
Agent” in terms of the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) Part 108 
regulations.

In terms of the Explosives Act and the Firearms Control Act 
of 2000, AB Logistics Freight has maintained its registration 
as a registered transporter of hazardous cargo, weapons and 
ammunition. It therefore continues to offer this specialised 
service to the SANDF, Armscor, South African Police Service 
(SAPS) and the defence industry. 

AB Logistics Freight is responsible for various logistical 
services associated with the supply chain such as:

•	 packaging

•	 freight	forwarding

•	 chartering

•	 road	transportation

•	 customs	 formalities	 and	 complying	 with	 the	 various	
regulatory requirements during the importation and 
exportation processes. 

All these services are vital to the Armscor Acquisition process, 
the SANDF and the South African defence industry.

The nature of the commodities handled must comply with 
the National Arms Control Regulations and / or the South 
African Council for the Non-Proliferation of Weapons of Mass 
Destruction.

Through its international networks and capabilities, 
AB Logistics Freight has extended its specialised 
services to other foreign defence forces. The advent 
of democracy and the international acceptance of the 
South African political system have resulted in joint 

military exercises being held between the SANDF and 
foreign defence forces. The logistical support provided 
to the SANDF is also provided to foreign defence forces 
when they participate in joint military exercises.

During the year under review, AB Logistics Freight rendered 
logistical support for several military exercises held in South 
Africa, such as the Dutch Ministry of Defence, Switzerland’s 
Rheinmetall Air Defence, the Swedish exercise “Springbok”, 
and the return of the German exercise “Good Hope IV” 
equipment. 

Assistance was also rendered to exhibitors during the 
Africa Aerospace Defence (AAD 2010) exhibition. Given AB 
Logistics Freight capability, competencies, accreditation and 
its international reputation of delivering exceptional customer 
service, it was a natural choice and was contracted to render 
logistical support services during AAD 2010. 

During the FIFA 2010 World Cup soccer tournament, AB 
Logistics Freight was tasked to execute the distribution of 
the equipment to various destinations, enabling the SAAF to 
maintain its air capability during the course of the event.

During the year under review, AB Logistics Freight experienced 
growth in the requests for its services from foreign clients and 
shipping lines to assist them with the transit of controlled 
items through South Africa into neighboring countries. 

Based on its diverse services and experience, AB Logistics 
Freight is better placed to offer integrated logistical services. 
It also provides transit warehousing facilities, marine 
insurance, customs tariff consultancy and computerised 
clearances linked to the SARS electronic data interchange 
system as well as costing facilities. 

The shipment of military commodities and explosives has 
become more complex due to limited shipping opportunities 
and the impact of sea piracy, which is a threat to future 
shipments of military and military-related cargo. AB Logistics 
Freight is therefore constantly exploring new shipping routes 
at cost-effective rates. 

AB Logistics Freight has played an important role in the 
shipping and customs clearance processes of the Strategic 
Defence Packages. As the deliverables against the different 
programmes	have	been	completed,	 the	final	 reconciliations	
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of	the	various	projects	are	now	in	progress	in	order	to	finalise	
any outstanding liabilities with SARS Customs.      

AB Logistics Travel is a registered member of the International 
Air Transport Association (IATA) and the Association of South 
African Travel Agents (ASATA). Its main business is to provide 
a 24-hour travel service to assist the Department of Defence 
(DOD), Armscor and its contractors with all their defence and 
project-related travel arrangements. AB Logistics Travel was 
entrusted with the handling of the bulk of travel arrangements 
of various stakeholders during the AAD 2010 exhibition. The 
entire	travel	service	is	rendered	through	the	offices	situated	at	
Thaba	Tshwane,	Simon’s	Town	and	Armscor	Head	Office.	AB	
Logistics Travel offers a spectrum of travel services aimed at 
ensuring peace of mind for business executives during their 
domestic and international travels. 

5.2.2 Armscor Defence Asset Management Centre 
(ADAC)

The Armscor Defence Asset Management Centre (ADAC) 
provides support services to the Chief of Logistics of the 
Department of Defence and to Armscor’s Acquisition function 
in the following areas:

•	 Ammunition	Marking	and	Packaging	Services

•	 DOD	Stock	and	Asset	Management	Services

•	 Intellectual	Property	Management	Support	(IPMS)

•	 Document	Digitising	Services

5.2.2.1 Ammunition Marking and Packaging

Markings are applied to ammunition and its packaging for the 
following reasons:

•	 To	enable	the	rapid	and	accurate	identification	of		
 ammunition by the user.

•	 To	ensure	that	the	correct	nature	and	type	of			
 ammunition is issued to the user and is correctly  
 handled, stored and transported accordingly.

•	 To	provide	information	on	the	manufacture	and		
	 filling	details	of	explosives	in	order	to	assist		 	
	 inspection,	proofing	and	testing	requirements.

Armscor contributed to the development and implementation 
of ammunition and explosives marking policy of the 
Department of Defence, training manuals and handbooks as 
well	as	packaging	specifications.

These Training Manuals and Handbooks on Ammunition 
and Explosives Marking will be updated as and when policy 
changes occur.

The Ammunition Marking and Packaging Services Team 
of Armscor is part of the current Munitions Defects Centre 
committee. The Munitions Defects Centre provides training 
to selected SANDF personnel.

5.2.2.2 Department of Defence Stock and Asset 
Management Services

•	 Department of Defence Stock Management   
 Services

The service facilitates access to stock at all Department 
of Defence stores through the Computer Aided Logistic 
Management Information System (CALMIS).  The CALMIS 
System is also utilised for accounting of stock between 
Armscor and Department of Defence. Furthermore, this 
service	 provides	 for	 efficient	 access	 to	 Department	 of	
Defence stock by the Department of Defence and Armscor 
Programme Managers for research and development as well 
as maintenance projects. 

•	 Asset	Management

Department of Defence Acquisition project assets managed 
by Armscor are accounted for in a central asset register.  
These	 project	 assets	 are	 physically	 verified	 on	 an	 annual	
basis.		During	these	verifications,	items	for	disposal	as	well	
as	damages	and	losses	are	identified.	

5.2.2.3 Intellectual Property Management Support 
Services (IPMS)

Armscor acts as the custodian of Department of Defence 
intellectual property documentation in its possession. Data 
and information integrity are ensured by applying sound 
configuration	management	principles.
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•	 Document	Digitising	Services

The digitising service function digitises large volumes of 
Department of Defence related documents, manuals, reports 
and drawings, which were traditionally kept in paper format. 
It is also responsible for facilitating the electronic distribution 
of data and information to Armscor clients and stakeholders.

5.2.2.4 Defence Matériel Disposal

Armscor’s Defence Matériel Disposal (DMD) is mandated to 
dispose excess and obsolete defence matériel on behalf of 
the Department of Defence. The defence matériel includes 
ammunition, aircraft, spares, vessels, land and/or air-based 
equipment.

The disposal of the defence matériel is carried out in 
accordance with the requirements of the Department of 
Defence and regulatory authorities such as the National 
Conventional Arms Control Committee (NCACC) and the 
National Non-Proliferation Council (NPC).

During the year under review, Armscor through the sale of 
disposal stock generated R44, 8 million for the Department 
of Defence. This was generated mainly through the sale to 
Denel Aviation of the phased out Cheetah C aircraft system.   

Armscor continued to successfully manage defence matériel 
disposal warehouses at the following locations; Cape Town, 
Durban, Thaba Tshwane, Waterkloof, Bloemfontein and 
Wallmansthal.

In support of the DOD, Armscor established and managed 
an	 eNaTIS	 registration	 office	 for	 the	 registration	 of	military	
vehicles	destined	for	disposal.This	office	is	linked	via	TASIMA	
to the eNaTIS vehicle registration system of the Department 
of Transport.

5.2.2.5 Defence Export Support

Armscor is mandated to provide marketing support to the 
South African Defence Industry (SADI) in respect of defence 
matériel, in consultation with the DOD and the defence 
industry. The following functions were performed during the 
period under review: 

The Department of Trade and Industry (dti), together with 
Department of Defence, Aerospace, Maritime and Defence 
Industries Association of South Africa (AMD), Armscor 
and other stakeholders formulated a Customised Sector 
Programme (CSP) for the defence sector.  This CSP will 
now	be	incorporated	into	the	final	Defence	Industry	Support	
Strategy.  

The Defence Export Support Strategy was formulated and 
approved in consultation with the Department of Defence and 
AMD. This strategy seeks to improve amongst other things, 
the SADI footprint on the African continent.

In March 2011, the annual Defence Industry Day was 
organised by the DOD and supported by Armscor, AMD and 
the dti. The Deputy Minister of Defence and Military Veterans 
and the Secretary for Defence participated in this event.  

 
Armscor as the lead partner, together with AMD, the Civil 
Aviation Association of Southern Africa (CAASA) and 
supported by the Department of Defence, successfully 
organised the biggest AAD show thus far. 

AAD is a premier defence and civil aviation exhibition on the 
African continent.  AAD 2010 took place in Cape Town, Air 
Force Base Ysterplaat during September 2010. There were 
350 exhibitors, representing 31 countries, which attracted 
13,000 trade visitors, 80,000 visitors on the public days, 325 
accredited journalist and 60 VIP delegations representing 16 
countries.  91 Aircraft were on static display.
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5.2.2.6 Shows and Exhibitions

Armscor is responsible for promoting defence exports by 
assisting SADI in getting exposure through participation at 
international shows and exhibitions. 

Through	 the	 increased	 financial	 contribution	 of	 the	 dti,	
more South African companies were able to participate at 
international exhibitions.

Armscor successfully coordinated the participation of SADI at 
the following international defence exhibitions: 

•	 DSA	2010	in	Malaysia	during	April	2010.		

•	 MILIPOL	2010	in	Qatar	during	October	2010.	

•	 INDODEFENCE	2010	in	Indonesia	during		 	
November 2010.  

•	 IDEX	2011	in	Abu	Dhabi,	United	Arab	Emirates		
during February 2011.

Armscor compiled a SADI capability promotional DVD which 
has been used at several international exhibitions.  Country 
studies were also compiled for the Ministry of Defence and 
Military Veterans and the Department of Defence indicating 
business in regions/countries where the SADI exhibited their 
capabilities.

5.2.2.7 Defence Equipment & Personnel Support (DEPS)

Armscor facilitates Department of Defence’s support to the 
defence industry by facilitating the SANDF’s personnel, 
equipment (matériel) and facilities available to assist in the 
marketing initiatives of the SADI. 

5.2.2.8 Defence International Co-operation

Armscor provides an industrial ambassadorship service 
to the SADI by interacting with military attachés (both 
Foreign Military Attachés in South Africa and South African 
Military Attachés in international posts), foreign industry 

representatives and diplomats in support of SADI initiatives. 

During the period under review, Armscor supported the 
Department of Defence with the coordination of the USA- and 
UK Defence Committees (DEFCOMS). In addition Armscor 
coordinated a visit by the new Director of International 
Relations of Direction Générale de l’Armement (DGA). As a 
result of this visit a seminar between the defence industries 
of France and South Africa is being planned.

Armscor also assisted in the coordination of a RSA/USA 
symposium that was held in September 2010. This led to the 
signing of a cooperation agreement between AMD and the 
USA National Defence Industries Association (NDIA).

5.3 QUALITY AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

5.3.1 Quality Management System Maintenance 

Two ISO 9001: 2008 surveillance audits were conducted by 
the SABS on 13 May 2010 and 18 November 2010. No major 
findings	 were	 raised	 during	 the	 audits	 and	Armscor’s	 ISO 
9001: 2008	certification	was	confirmed.

5.3.2 Arms Control 

Armscor acknowledges that to be an effective acquisition 
agency of the Department of Defence, it must not only comply 
with international law and arms control legislation but also 
support the national arms control authority to improve arms 
control legislation. The arms control legislations facilitate the 
flow	of	defence	materiel	for	the	benefit	of	the	South	African	
defence industry.

To this end, Armscor played a critical role, through the 
Department of Defence in reviewing the Regulations to be 
published in terms of the National Conventional Arms Control 
Amendment Act, Act No 73 of 2008. 

Armscor also believes that a defence industry that is 
mature	with	 regard	 to	arms	control	will	be	 to	 its	benefit.	As	
a result, Armscor has conducted arms control awareness 
presentations to its internal stakeholders, its contractors and 
the defence industry in general. 
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In the year under review, seven cardinal programmes and 
seven contractors were audited to make sure that the national 
arms control regulations and those of supplier countries are 
adhered to when acquiring defence materiel. 

5.3.3 Information and Communication Technology

The Board of Directors approved the short - term plan 
Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Strategy. 
The strategy included concluding the outsourcing contract 
with T-Systems with a view of having a hybrid IT services 
management model with more emphasis on in - sourcing. 

The outsourcing contract expires on 31 March 2012 and it is 
therefore imperative that arrangements are made in order to 
minimize interruptions of IT services during the changeover 
period. After numerous engagements with T-systems a 
framework for the proposal has been agreed and this proposal 
from T-Systems will form the basis for further negotiations. 

The Board requested that as part of the short term plan for 
ICT strategy, an international Information Technology (IT) 
benchmarking exercise must be undertaken at organizations 
similar to Armscor. A delegation led by a member of the Board 
(Mr LW Mosiako) visited Förvarets Materielverket (FMV), 
the Swedish Defence Materiel Administration in November 
2010. The results of this exercise will assist in directing the 
ICT Strategy in terms of how IT should be managed, funded 
and positioned in Armscor.  Preparations are underway to 
also visit the Defence Materiel Organization of Australia and 
possibly the Indian Department of Defence. 

5.3.4 Safety, health and environment

Armscor’s operations strive to achieve continual improvement 
in the management of safety, health and environment and 
seek to prevent, mitigate, reduce and offset risks of its 
activities. Armscor aims to minimise the environmental impact 
of its operations, conserve biodiversity, drive sustainable 
improvements and operate in accordance to the acceptable 
national standards.

The	 identification	and	assessment	 of	 corporate	SHE	Risks	
has been captured into the Corporate Risk Register in order 
to provide a basis for assessing and improving management 
systems and mitigating risks.

This initiative has resulted in an average of 83.4% compliance 
in the Occupational Health and Safety Management System 
and 79.4% compliance in the Environmental Management 
System after auditing of the following sites during the 2010/11 
cycle:

Gerotek, Hazmat, Ergotech, Protechnik, Dockyard, 
Alkantpan,	Head	Office	Complex	and	 Institute	 for	Maritime	
Technology

Armscor Management Board reviewed its corporate policy 
and strategy on SHE to proactively manage and enhance 
workplace safety, health and the environment in which it 
operates. This corporate policy and strategy on SHE will 
be rolled out across the organisation to assess SHE legal 
compliance and effectively manage this environment.

Training and awareness in the SHE environment remained the 
main focus area during the past year and these interventions 
increased effectiveness at operational levels.

5.3.5 Broad – based black economic empowerment 
(BBBEE)

ARMSCOR is committed to the implementation of the national 
transformation objectives. The highlight was the approval of 
the revised BBBEE Practice. 

The tables below depict actual spending against targets set 
for the Armscor Operating Budget, Acquisition (SDA and 
GDA accounts), Dockyard and Armscor Defence Institutes. 
The tables also indicate what has been spent on Qualifying 
Small Enterprises, Exempted Enterprises, Black Owned 
Enterprises and Black Women Owned Enterprises against 
set targets.
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BUSINESS AREA TOTAL EXPENDITURE BBBEE TARGET BBBEE ACTUAL 2011* 

ARMSCOR

Operating Budget

100%

R18 126 367

70%

R12 688 457

107.16%

R19 424 714

ARMSCOR  Acquisition
100%

R5 583 020 920

40%

R2 233 208 368

69.76%

R3 894 847 998

ARMSCOR  Dockyard
100%

R45 849 319

55%

R25 217 125

69.48%

R31 856 052

ARMSCOR Defence

Institutes

100%

R97 534 962

55%

R53 644 229

68.40%

R66 710 386

*BBBEEE adjusted spending based on recognition levels of up to 135%

ARMSCOR Operating budget

CLASS TOTAL SPEND TOTAL BBBEE 
SPEND

BBBEE TARGET TOTAL BBBEE %

Qualifying Small
Enterprises

R  4 156 136 R5 422 303 10% 29.91%

Exempted Micro
Enterprises

R 6 344 575 R 6 812 685 10% 37.58%

>50% Black
Owned Enterprises

R 8 417 479 R 8 914 600 9% 49.18%

>30% Black-Women Owned
Enterprises

R 6 318 875 R 6 345 229 6% 35.01%
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ARMSCOR Acquisition

CLASS TOTAL SPEND TOTAL BBBEE 
SPEND

BBBEE TARGET TOTAL BBBEE %

Qualifying Small
Enterprises

R424 080 612 R431 444 653 10% 07.73%

Exempted Micro
Enterprises

R122 463 030 R114 119 805 10% 02.04%

>50% Black Owned
Enterprises

R127 625 692 R134 366 731 9% 02.41%

>30% Black-Women 
Owned Enterprises R64 313 520 R68 855 112 6% 01.23%

ARMSCOR Dockyard

CLASS TOTAL SPEND TOTAL BBBEE 
SPEND

BBBEE TARGET TOTAL BBBEE %

Qualifying Small 
Enterprises R20 578 224 R24 941 300 10% 54.40%

Exempted Micro 
Enterprises R3 548 004 R3 248 962 10% 07.09%

>50% Black Owned 
Enterprises R3 609 779 R3 919 828 9% 08.55%

>30% Black-Women 
Owned Enterprises R685 058 R775 508 6% 01.69%
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ARMSCOR Defence Institutes

CLASS TOTAL SPEND TOTAL BBBEE 
SPEND

BBBEE TARGET TOTAL BBBEE %

Qualifying Small 
Enterprises

R13 686 895 R15 586 208   10% 15.98%

Exempted Micro 
Enterprises

R19 078 161 R18 527 182 10% 19.00%

>50% Black Owned 
Enterprises

R 6 722 768 R 7 724 254 9% 08.12%

>30% Black-Women 
Owned Enterprises

R 1 099 498 R 1 271 745 6% 01.30%
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The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk 

Committee charter, and that is has discharged all of its responsibilities as contained therein.

Although the Armscor Board is accountable for the process of risk management and systems of internal control, 

these ongoing process are reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee for effectiveness.

The Audit and Risk Committee regularly reports to the Board on its activities as well as on all recommendations made 

in the execution of its responsibilities. 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied, based on the information and explanations given by management and 

the internal audit division, as well as through discussion with the Auditor-General on the result of their audits, that an 

adequate system of internal control is being maintained to:

•	 reduce the entity’s risk to an acceptable level;

•	 meet the business objectives of the group;

•	 ensure that the group’s assets are safeguarded; and

•	 ensure that the transactions undertaken are recorded in the entity’s records.

The Audit and Risk Committee has evaluated the annual financial statements  of the of the Armscor group for the 

year ended 31 March 2011 and considers that it complies, in all material respects, with the requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act  No 1 of 1999), as amended, as well as South Afrcan Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice.

The Audit and Risk Committee agrees that the adoption of the going concern premise is appropriate in preparing 

the annual financial statements.  It has therefore recommended the adoption of this annual report to the Board of 

Directors at its meeting on 3 August 2011.

...........................

MR EL BOROLE
CHAIRPERSON

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON ARMAMENTS 
CORPORATION OF SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of the Armaments Corporation of South 

Africa Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ report, as set out on pages 56 to 141. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial 

statements in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) 

and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies Act of South 

Africa, 1973 (Act No.61 of 1973), and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the preparation 

of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.  As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and section 4 of the 

Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 

and separate financial statements based on my audit.

4.  I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in 

Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated and 

separate financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 

consolidated and separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements.

6.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Opinion

7.  In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011, and its statement of comprehensive 

income and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and in the manner required by the PFMA and Companies Act of South Africa. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

8.  In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 

2010, I include below my findings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 60 to 84 and material non-compliance 

with laws and regulations applicable to the public entity.

Predetermined objectives

9.  There are no material findings on the annual performance report.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

10.  There were no findings concerning material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the public entity.

INTERNAL CONTROL

In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 

2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

internal control. There are no significant deficiencies in internal control that resulted in a qualification of the auditor’s opinion on 

the financial statements and findings on predetermined objectives and material non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Pretoria

29 July 2011
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DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Board recognises and acknowledges its responsibility for the group’s internal control systems.

Management is responsible for preparing the Annual Financial Statements and the Group Annual Financial Statements in 

accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices.

The Directors, supported by the Audit and Risk Committee, are satisfied that management introduced and maintained adequate 

internal controls to ensure that dependable records exist for the preparation of the financial statements, to safeguard the assets 

of the group and to ensure that all transactions are duly authorised.

Against this background the Directors of Armscor accept responsibility for the financial statements.  The information on pages 57 

to 141 was approved by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2011.

...............................................

LT GEN (RET) MM MOTAU
CHAIRMAN
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Term of office of Directors

Board 
Member

Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
Expiry

Date of Re-
Appointment

Date of 
Expiry

Date of Re-
appointment

(2nd Term)
Date of Expiry 

of 2nd Term
Term Serve 
Extended

Dr PS Molefe 1 October 
2004

30 
September 
2007

1 October 200 
(Extension)

31 March 
2008 (Expiry 
of Extension)

1 April 2008 
(Re-appointment: 
2nd Term)

31 March 2011
2 Terms 

Mr RP Meyer 1 October 
2004

30 
September 
2007

1 October 
2007
(Extension)

31 March 
2008 (Expiry 
of Extension)

1 April 2008 
(Re-appointment: 
2nd Term)

31 March 2011
2Terms 

Ms R Msiza 1 May 2008 30 April 
2011 - - - - 1 Term plus 

1 month

Mr EL Borole 1 May 2008 30 April 
2011 - - - - 1 Term plus 

1 month

Adv V 
September 1 May 2008 30 April 

2011 - - - - 1 Term plus 
1 month

Mr LW 
Mosiako 1 May 2008 30 April 

2011 - - - - 1 Term plus 
1 month

Mr SA Msibi 1 May 2008 30 April 
2011 - - - - 1 Term plus 

1 month

Mr JS 
Mkwanazi 
(Acting CEO)

7 January 
2010 Appointment is link to his position as an Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr JG Grobler 11 September 
2008 Appointment is linked to his position as the Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Adv CVV Ramphele 01 October 2009 31 January 2011 Contracted Company Secretary 

Ms MM Molepo 01 February 2011 31 March 2011 Acting Company Secretary

AUDITORS 

Auditor-General

BANKERS

ABSA Bank

REGISTRATION  NUMBER

1968/008611/06

REGISTERED OFFICE 

370 Nossob Street

ErusmusKloof Extension 4

Private Bag X337

0001 Pretoria

COMPANY SECRETARY 

Adv NB Senne

370 Nossob Street

ErusmusKloof Extension 4

Private Bag X337

0001 Pretoria

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

INTRODUCTION

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited 

(Armscor) is a statutory body, established in terms of the 

Armaments Development and Production Act (Act No 57 of 

1968), and its existence was continued in the Armaments 

Corporation of South Africa, Limited Act (Act No 51 of 2003), 

as amended.

Armscor is listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms of the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended 

(PFMA).  It is further regulated by the Regulations issued in 

terms of the PFMA.

This report is therefore presented in terms of the provisions 

of the relevant provisions of the PFMA. It provides an 

overview on the performance of Armscor, measured against 

performance targets that the Corporation had set itself for the 

financial year under review.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board of Directors adheres to the principle of “apply 

or explain” as set out in the King III Report on Corporate 

Governance. It further applies the Protocol on Corporate 

Governance in the Public Sector in the manner that it 

conducts its affairs. The Board of Directors provide ethical 

leadership to the Corporation and accordingly oversees the 

management of the assets of the Corporation diligently and 

in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, represented 

by the Department of Defence and Military Veterans, is 

the sole shareholder of the Corporation. The shareholder 

relationship is managed, amongst others, through a 

Shareholder Compact setting out the deliverables agreed 

between the Corporation and the Department and supported 

by a Corporate Plan, which ensures that the Corporation’s 

targets, measures and outputs are clearly articulated to 

enhance the Board’s accountability.

During the year under review, the Board continued to 

assess the existing acquisition processes, identified and 

addressed weaknesses that might expose the Corporation 

and Government to risk to ensure accountability and 

integrity. The Board ensured that this is done in accordance 

with an approved risk strategy and plan, so that it remains 

accountable for the oversight of risk management within the 

Corporation.

Good corporate governance requires that any organisation in 

conducting its business should take into account the policy, 

legislative and other environmental imperatives within its 

operating environment. 

During the year under review Armscor prioritised human 

resources strategy which put in place clear targets with 

corresponding plan of action for transformation, succession 

planning and development of staff. It also ensured that 

stakeholder relations are managed effectively and efficiently 

for the benefit of all stakeholders.

The Board, as the Accounting Authority has delegated the 

Corporation’s day-to-day management to the Management 

Board under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. This 

is clearly set out in the approved Delegation of Authority to 

ensure Board oversight over Management activity. To provide 

the necessary link between the Board and Management, both 

the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer 

are ex-officio members of the Board.
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DETAILS OF ATTENDEES OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 2010/2011

Names
Board of Directors

Meetings

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Meetings

Human Resources 
Committee

Meetings

Dr PS Molefe 10 out of 11 Non-member Non-member

Ms R Msiza 10 out of 11 Non-member 3 out of 4

Mr RP Meyer 10 out of 11 3 out of 4 Non-member

Mr EL Borole 11 out of 11 4 out of 4 Non-member

Mr SA Msibi 11 out of 11 Non-member 4 out of 4

Mr LW Mosiako 9 out of 11 Non-member 4 out of 4

Ms V September 11 out of 11 Non-member 3 out of 4

Mr JS Mkwanazi (Acting CEO) 10 out of 11 4 out of 4 2 out of 2

Mr JG Grobler (CFO) 11 out of 11 4 out of 4 Non-member

EXTERNAL MEMBERS

Ms Medupe Non-member 4 out of 4 Non-member

Mr RD Marule Non-member 3 out of 4 Non-member

COMPANY SECRETARY

Adv. CVV Ramphele¹ 9 out of 9 3 out of 3 2 out of 2

Ms MM Molepo² 2 out of 2 1 out of 1

¹Contracted Company Secretary from 1 October 2009 to 31 January 2011

²Acting Company Secretary from 1 February 2011 to 31 March 2011
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Board Subcommittees

The Board of Directors has the following subcommittees to 

strengthen the Board’s oversight on the specific areas:

THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

This committee was chaired by a non-executive director 

and comprised of five members, three of whom were non-

executive directors and two were independent members, 

who have been brought in to the committee by virtue of the 

specialist skills and knowledge in accounting and finance. 

The committee operated under an approved charter, which 

is line with the King III Report on Corporate Governance 

and the provisions of the Companies Act No 71 of 2008, as 

amended. 

The committee is entitled, in accordance with its approved 

charter, to engage with the Auditor General and other external 

experts on any matter that it considers appropriate. 

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and 

internal and external auditors attended meetings of the 

committee by invitation. 

THE HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

The Human Resources Committee comprised of four non-

executive members, one of whom is the Chairperson of the 

Committee. During the year under review, the Committee 

amongst others devoted its energies to the development 

of a comprehensive human resources strategy for the 

Corporation, an appraisal and development of a supporting 

organisational structure and the appointment of a Chief 

Executive Officer.

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises non-executive 

members and is convened only under circumstances of 

extreme urgency, where the matter cannot be delayed until 

the scheduled board meeting. No executive committee 

meeting was held during the year under review.

DISQUALIFICATION OF ARMSCOR DIRECTORS

None of Armscor’s Board members are disqualified from 

serving as directors on any of the grounds contained in either 

the Companies Act, 1973 (as amended) or in the PFMA and 

its regulations.

REQUIREMENTS IN TERMS OF THE PROTOCOL 

ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN THE PUBLIC 

SECTOR

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure of the Corporation appears on 

page 5 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS REPORTED TO THE 

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

There were no significant events reported to the Executive 

Authority during the year under review.

LITIGATION 

During the reporting period under review, Armscor was 

involved in two civil matters and two labour matters. In one 

matter, action was instituted against Armscor for alleged 

breach of contract pertaining to a Value Added Tax (VAT) 

analytics agreement. In this matter, Armscor took an 

exception against the plaintiff’s summons. The exception 

was upheld by the Northern Gauteng High Court.  The parties 
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have now amended their papers and it is expected that the 

matter will be set down for hearing in 2012.

In the second matter, legal action was instituted against 

Armscor in the Civil Court of Lisbon in Portugal. The claim 

is for the recovery of commission in respect of a transaction 

which allegedly occurred in the late 1980’s. An additional party 

has joined these proceedings, resulting in significant delays 

in setting the matter down for a preliminary hearing.

In the first labour matter a former employee of Armscor 

obtained an award from the CCMA in respect of constructive 

dismissal.  The matter was referred by Armscor to the Labour 

Court for review.  The second labour matter pertains to two 

separate actions by one employee relating to promotion and 

demotion.  In the first instance the CCMA has found in favour 

of Armscor and the employee has referred the matter to the 

Labour Court for review.  In the second instance the award 

was in favour of the employee and Armscor has referred the 

matter to the Labour Court for review.

PROTOCOL FOR COMMUNICATION WITH 

SHAREHOLDER

The Executive Authority for Armscor is the Minister of 

Defence, who represents the shareholder. The Board as 

the Accounting Authority of the Corporation reports to the 

Minister of Defence.  Communication with the shareholder 

is channelled primarily through the office of the Chairman. 

In addition, ad hoc meetings were held between the Minister 

and the Chairman. Regular reporting was undertaken in 

terms of the Shareholder’s Compact, and additional ad hoc 

reports were also submitted.

GOING CONCERN

The Board has reviewed the group’s financial budgets for 

the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 and is satisfied 

that adequate resources exist to sustain the Corporations 

operations. Armscor is, furthermore, in discussion with the 

Department of Defence to ensure proper funding for the 

required functions to be performed. The directors, therefore, 

have no reason to believe that Armscor will not remain a 

going concern in the foreseeable future.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

As reflected in this report and financial statements, no 

material facts or significant circumstances which affect the 

financial position of this Corporation or group have arisen 

between the date of the balance sheet and the production 

date of this report. 

PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOALS

Operational objectives for the 2010/2011 financial 

year

The Armscor Three Year Integrated Corporate and Business 

Plan define two groups of Performance Indicators.  The first 

group addresses performance indicators to measure the 

execution of Armscor’s functions as defined in the Armscor Act 

and as agreed on in the SLA with the DoD while the second 

group measures the attainment of the strategic objectives of 

the group which include objectives such as Armscor’s Black 

Economic Empowerment (BEE) initiative, which is in support 

of government BBBEE Act and the transformation of Armscor 

to reflect the demographics of the country.

In addition to the above Armscor use an overall efficiency 

measure which is the cost of acquisition.  This measure 

reflects the ratio of actual acquisition cost versus the 

acquisition cost based on the total forecasted acquisition 

activities.  A goal of 5.9% was set for the 2010/2011 financial 
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year.  A result of 7.37% was achieved against actual, 

compared with 7.35% for the 2009/2010 period.  The goal 

for 2010/2011 was not fully achieved, however, because the 

total acquisition activities was reduced with R1 605.4m due 

to extension of milestone deliveries on acquisition projects, 

and requirements for R1 722m not received from the South 

African Defence Force.

Armscor’s subsidiary companies achieved a surplus of R8.2m 

of which Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd contributed a 

surplus of R11.7m against a set target of R1.2m loss. The 

loss of the property companies amounts to R3.5m, which 

consists of depreciation on buildings.

MEASUREMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST 

ARMSCOR GROUP CORPORATE OBJECTIVES (AS 

PER APPROVED CORPORATE PLAN)

 
ARMSCOR FUNCTION 

•	 Objectives	1	to	3

Measure the effectiveness of the acquisition function in terms 

of the Service Level Agreement between Armscor and the 

DOD.  The goal for the three acquisition categories is defined 

as follows:

•	 Contracts	to	be	placed	by	Armscor

Measure the commitment of funds against the formally 

planned value of commitment which is based on requirements 

received and confirmed as valid requirements from the 

DOD.

•	 Cash	flow	(Contractual	payments	made)

Cash flow would be measured against the formally planned 

cash flow in terms of achieved commitments for the financial 

year.

Objective 4 – Management of Defence Industrial 

Participation	(DIP)

Measure the execution of DIP obligations in terms of the SLA 

and in compliance with the Armscor Act.

Objective 5 - Management and execution of 

defence technology, research, test and evaluation 

requirements of the DOD 

Measure the effective execution by Armscor Defence 

Institutes of contractual milestones/deliveries as per orders 

received.

•	 ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective 1 - Human Resource Target

Measure the achievement of targets set to transform Armscor 

to reflect the demographic profile of the country and to 

assist Armscor in having access to manpower to execute its 

mandated activities.

Strategic	Objective	2	–	Funding	and	Growth

Measure the expenditure compliance and effort to secure 

sufficient funding to sustain the organisation.

Strategic	Objective	3	–	People	and	Capabilities

Measuring Armscor’s ability to attract and retain employees 

through a positive organizational environment.

Strategic Objective 4 – Broad based Black Economic 

Empowerment

Measure the spending in compliance with the BBBEE Act and 

Armscor’s BBBEE certification status.
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Strategic Objective 5 – Stakeholder Relationships 

Measure the relationships with stakeholders and Armscor’s 

compliance to good governance.

Strategic Objective 6 – Local Industry

Measure the support to the local industry.

Strategic Objective 7 – Operational Efficiency

Measure the operational efficiency of Armscor.
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COMBINED

ARMSCOR	FUNCTIONS:	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Objective 1:  CAT 1 Capital Defence Matériel Acquisition excluding strategic defence acquisition but including technology 
acquisition (Projects)

1.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds 
to be measured against 
the formally planned value 
of commitment which is 
based on requirements 
received and confirmed as 
valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 96.1% DOD requirements to the value of 
R444 979 million were received. 

Armscor committed R427 673 million of 
the above mentioned funds resulting in 
an achievement of 96.1% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

1.2 Cash Flow (contractual 
payments made)

Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year. (Cash flow 
is updated on ongoing 
basis with commitments 
during year and for changes 
beyond Armscor’s control).

90% 101.9% The agreed planned cash flow for the 
financial year in order to execute the 
orders placed amounted to R2 115 295 
million.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R2 156 222 million resulting 
in an achievement of 101.9% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

Objective 2:  Strategic Defence Acquisition (Strategic Defence Packages)

2.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds 
to be measured against 
the formally planned value 
of commitment which is 
based on requirements 
received and confirmed as 
valid requirements from the 
DOD. 

90% 99.89% DOD requirements to the value of 
R33 326 million were received. 

Armscor committed R33 291 million of the 
above mentioned funds resulting in an 
achievement of 99.89% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded
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COMBINED

ARMSCOR	FUNCTIONS:	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Objective 2:  Strategic Defence Acquisition (Strategic Defence Packages)

2.2 Cash Flow

Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year. (Cash flow 
is updated on ongoing 
basis with commitments 
during year and for changes 
beyond Armscor’s control).

90% 100.76% Formally planned cash flow for the 
financial year amounted to R1 114 614 
million.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R1 123 126 million resulting 
in an achievement of 100.76% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

Objective 3:  System support: Acquisition and Procurement (Operational funds)

3.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds to 
be measured against the 
formally planned value of 
commitment which is based 
on requirements received 
and confirmed as valid 
requirements from the DOD.

90% 97.92% DOD requirements received to the value 
of R1 067 190 million. 

Armscor committed R1 045 041 million 
of the above mentioned funds resulting 
in an achievement of 97.92% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

3.2 Cash Flow

Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year. (Cash flow 
is updated on ongoing 
basis with commitments 
during year and for changes 
beyond Armscor’s control).

90% 99.89% Formally planned cash flow for the 
financial year amounted to R2 682 705 
million.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R2 679 624 million resulting 
in an achievement of 99.89% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded
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ARMSCOR	FUNCTIONS:	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Objective 4:   Management of Defence Industrial Participation (DIP)

4.1 Value of DIP credits to 
be granted to overseas 
suppliers

R511m credits to 
be approved by        

2011-03-31

R1 583m DIP credits to the value of R1 583 million 
(309.69%) have been awarded during the 
2010/2011 financial year. 
 
The overachievement is due to the Gripen 
obligation being fully discharged 18 
months ahead of schedule.

Objective exceeded

Objective 5:  Management and execution of Defence Technology, Research, Test and Evaluation requirements of 
the Department of Defence

5.1 Armscor Defence Institutes 
to achieve contractual 
milestones / deliveries as 
per orders received from 
Armscor as per financial 
year.  90% completion of 
contractual milestones / 
deliveries at end of financial 
year. 

90% 95.97% Armscor Defence Institutes managed 
to deliver / render services to the value 
of R82 970 337 against the contractual 
milestones / deliveries of the orders 
received from Armscor with a value 
of R86 454 745. This results in an 
achievement of 95.97% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective 1: Human Resource Targets

1.1 Staff turnover in technical 
positions (excluding 
retirements)

< 4,5% 2.21% 15 resignations from technical positions 
for the year to date.

3 AS; 6 STS; 5 MP and 1 SU broad band 
level.

Objective exceeded

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 1: Human Resource Targets

1.2 Improve the demographic 
profile of Armscor to reflect 
the national and regional 
demographic profile

At least 82% 
of external 
appointees to be 
black

  

100% 100% of all external appointees (36 
appointments) were black.

Objective exceeded

At least 22% 
of  external 
appointments 
in the technical 
functional groups 
to be women

20% 20% of all external appointees in the 
technical functional groups were women. 
(20 appointments: 4 females - 2 MP; 
2 STS)

Objective not achieved

At least 65% 
of external 
appointments in 
the non-technical 
functional groups 
to be women.

56.25% 56.25% of all external appointees in the 
non-technical functional groups were 
women.

(16 appointments: 9 female – 1 SU; 
1 STS; 6 AS; 1 OS)

Objective not achieved

At least 30% of 
employees in 
the supervisory 
levels and above 
to be women.

28.93% 28.93% of all employees in the supervisory 
levels and above were women.

(764 STS and above: 221 females – 156 
STS; 56 MP; 8 SU; 1 EX)

Objective not achieved

1.3 Bursaries Grant bursaries 
to 6 tertiary level 
students in line 
with Armscor’s 
strategic 
manpower 
plans.

8 8 tertiary students were granted bursaries.

Objective exceeded

1.4 Talent Development 
Programme.

Have 12 trainees 
under the scheme

17 A total of 17 people went through the 
Talent Development Programme for the 
2010/2011 financial year.

Objective exceeded

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 2: Funding and Growth 

2.1 No over-expenditure 
on Armscor approved 
operational budget.

0% over 
expenditure

6.6% under 
expenditure

Total operating expenditure budgeted:

Planned: R870.7m

Total operating expenditure incurred:

Achieved: R813.3m

Objective exceeded

2.2 Reduction of budgeted deficit 
through additional funding 
/ cost reduction / efficiency 
improvements (2010/2011 
baseline – R61.6million)

5% reduction in 
approved 2010/11 

baseline

79.8% Approved budget:

Planned: R61.6m deficit

Achieved R12.4million deficit (excluding 
positive contribution from medical 
continuation fund)

Objective exceeded

Strategic Objective 3: People and Capabilities 

3.1 Employee satisfaction 
measurement

Determine 
baseline 

61.87% Baseline determined as 61.87%.

Objective achieved

3.2 Compliance with plan to align 
preferred corporate culture 
with current corporate culture

90% 95.82% 95.82% compliance as on 
31 March 2011.

Objective exceeded

3.3 Execution of development 
plans for identified 
successors for accelerated 
development in technical and 
critical skills areas

80% conformance 
to plans

93% 93% compliance as on 31 March 2011.

Objective exceeded

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 4: Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

4.1 Increase spending on BEE companies in terms of BBBEE Codes of Good Conduct as specified per category 
(based on recognition levels):

ARMSCOR:

4.1.1. Operating budget > 70% 107.16% Spending on the operating budget 
achieved 107.16% against a target of 70%.  
(Total purchases excluding parastatals is 
R18 126 367.  The total spent on BBBEE 
companies was R19 424 714). 

Objective exceeded 

4.1.1.1a.  Spend on QSE’s > 10% 29.91% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:    
R4 156 136

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 37.58% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on EME companies:     
R6 344 575

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.2   Spend on entities in 
which black designated 
groups have more than 
50% of economic interest. 

> 9% 49.18% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: 
R8 417 479

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.3   Spend on entities 
in which black women 
hold more than 30% of 
economic interest.

> 6% 35.01% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R6 318 875

Objective exceeded

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES:

4.1.2.  Operating budget 
(operating cost, discretionary 
cost of sales and capital 
acquisition).

> 55% 68.40% Spending on cost of sales, operating 
expenses and capital achieved 73.61%.  
The target was based on cost of sales, 
operating expenses and capital which 
amounted to R97 534 962 calculated on 
the ground rules for BBBEE spending. The 
total spent on BBBEE companies was R66 
710 386.

Objective exceeded 

4.1.2.1a.  Spend on QSE’s > 10% 15.98% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:  
R13 686 894.

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 19% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on EME companies:  
R19 078 161.

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.2   Spend on entities in 
which black designated 
groups have more than 
50% of economic interest. 

> 9% 8.12% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: 
R7 924 154.

There are not many entities in which 
black designated groups have more than 
50% of economic interest able to deliver 
the specialised required services and 
products to Armscor Defence Institutes. 
This has been elevated as a corporate 
risk.

Objective not achieved

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

4.1.2.3. Spend on entities in 
which Black women 
hold more than 30% of 
economic interest.

> 6% 1.30% Total spend: R97 543 962

Total BBBEE spend on entities in which 
Black women hold more than 30% of 
economic interest. R1 271 744

There are not many entities in which black 
woman hold more than 30% of economic 
interest able to deliver the specialised 
required services and products to Armscor 
Defence Institutes. This has also been 
elevated as a corporate risk.

Objective not achieved

DOCKYARD:

4.1.3.   Operating budget >  55% 69.48% Spending by Armscor Dockyard achieved 
69.48% against a target of 55%. Total 
expenditure of R45 849 319. The total 
spent on BBBEE companies was 
R31 856 052.

Objective exceeded

4.1.3.1a.  Spend on QSE’s  
 

> 10% 54.4% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:  
R20 578 224

Objective exceeded

4.1.3.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 7.09% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on EME companies:    
R3 548 004

Objective not achieved

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

4.1.3.2   Spend on entities in 
which black designated 
groups have more than 
50% of economic interest. 

> 9% 8.55% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: 
R3 609 779

Objective not achieved

4.1.3.3   Spend on entities 
in which black women 
hold more than 30% of 
economic interest

> 6% 1.69% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R685 058 

Objective not achieved

SDA & GDA ACCOUNTS:

4.1.4.   Special Defence Account 
and General Defence 
Account.

> 40% 69.76% Spending on the SDA and GDA accounts 
achieved 69.76% against a target of 40%. 
(The target refers to BBBEE expenditure 
as a percentage of total acquisition 
project expenditure. R5 583 020 920 is 
the net figure excluding exemptions for 
the year and the figure and the BBBEE 
expenditure was R3 894 847 998.)

Objective exceeded

BEE CERTIFICATION STATUS:

4.2 Improve Armscor’s BBBEE 
certification status.

Level 6 Level 7 Armscor’s certification status is on 
level 7.

Objective not achieved

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 5: Stakeholder Relationships

5.1 Stakeholder survey involving 
stakeholders (reputation 
index).

Determine baseline No baseline 
determined

Baseline can only be determined after 
completion of Stakeholder Strategy in 
July 2011.

Objective not achieved

5.2 Armscor to obtain unqualified 
audit report and not to receive 
negative audit report matters.

Unqualified report 
with not more 
than 3 audit 

report matters 
after final audit 
by the Auditor-

General

Unqualified audit 
opinion

Unqualified audit report with no audit 
report matters.

Objective achieved

Strategic Objective 6: Local Industry

6.1 Satisfaction survey Determine baseline Results of 
Defence Industry 
Satisfaction 
Survey:

•	 Exhibitions: 
89.85%

•	 Defence 
Equipment 
and 
Personnel 
Support: 
92.50%

A Defence Export Support Strategy was 
approved by the BOD on 2 February 
2011.  The Defence Industry Satisfaction 
Survey questionnaire was informed 
by the contents of this strategy.  The 
satisfaction survey was concluded in 
September 2010 and results released 
by Quality Department in March 2011.  
Results obtained from this survey will 
form a basis of the proposal for a baseline 
still to be considered by Management 
Board for approval by BOD.

Objective not achieved

6.2 Increase % of local industry 
spent in respect of Special 
Defence Account and 
General Defence Account 
managed by Armscor 
(increase based on previous 
year spending).

5% 12% Local spending was 82% (2010 – 70%) 
of total spending.  Local amount of 
R5.06bn (2010 – R4.9bn)

2010/11 Spending:                                           
82% on local suppliers – R5.06bn        
18% on foreign suppliers - R1.08bn

Figures include Dockyard orders / local 
orders and overseas orders.

Objective exceeded

Strategic Objective 7: Operational Efficiency

7.1 Increase operational 
efficiency in terms of model 
developed.

Determine baseline Model developed Model measuring specific costs 
developed and approved by 
Management Board, still to be approved 
by Board of Directors.

Objective not achieved

COMBINED
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ARMSCOR	FUNCTIONS:	OBJECTIVES	

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Objective 1:  CAT 1 Capital Defence Matériel Acquisition excluding strategic defence acquisition but including technology 
acquisition (Projects)

1.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds 
to be measured against 
the formally planned value 
of commitment which is 
based on requirements 
received and confirmed as 
valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 96.1% DOD requirements to the value of 
R444 979  million were received. 

Armscor committed R427 673 million of 
the above mentioned funds resulting in 
an achievement of 96.1% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

1.2 Cash Flow (contractual 
payments made).

Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year. (Cash flow 
is updated on ongoing 
basis with commitments 
during year and for changes 
beyond Armscor’s control).

90% 101.9% The agreed planned cash flow for the 
financial year in order to execute the 
orders placed amounted to R2 115 292 
million

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R2 156 222 million resulting 
in an achievement of 101.9% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

Objective 2:  Strategic Defence Acquisition (Strategic Defence Packages)

2.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor

 Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds 
to be measured against 
the formally planned value 
of commitment which is 
based on requirements 
received and confirmed as 
valid requirements from the 
DOD. 

90% 99.89% DOD requirements to the value of               
R33 326 million were received. 

Armscor committed R33 291 million of the 
above mentioned funds resulting in an 
achievement of 99.89% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR ONLY
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ARMSCOR	FUNCTIONS:	OBJECTIVES	

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

2.2 Cash Flow

 Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year.

90% 100.76% Formally planned cash flow for the 
financial year amounted to R1 114 614 
million

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R1 123 126 million resulting 
in an achievement of 100.76% against the 
set target of 90%

Objective exceeded

Objective 3:  System support: Acquisition and Procurement (Operational funds)

3.1 Contracts to be placed by 
Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% 
of commitment of funds to 
be measured against the 
formally planned value of 
commitment which    is 
based on requirements 
received and confirmed as 
valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 97.92% DOD requirements received to the value 
of R1 067 190 million. 

Armscor committed R1 045 041 million 
of the above mentioned funds resulting in 
an achievement of 97.92% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

3.2 Cash Flow

Armscor’s target of 90% 
cash flow would be 
measured against the 
formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the 
financial year. (Cash flow 
is updated on ongoing 
basis with commitments 
during year and for changes 
beyond Armscor’s control).

90% 99.89% Formally planned cash flow for the 
financial year amounted to R2 682 705 
million

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R2 679 624 million resulting 
in an achievement of 99.89% against the 
set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

Objective 4: Management of Defence Industrial Participation (DIP)

4.1 Value of DIP credits to 
be granted to overseas 
suppliers

R511 million credits 
to be approved by 

2011-03-31

R1 583 million DIP credits to the value of R1 583 million 
(309.69%) have been awarded during the 
2010/2011 financial year.  

The overachievement is due to the Gripen 
obligation being fully discharged 18 
months ahead of schedule.

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR ONLY
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 1: Human Resource Targets

1.1 Staff turnover in technical 
positions (excluding 
retirements)

< 4,5% 2.35% 6 resignations from technical positions for 
the year to date.

3 STS; 2 MP and 1 SU broad band level.

Objective exceeded

1.2 Improve the demographic 
profile of Armscor to reflect 
the national and regional 
demographic profile

At least 82% 
of external 
appointees to be 
black

100% 100% of all external appointees (23 
appointments) were black.

Objective exceeded

At least 22% 
of  external 
appointments 
in the technical 
functional groups 
to be women

33.33% 33.33% of all external appointees in the 
technical functional groups were women.

(9 appointments: 3 females – 2 MP; 1 
STS)

Objective exceeded

At least 65% 
of external 
appointments in 
the non-technical 
functional groups 
to be women.

64.29% 64.29% of all external appointees in the 
non-technical functional groups were 
women.

(14 appointments: 9 females – 1 SU; 1 
STS; 6 AS; 1 OS)

Objective not achieved

At least 30% of 
employees in 
the supervisory 
levels and above 
to be women.

32.88% 32.88% off all employees in the supervisory 
levels and above were women.

(520 STS and above: 171 females – 117 
STS; 45 MP; 8 SU; 1 EX)

Objective exceeded

1.3 Bursaries Grant bursaries 
to 6 tertiary level 
students in line 
with Armscor’s 
strategic 
manpower plans.

8 8 tertiary students were granted bursaries.

Objective exceeded

1.4 Talent Development 
Programme.

Have 12 trainees 
under the 
scheme

14 A total of 14 people went through the 
Talent Development Programme for the 
2010/2011 financial year.

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR ONLY
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 4: Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

4.1 Increase spending on BEE companies in terms of BBBEE Codes of Good Conduct as specified  per category (based 
on recognition levels):

ARMSCOR:

4.1.1.  Operating budget. > 70% 107.16% Spending on the operating budget 
achieved 107.16% against a target of 
70%.  (Total purchases excluding para-
statals is R18 126 367.  The total spent 
on BBBEE companies was R19 424 714). 

Objective exceeded 

4.1.1.1a.  Spend on QSE’s > 10% 29.91% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:    
R4 156 136

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 37.58% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on EME compa-
nies:     R6 344 575

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.2 Spend on entities in which 
black designated groups 
have more than 50% of 
economic interest. 

> 9% 49.18% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: R8 
417 479

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.3 Spend on entities in which 
black women hold more 
than 30% of economic 
interest.

> 6% 35.01% Total spend: R18 126 367

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R6 318 875

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR ONLY
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ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

DOCKYARD:

4.1.2.  Operating budget >  55% 69.48% Spending by Armscor Dockyard achieved 
69.48% against a target of 55%. Total ex-
penditure of R45 849 319.  The total spent 
on BBBEE companies was R31 856 052.

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.1a.  Spend on QSE’s  
 

> 10% 54.4% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:  
R20 578 224.

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 7.09% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on EME compa-
nies:    R3 548 004.

Objective not achieved

4.1.2.2 Spend on entities in which 
black designated groups 
have more than 50% of 
economic interest. 

> 9% 8.55% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: R3 
609 779.

Objective not achieved

4.1.2.3 Spend on entities in which 
black women hold more 
than 30% of economic 
interest. 

> 6% 1.69% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R685 058. 

Objective not achieved

ARMSCOR ONLY



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
78

ARMSCOR	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

SDA & GDA ACCOUNTS:

4.1.3  Special Defence Account 
and General Defence Ac-
count.

> 40% 69.76% Spending on the SDA and GDA accounts 
achieved 69.76% against a target of 40%. 
(The target refers to BBBEE expenditure 
as a percentage of total acquisition proj-
ect expenditure. R5 583 020 920 is the 
net figure excluding exemptions for the 
year and the figure and the BBBEE ex-
penditure was R3 894 847 998.)

Objective exceeded

BEE CERTIFICATION STATUS:

4.2 Improve Armscor’s BBBEE 
certification status.

Level 6 Level 7 Armscor’s certification status is on   
level 7.

Objective not achieved

Note: Actual spending based on BBBEE recognition levels of up to 135%.

ARMSCOR ONLY
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ARMSCOR	DEFENCE	INSTITUTES’	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Objective 5:  Management and execution of Defence Technology, Research, Test and Evaluation requirements of the De-
partment of Defence

5.1 Armscor Defence 
Institutes to achieve 
contractual milestones / 
deliveries as per orders 
received from Armscor as 
per financial year. 90% 
completion of contractual 
milestones / deliveries at 
end of financial year. 

90% 95.97% Armscor Defence Institutes managed 
to deliver / render services to the value 
of R82 970 337 against the contractual 
milestones / deliveries of the orders 
received from Armscor with a value of 
R86 454 745. This results in an 
achievement of 95.97% against the set 
target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR	DEFENCE	INSTITUTES’	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Strategic Objective 1:  Human Resource Targets

1.1 Staff turnover in technical 
positions (excluding 
retirements)

< 4,5% 2.4% 4 resignations from technical positions for 
the year.

3 STS and 1 MP broad band level.

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES ONLY



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
80

ARMSCOR	DEFENCE	INSTITUTES’	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 1:  Human Resource Targets

1.2 Improve the demographic 
profile of Armscor 
Defence Institutes’ to 
reflect the national and 
regional demographic 
profile

At least 82% 
of external 
appointees to be 
black  

100% 100% of all external appointees (13 ap-
pointments) were black.

Objective exceeded

At least 22% 
of external 
appointments 
in the technical 
functional 
groups to be 
women.

9.09% 9.09% of all external appointees in the 
technical functional groups were women.   

(11 Technical appointments: 1 female; 1 
STS)

No suitable female candidates were iden-
tified for both the technical and non-tech-
nical functional groups.

Objective not achieved

At least 65% 
of external 
appointments 
in the non-
technical 
functional 
groups to be 
women.

- No women were appointed in the techni-
cal functional groups.

(2 appointments: 0 female)

No suitable female candidates were iden-
tified for both the technical and non-tech-
nical functional groups.

Objective not achieved

At least 30% of 
employees in 
the supervisory 
levels and above 
to be women.

23.79% 23.79% off all employees in the supervi-
sory levels and above were women.

(206 STS and above: 49 females)

Objective not achieved

1.3 Talent Development Pro-
gramme.

Have 3 train-
ees under the 
scheme.

3 Armscor Defence Institutes’ had 3 train-
ees on the Talent Development Pro-
gramme for the 2010/2011 financial year. 

Objective achieved

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES ONLY
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ARMSCOR	DEFENCE	INSTITUTES’	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 4: Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

4.1 Increase spending on BEE companies in terms of BBBEE Codes of Good Conduct as specified per category (based 
on recognition levels):

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES:

4.1.1.  Operating budget 
(operating cost, 
discretionary cost of sales 
and capital acquisition).

> 55% 68.40% Spending on cost of sales, operating 
expenses and capital achieved 73.61%.  
The target was based on cost of sales, 
operating expenses and capital which 
amounted to R97 534 962 calculated on 
the ground rules for BBBEE spending. 
The total spent on BBBEE companies 
was R66 710 386.

Objective exceeded 

4.1.1.1a.  Spend on QSE’s > 10% 15.98% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:  
R13 686 894.

Objective exceeded

4.1.1.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 19% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on EME companies:  
R19 078 161.

Objective exceeded

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES ONLY
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ARMSCOR	DEFENCE	INSTITUTES’	OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 4: Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES:

4.1.2 Spend on entities in which 
Black Designated Groups 
have more than 50% of 
economic interest. 

> 9% 8.12% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which Black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: 
R7 924 154.

There are not many entities in which 
black designated groups have more 
than 50% of economic interest able to 
deliver the specialised required services 
and products to Armscor Defence 
Institutes. This has been elevated as a 
corporate risk.

Objective not achieved

4.1.3 Spend on entities in which 
black women hold more 
than 30% of economic 
interest. 

> 6% 1.30% Total spend: R97 534 962

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R1 271 744.

There are not many entities in which 
black women holds more than 30% 
of economic interest able to deliver 
the specialised required services and 
products to Armscor Defence Institutes. 
This has also been elevated as a 
corporate risk.

Objective not achieved 

Note: Actual spending based on BBBEE recognition levels of up to 135%.

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUTES ONLY
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ARMSCOR	DOCKYARD	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES:

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 1: Human Resource Targets

1.1 Staff turnover in techni-
cal positions (excluding 
retirements)

< 4,5% 1.98% 5 resignations from technical positions for 
the year.

3 AS and 2 MP broad band levels.

Objective exceeded

1.2 Improve the demographic 
profile of Armscor De-
fence Institutes’ to reflect 
the national and regional 
demographic profile

At least 82% of 
external appoin-
tees to be black 

- No appointments were made during the 
year.

At least 22% 
of  external 
appointments 
in the techni-
cal functional 
groups to be 
women

- No appointments were made during the 
year.

At least 65% 
of external 
appointments 
in the non-tech-
nical functional 
groups to be 
women.

- No appointments were made during the 
year.

At least 30% 
of employees 
in the supervi-
sory levels and 
above to be 
women.

2.63% 2.63% of all employees in the supervisory 
levels and above were women.

(38 STS and above: 1 female)

Objective not achieved

DOCKYARD ONLY



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
84

ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11

ARMSCOR	DOCKYARD	STRATEGIC	OBJECTIVES:

Key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against Goal

Strategic Objective 4: Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

4.1 Increase spending on BEE companies in terms of BBBEE Codes of Good Conduct as specified per  c a t -
egory (based on recognition levels):

DOCKYARD:

4.1.2. Operating budget. >  55% 69.48% Spending by Armscor Dockyard achieved 
69.48% against a target of 55%. Total ex-
penditure of R45 849 319.  The total spent 
on BBBEE companies was R31 856 052.

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.1a.  Spend on QSE’s  
 

> 10% 54.4% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on QSE companies:  
R20 578 224

Objective exceeded

4.1.2.1b.  Spend on EME’s > 10% 7.09% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on EME companies:     
R3 548 004

Objective not achieved

4.1.2.2   Spend on entities in 
which black designated 
groups have more than 
50% of economic interest. 

> 9% 8.55% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black designated groups have 
more than 50% economic interest: R3 
609 779

Objective not achieved

4.1.2.3   Spend on entities in 
which black women hold 
more than 30% of econom-
ic interest. 

> 6% 1.69% Total spend: R45 849 319

Total BBBEE spend on companies in 
which black women hold more than 30% 
economic interest: R685 058 

Objective not achieved

Note: Actual spending based on BBBEE recognition levels of up to 135%.

DOCKYARD ONLY
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NET ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 235.8 216.4 214.6 203.3 197.9 
Intangible assets 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 
Other non-current financial assets - 8.3 14.4 30.0 68.5 
Other non-current financial liabilities (12.9) (6.6) (11.5) (24.0) -
Net current assets 223.8 239.6 269.4 250.8 170.5 
Retirement benefit asset 124.1 94.7 80.0 54.3 33.5 
Retirement benefit liability (17.6) (16.2) (14.7) - -

553.7 536.7 552.5 514.6 470.6 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ordinary shareholders' interest 553.7 536.7 552.5 514.6 470.6 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME

REVENUE
Sale of goods and services 1 202.2 1 094.4 1 533.0 967.0 1 236.9 
Allocation from the State budget for operating and
technology expenditure 594.8 528.9 479.0 415.6 347.6 
Finance income 27.9 30.3 45.8 35.7 25.7 
Rental income 34.7 31.6 28.7 26.2 23.8 
Other income 28.6 16.4 19.3 17.5 19.6 

1 888.2 1 701.6 2 105.8 1 462.0 1 653.6 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 17.0 (15.8) 37.9 44.0 58.0 

TOTAL VALUE OF ACQUISITION
ACTIVITIES
Special Defence Account 4 518.0 5 505.0 9 114.7 7 794.0 8 003.5 
General Defence Account 1 441.0 1 308.2 1 125.3 807.3 832.1 
SA Police Service 101.3 108.0 168.9 108.6 175.9 
Other 66.3 106.9 77.3 102.0 19.4 

6 126.6 7 028.1 10 486.2 8 811.9 9 030.9 

GROUP FIVE YEAR REVIEW AT 31 MARCH 2011
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The statement shows the wealth the Group has created through its acquisition, maintenance and disposal activities aimed at 
meeting the defence matériel requirements of South Africa, as well as trading and investment operations. The statement shows how 
wealth was created and how it was disbursed amongst stakeholders, leaving a retained amount which was re-invested in the Group 
for the replacement of assets, the development of operations and the maintenance of required capabilities.

2011 % 2010 %

Rm Rm

Sale of goods and services 1 202.2 1 094.4 

Government grant 594.8 528.9 

Rental income 34.7 31.6 

Other income 28.6 16.4 

Finance income 27.9 30.3 

Revenue 1 888.2 1 701.6 

Less:  Paid to suppliers for materials and services (1 194.9) (1 096.6)

TOTAL VALUE-ADDED 693.3 100 605.0 100

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

To employees as salaries, wages and other benefits 639.5 92 585.5 96

Finance charges 3.1 - 1.3 -

To Government as taxation 11.0 2 9.8 2

TOTAL VALUE-ADDED DISTRIBUTED 653.6 94 596.6 98

Portion of value-added reinvested to sustain and

expand the business 39.7 6 8.4 2

TOTAL VALUE-ADDED DISTRIBUTED AND 

REINVESTED 693.3 100 605.0 100

TAXATION

Paid in taxes to Government

• Rates and taxes to local authorities 11.0 9.8 

Collected on behalf of, and paid over to Government

• Employees taxation deducted from remuneration paid 127.4 114.2 

• Unemployment Insurance Fund 2.0 2.0 

• Net value-added taxation (VAT) 86.6 64.4 

216.0 180.6 

GROUP VALUE-ADDED STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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The following main aspects concerning the Armscor Group’s financial results are apparent from the annual financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The net value of Group assets of R553.7 million shows an increase compared with the previous year’s figure of R536.7 million. 
Investments and cash form a substantial part of the assets and are reserved to finance specific future obligations.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Total income for the Group increased to R1 888.2 million (2010: R1 701.6 million) for the financial year. Included in revenue was an 
amount of R594.8 million (2010: R528.9 million) which was received from the State in the form of a transfer payment. 

The financial results of the Group increased by R32.8 million to a surplus of R17 million for the year under review, compared to a 
decrease of R53.7 million that resulted in a deficit of R15.8 million the previous year.

The most significant reasons for the changes in the surplus/deficit compared to the previous reporting period, are as follows:

2011 2010

Rm Rm

 

•        Increase/(decrease) in gross margin (14.2) 17.4 

•        Increase in other income 15.3 -

•        Increase in Government allocation 65.9 49.9 

•        (Increase) in operating expenditure (58.0) (121.8)

•        (Decrease) in net finance income (4.2) (15.2)

•        Decrease in fair value adjustments - 2.8 

•        Increase in net post-retirement medical benefit asset 28.0 13.2 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) 32.8 (53.7)

The increase in the Government grant is received to defray the cost of the Group’s operations for the year under review, to address 
additional services to be rendered and to ensure that Armscor’s contracted service delivery to the Department of Defence (DOD), 
in terms of the Service Level Agreement (SLA), is effectively and efficiently met. The funding model of several strategic facilities is 
changing, which result in an increase in the Government grant received, but also result in a corresponding decrease in turnover.

ARMSCOR GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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The surplus contributed by the subsidiaries for the year under review was R8.2 million compared to a deficit of R2.7 million for the 
previous year and is detailed as follows:

2011 2010

Rm Rm

♦       Profit/(loss) from operations (6.1) (10.9)

♦       Net finance income 4.0 4.3 

♦       Net growth in the post-retirement medical benefit asset 10.3 3.9 

8.2 (2.7)

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd contributed a surplus of R11.7 million (2010: R0.7 million surplus) against a set target of 
R1.2 million deficit (2010: R3.5 million deficit). The deficit of the property companies amounted to R3.5 million (2010: R3.4 million), 
relating to depreciation on buildings.

ARMSCOR GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011(continued)
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 NOTES 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

 ASSETS  

 NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

37.4 57.0 Property, plant and equipment 2 235.8 216.4 

- - Intangible assets 3 0.5 0.5 

8.3 - Other non-current financial assets 4 - 8.3 

80.1 99.2 Post-retirement medical benefit asset 5 124.1 94.7 

125.8 156.2 360.4 319.9 

 CURRENT ASSETS  

1.4 4.7 Inventories 6 6.5 2.8 

118.6 143.1 Trade and other receivables 7 178.8 153.1 

345.6 376.7 Cash and short-term deposits 8 374.8 341.1 

180.0 180.0 Investment in subsidiaries 9 - -

645.6 704.5 560.1 497.0 

771.4 860.7 TOTAL ASSETS 920.5 816.9 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

 CAPITAL AND RESERVES  

75.0 75.0 Ordinary share capital 10 75.0 75.0 

412.3 421.1 Non-distributable reserves 478.7 461.7 

487.3 496.1 ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST 553.7 536.7 

 LIABILITIES  

 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  

6.6 - Other non-current financial liabilities 11 - 6.6 

16.2 17.6 Post-retirement medical benefit liability 5 17.6 16.2 

- 12.9 Deferred income 12 12.9 -

22.8 30.5 30.5 22.8 

 CURRENT LIABILITIES  

56.2 51.5 Loans from subsidiaries 9 - -

139.7 195.9 Trade and other payables 13 224.8 169.7 

65.4 74.9 Provisions 14 99.7 87.7 

- 11.8 Deferred income 12 11.8 -

261.3 334.1 336.3 257.4 

284.1 364.6 TOTAL LIABILITIES 366.8 280.2 

771.4 860.7 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 920.5 816.9 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2011
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 NOTES 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

  

888.3 970.7 Revenue 15 1,202.2 1,094.4 

(856.1) (944.0) Cost of sales 16 (1,054.8) (932.8)

32.2 26.7 GROSS SURPLUS 17 147.4 161.6 

51.4 60.5 Other operating revenue 18 63.3 48.0 

528.9 594.8 Government grants 19 594.8 528.9 

(650.2) (694.0) Operating expenses 20 (813.3) (783.3)

(37.7) (12.0) OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 21 (7.8) (44.8)

30.2 27.9 Investment revenue 22 27.9 30.3 

(5.6) (7.1) Finance costs 23 (3.1) (1.3)

(13.1) 8.8 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 24 17.0 (15.8)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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SHARE 
CAPITAL

MARKETING 
PROMOTION 

RESERVE

CAPITAL 
BUILDING 

MAINTENANCE 
RESERVE

COMPUTER 
UPGRADING 

RESERVE

INTERNAL 
INSURANCE 

RESERVE

GENERAL 
RESERVE

TOTAL 
EQUITY

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

GROUP

Balance at 1 April 2009 75.0 10.6 22.6 15.0 27.0 402.3 552.5 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive deficit 
for the year - - - - - (15.8) (15.8) 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - - - - (2.0) 2.0 -

Total changes - - - - (2.0) (13.8) (15.8)

Balance at 1 April 2010 75.0 10.6 22.6 15.0 25.0 388.5 536.7 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - 17.0 17.0 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 4.0 - - (1.8) (2.2) -

Total changes - 4.0 - - (1.8) 14.8 17.0

Balance at 31 March 2011 75.0 14.6 22.6 15.0 23.2 403.3 553.7 

CORPORATION

Balance at 1 April 2009 75.0 10.6 22.6 15.0 27.0 350.2 500.4

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive deficit 
for the year - - - - - (13.1) (13.1)

Transfer to/(from) reserves - - - - (2.0) 2.0 -

Total changes - - - - (2.0) (11.1) (13.1)

Balance at 1 April  2010 75.0 10.6 22.6 15.0 25.0 339.1 487.3 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year - - - - - 8.8 8.8 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 4.0 - - (1.8) (2.2) -

Total changes - 4.0 - - (1.8) 6.6 8.8 

Balance at 31 March 2011 75.0 14.6 22.6 15.0 23.2 345.7 496.1 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011
NOTES

2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

1,489.8 1,601.4 Cash receipts from customers 1,834.5 1,683.6 

(1,489.1) (1,559.4) Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (1,783.3)  (1,683.3)

0.7 42.0 Cash generated from/(used in) operations 25 51.2 0.3 

30.2 27.9 Interest income 27.9 30.3 

(5.6) (7.1) Finance costs (3.1) (1.3)

25.3 62.8 NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  76.0  29.3 

 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

(11.3) (29.0) Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (44.7) (26.4)

0.2 0.3 
Proceed from sale of property, plant and 
equipment 2 0.7 1.0 

- - Purchase of other intangible assets 3 - (0.2)

(13.1) (4.7) Loans from group companies - -

6.1 8.3 
Proceeds/(payment) of non-current financial 
assets 8.3 6.1 

(18.1) (25.1) NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES  (35.7)  (19.5)

 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

(4.9) (6.6)
Repayment/(receipt) of other non-current financial 
liabilities (6.6) (4.9)

(4.9) (6.6)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (6.6)  (4.9)

 

2.3 31.1 TOTAL CASH MOVEMENT FOR THE YEAR 33.7 4.9 

343.3 345.6 CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 341.1 336.2 

345.6 376.7 TOTAL CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 8  374.8  341.1 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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1. MANDATE

Armscor receives its mandate for the period under 

review from the Armaments Corporation of South Africa 

Limited Act, 2003 (Act 51 of 2003) and the Armaments 

Corporation of South Africa Limited Amendment Act, 

2005 (Act 16 of 2005), which came into effect from 8 

May 2006 by proclamation 20 published in Government 

Gazette 28779 of 5 May 2006 in terms of which the 

Corporation is empowered to meet:

• the defence matériel requirements of the   

Department of Defence effectively, efficiently and 

economically; and

• the defence technology, research, development, 

 analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the  

 Department of Defence effectively, efficiently and  

 economically.

These Acts furthermore provides that Armscor must 

adhere to accepted corporate governance principles, 

best business practices and South African Statements 

of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice within 

a framework of established norms and standards 

that reflect fairness, equity, transparency, economy, 

efficiency, accountability and lawfulness.

1.1 FINANCIAL POLICY

Activities are financed as follows:

Armscor’s operating funds

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence 

budget and together with interest earned thereon are 

utilised to finance operating expenditure, the acquisition 

of fixed assets and expenditure for the creation and 

maintenance of facilities and services.

Operating capital and fixed capital of subsidiaries

Operating capital and fixed capital requirements of 

subsidiaries are financed from own income generated 

and cash allocated by the holding company, as well as 

additional funding received from the DOD if required.

Procurement of armaments

Armaments purchases and maintenance are financed by 

means of withdrawals from the Special Defence Account 

in terms of the Defence Special Account Act, 1974 (Act 6 

of 1974, as amended) and the General Defence Account. 

Strategic Defence Packages are financed wholly or 

partially by means of draw downs against credit facilities 

supplied by National Treasury.

1.2 ACCOUNTING POLICY

The Corporation’s year end is the same as its subsidiaries. 

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group 

are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies of the Group and 

disclosures made in the annual financial statements 

conform to South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice and are consistent with 

those applied in the previous year, except as follows:

The financial statements have been prepared on 

a historical cost basis, except for some financial 

instruments that have been measured at fair value. The 

financial statements are presented in South African Rand 

and all values are rounded to the nearest million unless 

otherwise indicated.

1.3 CONSOLIDATION

Basis of consolidation

The Group annual financial statements present the 

consolidated financial position and changes therein, 

operating results and cash flow information of the 

Corporation and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those 

entities in which the Group has an interest of more than 

one half of the voting rights or the power to exercise 

control so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included for the duration 

in which the Group exercises control over the subsidiary. 

All inter- company transactions and resulting profits and 

losses between the Group companies are eliminated on 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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consolidation. The Corporation carries its investments in 

subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses 

in the financial statements.

1.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 

 ASSUMPTIONS

Judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management is 

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the amounts represented in the financial statements and 

related disclosures. Use of available information and the 

application of judgement is inherent in the formation of 

estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from 

these estimates which may be material to the financial 

statements. Significant judgements include:

Pension and other post employment benefits

The cost of defined post employment medical benefits 

is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial 

valuation involves making assumptions about discount 

rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary 

increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. 

Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such 

estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. 

Impairment of financial assets

In determining the impairment of financial assets, 

management estimates the future cash flows as well as 

the appropriate discount rate. These estimates are based 

on the best available information at the reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of 

impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting 

date. When value in use calculations are undertaken, 

management estimates the expected future cash flows 

from the asset or cash generating unit and choose a 

suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present 

value of those cash flows.

Trade receivables, held to maturity investments 
and loans and receivables

The Group assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity 

investments and loans and receivables for impairment at 

the end of each reporting period. In determining whether 

an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or 

deficit, the Group makes judgements as to whether there 

is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in 

the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade 

receivables and payables are assumed to approximate 

their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for 

disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the 

future contractual cash flows at the current market 

interest rate that is available to the Group for similar 

financial instruments.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined 

an estimate based on the best available information. 

Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions  

are included in note 14.

1.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits  

 associated with the item will flow to the Group;  

 and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Land and buildings

Buildings on freehold land

Land is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Buildings 

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated on 

a straight line basis over the useful life of the buildings 

over periods that vary between twenty and fifty years.
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Buildings on State property

Buildings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated 

on a straight line basis over the useful life of the assets, 

which is estimated as fifty years.

The buildings’ residual values, useful lives and 

depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 

appropriate, at each financial year end.

Plant and equipment (including plant, machinery, 
equipment, office equipment, furniture, computers, 
vehicles and vessels)

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs 

of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment. The cost of replacing part 

of such plant and equipment is capitalised when that cost 

is incurred if the recognition criteria is met. Depreciation 

is calculated to write off the cost of capitalised fixed 

assets on a straight line basis over their expected useful 

lives over periods that vary between three and ten years.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 

arising on derecognising of the asset (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the surplus/

deficit for the year the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation 

methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 

each financial year end.

1.6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic 

benefits that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 

initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be 

finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over 

the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 

whenever there is an indication that the intangible 

asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 

amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite 

useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. 

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern 

of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 

the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation 

period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes 

in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense 

on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised the 

surplus/deficit in the expense category consistent with 

the function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognising of an intangible 

asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, 

and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income when the asset is derecognised. Amortisation is 

calculated to write off the cost of capitalised intangible 

assets on a straight-line basis over their expected useful 

lives over ten years.

Patents

The patents have been granted for periods ranging from 

ten to fifteen years respectively.

1.7 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (purchase cost) 

and net realisable value. Raw materials are calculated 

using the first in first out method, except in the case 

of Hazmat Protective Systems where it is calculated at 

weighted average. Write downs to net realisable value 

and inventory losses are expensed in the period in which 

the write down or loss occur. Finished goods and work 

in progress are stated at actual cost of direct materials 

and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads 

based on normal operating capacity but excluding 

borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated 

selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale.
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1.8 NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

All reserves are considered to be non-distributable. The 
full share capital and reserves are required for the total 
net capital requirement of the Group. Cash is therefore 
retained to meet future commitments, and is consequently 
not available for the distribution of dividends.

Capital and building maintenance reserve

The reserve was established for comprehensive upgrading 
and replacement of obsolete capital equipment and 
maintenance of major building systems.

Computer upgrading reserve

The purpose of this reserve is for the upgrading and 
replacement of obsolete, outdated computer technology.

Marketing promotion reserve

The reserve was established to supplement the financing 
of exhibition costs in order to promote the local weapons 
industry, which is part of Armscor’s mandate but which 
is not provided for via the transfer payment from the 
Department of Defence.

Internal Insurance Reserve

Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost-to-
benefit relationship exceeds the risk and the incidence 
of losses is of a minor and infrequent nature. Self-insured 
risks are reviewed annually to ensure cover is adequate 
and an amount is held in an internal insurance fund to 
cover these risks.

1.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERSION

Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are 
converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the transaction 
date. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies 
are converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
reporting date. Gains or losses arising on conversion are 
recognised in the surplus/deficit.

1.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all 
the following conditions have been satisfied:
• the Group has transferred to the buyer the  
 significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
 the goods;
• the Group retains neither continuing managerial  
 involvement to the degree usually associated  
 with ownership nor effective control over the  
 goods sold;
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits   
 associated with the transaction will flow to the  
 Group; and
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of 
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal 
course of business, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates, and Value Added Tax.

Interest income

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking 
account of the principal outstanding and the effective 
rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined 
that such income will accrue to the Group.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive 
payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from properties is accounted for 
on a straight line basis over the lease terms on ongoing 
leases.

Government grant

Government grants are recognised when there is 
reasonable assurance that:
• the Company will comply with the conditions  
 attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.
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Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs 
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to assets, including non-
monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the 
statement of financial position by setting up the grant as 
deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at 
the carrying amount of the asset.

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence 
budget and recognised as a grant via revenue (transfer 
payment) as and when received and together with 
interest earned thereon are utilised to finance operating 
expenditure, the acquisition of fixed assets and 
expenditure for the creation of facilities and services.

Secondary grants received, based on Memorandums of 
Agreement with the Department of Defence, for specific 
services are recognised as revenue as and when the 
conditions of receipt thereof has been fulfilled and are 
included in sale of goods and services.

1.11 INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The insurance and risk management policies adopted by 
the Armscor Group are aimed at obtaining sufficient cover 
at the minimum cost to protect its asset base, earning 
capacity and legal obligations against unacceptable 
losses.

All fixed assets are insured at current replacement value. 
Risks are identified and insured while paying specific 
attention to the specialised nature of the Group’s various 
activities and exposures. Self-insurance has been 
instituted where the cost-to-benefit relationship exceeds 
the risk and the incidence of losses is of a minor and 
infrequent nature. Self-insured risks are reviewed annually 
to ensure cover is adequate. An amount of R23,2 million 
(2010: R25 million) is held in an internal insurance fund 
to cover these risks. This amount is disclosed as part of 
non-distributable reserves in the statement of financial 
position. No major losses were experienced during 
the year under review. Claims of a general nature were 
adequately covered.

1.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the 
Group’s statement of financial position when it becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair 
value, which includes transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to acquisition or issue of the financial asset. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are 
measured as set out below.

Investments

Fixed deposits with a maturity date greater than three 
months are classified as held to maturity investments.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables are non-derivative assets 
that arise from transactions with providers. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method less impairment 
provision. Provision for impairment of other receivables 
is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according 
to the original terms of the receivables. Bad debts are 
written off when identified. Personnel loans are interest 
bearing over periods that vary between one and twelve 
months in terms of conditions of employment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents that are regarded as loans and 
other receivables are measured at amortised cost, based 
on the relevant exchange rates at the reporting date. For 
the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise of cash on hand, deposits held on 
call and investment instruments, all of which are readily 
convertible (within three months) to cash, available for use 
by the Group, unless otherwise stated and are subject to 
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial liabilities

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the surplus/
deficit for the year when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the amortisation process.
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Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees issued are carried at fair value. The 
fair value would be determined as the present value of 
future cash flows to settle the liabilities.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial 
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Gains and losses

The difference in the respective carrying amounts on 
the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees issued are derecognised when the 
obligations under the liability are discharged.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that have occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. If there is objective 
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on a 
financial asset, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) 

discounted at the financial assets original effective 
interest rate. The amount of the impairment shall be 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against 
the related provision for impairment. Such receivables 
are written off after all the necessary procedures have 
been completed and the amount of the loss has been 
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off decrease the amount of the provision for loan 
impairment in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an 
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised 
in a surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When 
such assets are written off, the write-off is made against 
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses.

Loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to and from holding companies, 
fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates recognised initially at fair value plus direct 
transaction costs.

Loans to Group companies are classified as loans and 
receivables.

Loans from Group companies are classified as financial 
liabilities measured at cost.

Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and 
employees

These financial assets are classified as loans and 
receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at 
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are 
recognised in a surplus or deficit when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will 
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) 
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
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impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at 
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the 
deficit is recognised in a surplus or deficit within operating 
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, 
it is written off against the allowance account for trade 
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are credited against operating expenses in 
surplus or deficit.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and 
receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and 
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently 
recorded at fair value.

Held to maturity

These financial assets are initially measured at fair value 
plus direct transaction costs.

At subsequent reporting dates these are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, 
less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable 
amounts. An impairment loss is recognised  in a surplus 
or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset 
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between 
the investment’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment 
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an 
increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction 

that the carrying amount of the investment at the date 
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the 
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised.

Financial assets that the Group has the positive intention 
and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to 
maturity.

1.13 PROVISIONS

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 29.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
surplus/deficit, net of any reimbursement.

Performance remuneration

The payment of performance remuneration is subject to 
the Corporations’ achievement of set performance criteria. 
The Corporation use the Balanced Scorecard method 
for evaluating individual performance. Performance 
remuneration is based proportionally on the individual 
performance as measured and expressed by the 
individual’s performance score and also by the Armscor 
department’s performance as measured and expressed 
by their calculated performance score.

Provision for leave

Provision is calculated on leave days outstanding at 
the end of the year, multiplied by the remuneration rate 
based on the applicable remuneration package of each 
employee.

Provision for bonus

The provision for bonus, which forms part of the 
guaranteed annual package, is for the period December 
to March of the applicable financial year and is calculated 
on the total annual remuneration package.



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
100

1.14 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor 
Defined Contribution Pension Fund and the Armscor 
Provident Fund, which offer benefits based on the 
contributions of and on behalf of every member, as well 
as on investment yields.

The Group also provides post-retirement health-care 
benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement 
health-care benefits is based on the employee remaining 
in service up to retirement age and the completion of a 
minimum service period. The expected costs of these 
benefits are accrued over the period of employment. 
Valuations of these obligations are carried out by 
independent, qualified actuaries. The cost of providing 
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined 
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
Actuarial gains or losses in respect of defined benefit 
plans are recognised as income or expense if the net 
cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at 
the end of the previous reporting period exceeded the 
greater of:

• 10% of the present value of the defined benefit  
 obligation at that date before deducting plan  
 assets; and
• 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that  
 date.

The amount recognised is the excess determined above, 
divided by the expected average remaining working lives 
of the employees participating in that plan.

Where the Group is in the net asset position, the defined 
benefit surplus is measured at the lower of:
• the present value of defined obligation, plus  
 actuarial gains, less past service cost, less the  
 fair value of plan assets at the reporting date of  
 the plan assets; and
• the total of cumulative unrecognised actuarial  
 loss, past service cost and the present value of  
 any economic benefits in the form of refunds  
 from the plan or a reduction in future 
 contributions of the plan.

1.15 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s 
business that represents a separate major line of 

business or geographical area of operations that has 
been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary 
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification 
as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or 
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as 
held for sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as 
a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of 
financial position is restated as if the operation had been 
discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

1.16 LEASES

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or 
contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment 
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the 
lease only if one of the following applies:

a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than 
 a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b)  a renewal option is exercised or extension 
 granted, unless the term of the renewal or 
 extension was initially included in the lease term;
c)  there is a change in the determination of whether 
 fulfilment is dependant on a specified asset; or
d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall 
commence or cease from the date when the change in 
circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios 
(a), (c) or (d) and at the date of renewal or extension period 
for scenario (b).
Leases of assets to the Group under which all the risks 
and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the 
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases are charged against income on a 
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
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operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue as a surplus 
or deficit.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating 
lease asset. This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are 
incurred.

1.17 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development 
expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an 
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate the 
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset 
so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention 
to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, 
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, 
the availability of resources to complete the asset and 
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during 
development.

1.18 IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND   
 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets mentioned in the 
accounting policy notes are reviewed at each statement 
of financial position date to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of fair 
value less cost to sell and value in use.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. That reduction 
is an impairment loss, which is recognised immediately in 
a surplus or deficit.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount; however, not to an 
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment 

loss been recognised in prior years.

1.19 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure 
that was made in vain, as well as penalties levied on 
late deliveries and which would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

1.20 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until 
such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The 
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is 
determined as follows:

• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically  
 borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a   
 qualifying asset less any temporary investment  
 of those borrowings.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
• expenditures for the asset have occurred;
• borrowing costs have been incurred, and
• activities that are necessary to prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities 
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended 
use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in 
the period in which they are incurred.

1.21 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND   
 GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the 
purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured 
as the fair value of the assets given, liabilities incurred 
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at fair values 
at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of 
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s 
share in the net fair value of the acquisition identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the cost of 
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acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised 
directly in the surplus/deficit.

1.22 SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities.

1.23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable 
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as 
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-
monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised 
in the period in which the service is rendered and are not 
discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is 
recognised as an expense, as the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of 
non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus 
payments is recognised as an expense when there is a 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments 
as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined retirement contribution benefit 
plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or State) retirement 
benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution 
plans where the Group’s obligation under the schemes 
is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution 

retirement benefit plan.
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST/VALUATION
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

2011

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Land 12.7 - 12.7 

Buildings 203.9 (67.7) 136.2 

Plant, machinery and equipment 54.0 (32.2) 21.8 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 109.0 (64.6) 44.4 

Vehicles and vessels 37.6 (16.9) 20.7 

417.2 (181.4) 235.8 

2010

Land 12.7 - 12.7 

Buildings 200.6 (63.0) 137.6 

Plant, machinery and equipment 43.1 (28.6) 14.5 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 99.1 (57.0) 42.1 

Vehicles and vessels 23.4 (13.9) 9.5 

378.9 (162.5) 216.4 

CORPORATION 2011

Plant, machinery and equipment 14.4 (7.0) 7.4 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 85.9 (48.2) 37.7 

Vehicles and vessels 18.1 (6.2) 11.9 

118.4 (61.4) 57.0 

2010

Plant, machinery and equipment 5.9 (5.9) -

Office equipment, furniture and computers 78.2 (42.4) 35.8 

Vehicles and vessels 6.8 (5.2) 1.6 

90.9 (53.5) 37.4 
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2. RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

OPENING 

BALANCE

ADDITIONS DISPOSALS DEPRECIATION TOTAL

2011

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land 12.7 - - - 12.7 

Buildings 137.6 6.0 (2.2) (5.2) 136.2 

Plant, machinery and equipment 14.5 12.7 (0.1) (5.3) 21.8 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 42.1 11.3 (0.3) (8.7) 44.4 

Vehicles and vessels 9.5 14.6 - (3.4) 20.7 

216.4 44.6 (2.6) (22.6) 235.8 

2010

Land 12.7 - - - 12.7 

Buildings 137.8 5.1 (0.2) (5.0) 137.7 

Plant, machinery and equipment 13.5 4.3 - (3.3) 14.5 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 42.7 13.2 (0.3) (13.6) 42.0 

Vehicles and vessels 7.9 3.8 - (2.2) 9.5 

214.6 26.4 (0.5) (24.1) 216.4 

2011

CORPORATION

Plant, machinery and equipment - 9.0 (1.6) 7.4 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 35.8 8.5 (0.2) (6.4) 37.7 

Vehicles and vessels 1.6 11.5 (0.1) (1.1) 11.9 

37.4 29.0 (0.3) (9.1) 57.0 

2010

Office equipment, furniture and  computers 35.8 11.3 (0.2) (11.1) 35.8 

Vehicles and vessels 2.3 - - (0.7) 1.6 

38.1 11.3 (0.2) (11.8) 37.4 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Included in land and buildings is the IMT building erected on 

leasehold premises with a net book value of R4.6 million (2010: 

R4.2 million). The leasehold premises comprises a portion in 

extent 1,4475 ha of Erf 3779 in Simon's Town, which is leased 

from the Department of Public Works. Detail pertaining to 

land and buildings is available at the registered office of the 

Corporation.

During the year, construction on the damaged building 

at Protechnik commenced. Costs incurred to the date of 

reporting amounted to R1 068 595 and form part of additions 

to buildings.

Depreciation

16.1 18.7 Gross depreciation 32.9 30.2 

(4.3) (9.6) Less: Change in the estimated useful life (10.3) (6.1)

11.8 9.1 22.6 24.1 

In line with the requirements of IAS 16 (AC123) the Group 

reviewed the useful life, residual values and method of 

depreciation for all assets still in use.  Based on the latest 

available and reliable information there was a change in the 

estimated useful life of some assets, which resulted in a 

decrease in depreciation of R10.3 million (2010: R6.1 million).

Other matters

Included in the Corporation's value of plant, machinery and 

equipment are assets at contractors with a cost of R5.8 million 

(2010:  R5.9 million) that are fully depreciated.  
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

COST/VALUATION ACCUMULATED 
AMORTISATION

CARRYING VALUE

2011 

 GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.6 (0.1) 0.5

2010

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.6 (0.1) 0.5

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

OPENING BALANCE ADDITIONS TOTAL

2011

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.5 - 0.5 

2010

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.3 0.2 0.5 

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

4.  OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL  ASSETS

8.3 - Loans and receivables - 8.3

The loans receivable are non-interest bearing.  

Refer to note 30 for fair value.
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5. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

5.1 Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund

5.1.1 Pension and provident schemes

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund, which offer 

benefits based on the contributions by and made on behalf of every member, as well as investment yields. At the time of 

establishment of the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund, Armscor guaranteed pensioners that were transferred from 

the previous pension fund to the current pension fund to receive a pension at least equal to the pension received in terms of the 

previous fund. Armscor’s liability in this regard for the remaining eight members is R Nil (2010: R Nil) as the pensioners’ account 

in the pension fund is sufficiently funded.

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

28.9 31.9 The amount of contributions to the above scheme 44.1 39.9

5.1.2 Government Employees Pension Fund - Dockyard

The Group contributes towards the Government Employees Pension Fund, which offers benefits based on the contributions by 

and made on behalf of every member, as well as investment yields. 

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

The amount of contributions to the above scheme

6.3 6.9 Post-retirment benefits - Armscor Dockyard 6.9 6.3

5.2 Post-retirement medical benefits

5.2.1 Post-retirement medical benefits (excluding Armscor Dockyard personnel transferred from the SA Navy)

The Group also provides post-retirement health-care benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health-care 

benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. 

The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations are carried out 

by independent, qualified actuaries. The closing plan assets were divided between the two units in the same proportion as the 

opening plan assets.

The IAS19 (AC116) valuation of the Group’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2011. Based on the latest 

projection performed at 31 March 2011 the present value of the obligation is R375.6 million (2010: R317.5 million) and the fair 

value of plan assets is R491.9 million (2010: R434.8 million).
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Present value of funded obligations 375.6 317.5 298.0 262.0 239.7 
Fair value of plan assets (491.9) (434.8) (316.3) (384.6) (340.0)
Present value of plan assets in excess of obligations (116.3) (117.3) (18.3) (122.6) (100.3)
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (9.8) 19.6 (65.7) 63.3 60.8 
Unrecognised past service gains 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 

Net asset in statement of financial position (124.1) (94.7) (80.0) (54.3) (33.5)

CORPORATION

Present value of funded obligations 297.3 269.0 254.1 216.2 194.3 

Fair value of plan assets (389.3) (368.4) (269.7) (317.4) (267.9)

Present value of plan assets in excess of obligations (92.0) (99.4) (15.6) (101.2) (73.6)
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (8.8) 17.0 (56.7) 48.8 47.3 

Unrecognised past service gains 1.6 2.3 3.0 3.7 4.4 

Net asset in statement of financial position (99.2) (80.1) (69.3) (48.7) (21.9)

Reconciliation of the present value of the funded obligations (Group)

2011 2010

Rm Rm

Opening balance 317.5 298.0 

Current service cost (includes interest to year end) 12.5 12.4 

Interest cost 28.1 26.4 

Expected employer benefit payments (9.9) (8.4)

Expected closing balance 348.2 328.4 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 27.4 (10.9)

Actual closing balance 375.6 317.5 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Reconciliation of the net asset in the statement of 
financial position and amounts recognised in the 
surplus/deficit

(69.3) (80.1) Opening balance (94.7) (80.0)

5.2 - Expense recognised in employee remuneration costs (3.4) 7.6 

(8.3) (9.6) Employer benefit payments (9.9) (8.6)

(15.1) (17.6) Employer prefunding contributions (24.5) (21.1)

7.4 8.1 Payments from plan assets 8.4 7.4 

(80.1) (99.2) (124.1) (94.7)

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee 
remuneration costs)

8.9 8.9 Current service cost 12.5 12.4 

22.5 23.8 Interest cost 28.1 26.4 

(27.4) (36.4) Expected return on plan assets (43.0) (32.3)

1.9 - Actuarial (gain) recognised - 2.1 

(0.7) (0.7) Past service cost recognised (1.0) (1.0)

- 4.4 Transitional liability recognised - -

5.2 - (3.4) 7.6 

Reconciliation of change in plan assets

269.7 368.4 Fair value of assets at beginning of year 434.8 316.3 

110.0 37.7 Actual return on assets 49.8 127.1 

15.2 17.6 Contributions 24.5 21.2 

(7.4) (8.1) Benefits paid (8.4) (7.4)

(19.1) (7.5) Other expenses (8.8) (22.4)

- (18.8) Transitional liability recognised - -

368.4 389.3 Fair value of assets at end of year 491.9 434.8 
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The main actuarial assumptions are: 2011 2010

- Discount rate 8.75% 9.00%

- Health-care cost inflation 7.00% 7.25%

- Average retirement age 60 60

- Expected return on plan assets 9.75% 10.00%

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in health-care costs would have the following effects for the Group:

Health-care cost inflation

Central 
assumption

8.75%
-1% +1%

Accrued liability at 31 March 2011 (Rm)

% change

375.6

-

322.1

-14.2%

444.2

+18.3%

Current service cost plus interest cost 2011/12 (Rm)

% change

46.0

-

38.4

-16.5%

55.9

+21.5%

Sensitivity results from previous valuation 7.25% -1% +1%

Current service cost plus interest cost 2010/11 (Rm)

% change

40.5

-

33.9

-16.5

49.3

+21.4%

5.2.2 Post-retirement medical benefits for Armscor Dockyard personnel transferred from the SA Navy

The Group also provides post-retirement health-care benefits to Dockyard retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement 

health-care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum 

service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations 

are carried out by independent, qualified actuaries.

The IAS19 (AC116) valuation of the Dockyard’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2011. This actuarial 

valuation of the employer’s liability as at 31 March 2011 arises as a result of post-employment health-care benefits enjoyed by 

former SA Naval Dockyard employees. Based on the projection performed at 31 March 2011, the accrued liability in excess of 

cash held aside specifically for this purpose was R3.3 million.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

The accrued liability in excess of cash held aside 
specifically for this purpose at 31 March 2011 is 
summarised below:

16.2 17.6 Accrued liability 17.6 16.2 

16.2 17.6 Accrued liability in excess of plan assets 17.6 16.2 

(12.0) (14.3) Less: Cash received (14.3) (12.0)

4.2 3.3 Net liability 3.3 4.2 

A projection of results of the valuation as at 31 March 2011 
to 31 March 2012 is set out below:

16.2 17.6 Accrued liability as at 31 March 2011 17.6 16.2 

1.4 1.6 Interest cost 1.6 1.4 

0.5 0.4 Service cost (including interest to year end) 0.4 0.5 

(0.5) (0.6) Expected employer benefit payments (0.6) (0.5)

17.6 19.0 Projected accrued liability as at 31 March 2012 19.0 17.6 

Reconciliation of present value of the unfunded obligation

14.7 16.2 Opening balance 16.2 14.7 

0.5 0.5 Current service cost 0.5 0.5 

1.3 1.4 Interest cost 1.4 1.3 

(0.3) (0.5) Expected employer benefit payments (0.5) (0.3)

16.2 17.6 Closing balance 17.6 16.2 

Reconciliation of the present value of the unfunded 
obligation with the liability recognised in the statement of 
financial position

16.3 18.0 Present value of unfunded obligation 18.0 16.3 

(0.1) (0.4) Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (0.4) (0.1)

16.2 17.6 17.6 16.2 

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee  
remuneration)

0.5 0.5 Current service cost 0.5 0.5 

1.3 1.4 Interest cost 1.4 1.3 

1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 
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The main actuarial assumptions are:

2011 2010

- Discount rate 8.75% 9.00%

- Health-care cost inflation 7.00% 7.25%

- CPI inflation 5.0% 5.25%

- Average retirement age 65 65

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in health-care costs would have the following effects for the Group:

Health-care	cost	inflation

Central 
assumption

8.75% -1% +1%

Accrued liability at 31 March 2011 (Rm)

% change

18.0

-

15.9 

-11.5%

20.5

+13.9%

Current service cost plus interest cost 2011/12 (Rm)

% change

2.0

-

1.9

-4.2%

2.1

+4.5%

Sensitivity results from previous valuation 7.25% -1% +1%

Current service cost plus interest cost 2010/11 (Rm)

% change

1.9

-

1.9

-0.05%

1.9

+0.10%
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

5.2.3 SUMMARY OF DEFINED MEDICAL 
BENEFIT EXPENSE FOR ALL FUNDS

Defined medical benefit expense 
(post- retirement) included in employee cost:

9.4 9.4 Current service cost 13.0 12.9 

23.8 25.2 Interest cost 29.5 27.7 

(27.4) (36.4) Expected return on plan assets (43.0) (32.3)

- 4.4 Transisional liability recognised - -

1.9 - Net actuarial gains/(losses) recognised - 2.1 

(0.7) (0.7) Past service cost (1.0) (1.0)

7.0 1.9 (1.5) 9.4 

          6.     INVENTORIES

- - Raw materials, components 0.3 0.3 

- - Work in progress 0.6 0.3 

1.2 4.4 Consumables 5.1 1.6 

0.2 0.3 Finished goods 0.5 0.6 

1.4 4.7 6.5 2.8 

The amount of inventories written off during the 
year is 
R Nil (2010: R Nil)

          7.    TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

61.5 53.4 Trade receivables 69.9 79.1 

16.5 56.8 Trade receivables - related parties 70.1 30.0 

6.1 8.3 Short-term portion of long-term receivables 8.3 6.1 

84.1 118.5 Total trade receivables 148.3 115.2 

28.8 19.1 Other receivables 25.0 32.1 

3.7 4.0 Other receivables - related parties 4.0 3.7 

0.3 0.3 Personnel loans 0.3 0.4 

1.7 1.2 Interest receivable on investments 1.2 1.7 

118.6 143.1 178.8 153.1 
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 (continued) 

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

As at 31 March the ageing analysis of trade receiv-
ables was as follows:

76.5 113.2 Neither past due nor impaired: 122.4 95.0 

4.8 3.4 30 - 60 days 21.3 11.8 

0.2 0.2 60 - 90 days 1.7 4.0 

Past due but not impaired:

2.0 0.1 90 - 120 days 0.7 3.3 

0.6  1.6 120 days and older 2.2 1.1 

84.1 118.5 148.3 115.2 

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables 
relates to goods and services provided to debtors.  
Management has made an assesment and they 
concluded that there are no indications of impairment.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

38.1 55.7 Balance at the beginning of the year 56.0 38.4 

18.9 20.5 Impairment losses recognised on receivables 20.5 18.9 

- - Amounts written off as uncollectable (0.1) -

(1.3) (0.3) Amounts recovered during the year (0.3) (1.3)

55.7 75.9 Balance at the end of the year 76.1 56.0 

Terms and conditions of the above financial assets:

•   Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on thirty to ninety days’ terms.

•   Other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on thirty to ninety days terms.

•   Personal loans are interest bearing over periods that vary between one to twelve months in terms of terms and

 conditions of employment.

•   Interest is recognised on a time-proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate   

 over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Group.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer to note 33.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

8.    CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

 Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

35.6 106.7   - Cash at banks and in hand 104.8 31.1 

310.0 270.0   - Short-term deposits 270.0 310.0 

345.6 376.7 374.8 341.1 

Included in cash and short-term deposits is an amount 
of R23.2 million (2010: R25.0 million) in respect of cash 
allocated to the insurance reserve.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based 
on daily bank deposit rates.  Short-term deposits 
are made for varying periods of between one day 
and three months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the 
respective short-term deposit rates.  

9.    INVESTMENT IN AND LOANS TO/(FROM) 
       SUBSIDIARIES  

180.0 180.0 Investment in subsidiaries - -

(56.2) (51.5)
Loan from subsidiary: Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) 
Ltd

- -

123.8 128.5 - -

The short-term loan represents the current account 
which is utilised to manage the overall cash flow of the 
Group. This loan is unsecured, interest bearing and re-
payable on demand. The rate of interest levied is based 
on the rate of return earned by Armscor on surplus 
funds.

The carrying amount of the short-term loan approxi-
mates its fair value.

Included in the loans to subsidiaries are the loans of 
Armscor’s property companies, of which all income and 
expenses (if any) are reflected in the financial statement 
of the Group.

The carrying amount of the investments approximates 
its fair value.
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ISSUED 
SHARE 

CAPITAL

SHARE AT COST LOANS DUE BY 
SUBSIDIARIES

South Africa Subsidiaries (At 100%holdings)
2011

R
2010

R
2011
Rm

2010
Rm

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITUDES (PTY) LTD

ERASMUSRAND PROPERTIES (PTY) LTD

INSTITUTE FOR MARITIME TECHNOLOGY (PTY) LTD* 

OOSPARK (PTY) LTD

SPORTRAND (PTY) LTD

4.000 4.000 4.000 40.9 40.9

1 1 1 136.0 136.0

4 4 4 - -

1 1 1 1.1 1.1

1 1 1 2.0 2.0

4.007 4.007 4.007 180.0 180.0

*Dormant subsidiary

The name of Armscor Business (Pty) Ltd has changed to Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd with effect from 1 April 2010.

The attributable interest of the Corporation in the net surplus of its subsidiaries amounted to R8.2 million (2010: loss R2.7 million).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The Group 
does not hold any collateral as security.

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

10. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

1 000.0 1 000.0  • 1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1 000.0 1 000.0

75.0 75.0 Issued 75.0 75.0

• Ordinary

Share capital is under the control of the executive 
authority.

11. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Held at amortised cost

6.6 - The long-term payables are non-interest bearing. - 6.6

Refer to note 30 for fair value.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 (continued) 

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

12. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income relate to cash, stock and assets received 
from the Department of Defense, of  which the recognition 
of the income needs to be aligned with the incurring of 
the expediture, or the fulfillment of the conditions of the 
receipt.

- 12.9 Non-current liability 12.9 -

- 11.8 Current liabilities 11.8 -

- 24.7 24.7 -

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYBLES

35.2 71.7 Trade payables 78.7 43.2

49.4 68.7 Trade Payables - related parties 72.6 58.6

19.1 21.5 Other Payables 25.0 31.9

31.1 27.4 Other Payables - related parties 41.9 31.1

            4.9           6.6 Short-term portion of long-term liabilities           6.6            4.9

139.7 195.9  224.8        169.7

89.6 147.0 Trade payables 153.2 105.1

          50.1         48.8 Other payables 67.0 63.0

139.7 195.8 Current 220.2 168.1

- - >30 days 3.3 1.5

Trade payables

- 0.1 >60 days 1.3 0.1

139.7 195.9 224.8 169.7

Terms and Conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally 
settled on thirty day terms.

For the terms and conditions relating to related parties, 
refer to not 33.

The carrying amount of the accounts payables approxi-
mates its fair value
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14. PROVISIONS

OPENING BALANCE ADDITIONS UTILISED DURING 
THE YEAR

TOTAL

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS

2011

GROUP
Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for bonusses (13th cheque) 10.7 17.3 (16.3) 11.7 

Provision for leave 45.4 18.3 (14.7) 49.0 

Provision for performance remuneration 31.6 38.3 (30.9) 39.0 

87.7 73.9 (61.9) 99.7

2010

Provision for bonusses (13th cheque) 9.7 15.9 (14.9) 10.7 

Provision for leave 41.7 18.3 (14.6) 45.4 

Provision for performance remuneration 28.5 31.3 (28.2) 31.6 

79.9 65.5 (57.7) 87.7 

2011

CORPORATION

Provision for bonusses (13th cheque) 8.3 9.0 (8.3) 9.0 

Provision for leave 34.3 13.6 (11.3) 36.6 

Provision for performance remuneration 22.8 28.7 (22.2) 29.3 

65.4 51.3 (41.8) 74.9 

2010

Provision for bonusses (13th cheque) 7.6 8.3 (7.6) 8.3 

Provision for leave 31.9 14.4 (12.0) 34.3 

Provision for performance remuneration 21.4 22.4 (21.0) 22.8 

60.9 45.1 (40.6) 65.4 

Performance remuneration for 2010/11 will be paid upon completion of the performance evaluation. 
Bonusses (13th cheque) will be paid at the end of November, except for Armscor Dockyard personnel, who receive their bonus 
in the month of birth.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

15. REVENUE

52.7 44.8 Sale of goods - Defence Matériel Disposal 44.8 52.7 

- - Sale of goods - Subsidiaries 6.9 6.5 

827.1 893.3 Services revenue - Armscor Corporation 893.3 827.1 

8.5 32.6 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 32.6 8.5 

- - Services revenue - Subsidiaries 224.6 199.6 

888.3 970.7     1 202.2 1 094.4 

16. COST OF SALES

Sale of goods

42.2 35.9 Sale of goods - Defence Matériel Disposal 35.9 42.2 

- - Sale of goods - Subsidiaries 4.6 3.8 

42.2 35.9 40.5 46.0 

Rendering of services

809.3 884.4 Services revenue - Armscor Corporation 884.4 809.3 

4.6 23.7 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 23.7 4.6 

- - Services revenue - Subsidiaries 106.2 72.9 

813.9 908.1 1 014.3 886.8 

Total

42.2 35.9 Sale of goods 40.5 46.0 

813.9 908.1 Rendering of services 1 014.3 886.8 

856.1 944.0 1 054.8 932.8 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

17. GROSS SURPLUS

17.8 8.9 Armscor Corporation 8.9 17.8 

3.9 8.9 Armscor Dockyard 8.9 3.9 

10.5 8.9 Defence Matériel Disposal 8.9 10.5 

- - Subsidiaries 120.7 129.4 

32.2 26.7 147.4 161.6 

18. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

33.5 36.5 Armscor Corporation rental income 34.7 31.6 

16.0 21.6 Armscor Corporation other income 15.2 9.9 

0.1 0.6 Dockyard other income 0.6 0.1 

1.8 1.8 Defence Matériel Disposal other income 1.8 1.8 

- - Subsidiaries other income 11.0 4.6 

51.4 60.5 63.3 48.0 

19. GOVERNMENT GRANT

434.9 472.7 Transfer payment - Armscor Corporation (including 
facilities)

472.7 434.9 

94.0 122.1 Transfer payment - Armscor Dockyard 122.1 94.0 

528.9 594.8 594.8 528.9 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

20. OPERATING EXPENSES

520.6 554.4 Armscor Corporation 511.1 481.7 

119.4 130.9 Armscor Dockyard 130.9 119.4 

10.2 8.7 Defence Matériel Disposal 8.7 10.2 

- - Subsidiaries 162.6 172.0 

650.2 694.0 813.3 783.3 

21. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

(18.4) (14.6) Armscor Corporation (22.9) (26.4)

(21.4) 0.6 Armscor Dockyard 0.6 (21.4)

2.1 2.0 Defence Matériel Disposal 2.0 2.1 

- - Subsidiaries 12.5 0.9 

(37.7) (12.0) (7.8) (44.8)

Is arrived at after taking into account:

Operating lease charges

Premises

0.7 2.7 -  Contractual amounts 2.9 1.1 

  Motor vehicles  

- - -  Contractual amounts 0.4 0.3 

- - -  Contingent amounts 0.1 0.1 

  Equipment  

1.6 1.4 -  Contractual amounts 1.7 2.8 

2.3 4.1 5.1 4.3 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

0.1 0.1 (Deficit)/surplus on sale of property, plant and 
equipment

(1.9) (0.5)

18.9 20.4 Impairment on trade and other receivables 20.4 18.9 

(0.1) - (Deficit)/surplus on exchange rate differences 0.7 (0.4)

- - Amortisation on intangible assets 0.1 -

2.2 2.4 Auditors’ remuneration 2.8 2.9 

11.8 9.1 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 22.6 24.1 

435.1 476.4 Employee costs 587.9 561.4 

35.2 38.8 Post-retirement benefits (included in employee cost) 51.0 46.2 

7.0 1.9 Defined medical benefit expense (included in 
employee cost)

(1.5) 9.4 

- - Direct employee cost reflected under cost of sales 51.6 24.1 

38.9 43.3 Subsidiary support (transfer payment to facilities) - -

22. INVESTMENT REVENUE

30.2 27.9 Finance income 27.9 30.3 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

23. FINANCE COSTS

4.3 4.0 Group companies - -

1.3 3.1 On financial liability 3.1 1.3 

5.6 7.1 3.1 1.3 

24. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

After elimination of inter-group transactions

4.1 3.8 Armscor Corporation (0.4) 0.4 

(19.6) 2.2 Armscor Dockyard 2.2 (19.6)

2.4 2.8 Defence Matériel Disposal 2.8 2.4 

- - Subsidiaries 12.4 1.0 

(13.1) 8.8 17.0 (15.8)

The total comprehensive surplus of subsidiaries be-
fore the elimination of inter-group transactions is R8.2 
million. (2010: R2.7 million deficit)
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

25. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 
OPERATIONS

(13.1) 8.8 (Deficit)/surplus before taxation 17.0 (15.8)

Adjustments for:

11.8 9.1 Depreciation and amortisation 22.6 24.1 

0.1 0.1 Deficit/(surplus) on sale of assets 1.9 (0.5)

5.6 7.1 Finance costs 3.1 1.3 

(30.2) (27.9) Finance income (27.9) (30.3)

(9.4) (17.8) Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities (28.0) (13.2)

4.5 9.5 Movements in provisions 12.0 7.8 

Changes in working capital:

21.2 (24.5) Trade and other receivables (25.7) 12.5 

(0.3) (3.2) Inventories (3.6) 3.3 

10.5 56.1 Trade and other payables 55.1 11.1 

- 24.7 Deferred income 24.7 -

0.7 42.0 51.2 0.3 
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

26. TOTAL VALUE OF ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES

Government grants for operating expenditure 
are obtained to undertake acquisition actions. In 
accordance with Armscor’s mandate, acquisition was 
undertaken on behalf of the following organisations:

5 505.0 4 518.0 Special Defence Account 4 518.0 5 505.0 

1 308.2 1 441.0 General Defence Account 1 441.0 1 308.2 

108.0 101.3 SA Police Service 101.3 108.0 

106.9 66.3 Other 66.3 106.9 

7 028.1 6 126.6 6 126.6 7 028.1 

27. CONTRACTUAL LIABILITIES

344.6 275.4 
Projected outstanding commitments in respect of 
orders placed for expected deliveries 275.4 344.6 

Contractual commitments that may arise out of these 
contracts are covered in full by means of financial 
authorisations.  In other cases cover is obtained by 
means of back-to-back orders amounting to R228.6 
million (2010: R266.2 million)

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Authorised capital expenditure

Capital expenditure approved but not yet 
contracted

15.2 18.4 • Property, plant and equipment 28.5 29.5 

This committed expenditure relates to plant and 
equipment and will be financed by retained surpluses, 
existing cash resources, funds internally generated, 
etc.
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Guarantees

Bank guarantees have been issued for Armscor Defence Institute (Pty) Ltd in favour of a local contractor amounting to R0,1 million 

(2010: R1.3 million) and for Armscor to a foreign contractor amounting to USD 2.7 million (2010: USD 2.3 million) for an advance 

payment received.

Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of Armscor in favour of the South African Revenue Services: Customs and 

Excise and other creditors amounting to R8.1 million (2010: R8.9 million) with regard to local guarantees.

Other

At 31 March 2011 the Group had a contingent liability in respect of rehabilitation of the test range at Alkantpan.

In terms of the National Environmental Management Act (Act 107 of 1998), section 28(1), which came into effect on 29 January 

1999, Alkantpan must take reasonable steps to avoid, stop or minimise degradation of the environment. Certain options were 

investigated and, as no intention currently exist to cease activities at Alkantpan because Alkantpan is regarded as a strategic 

facility which is partially funded by the Department of Defence, Alkantpan has elected to manage the range in compliance with the 

Act and to continue with its day-to-day clearing actions.

A steering committee was formed between Alkantpan and the Department of Tourism, Environmental and Conservation, of which 

the first meeting took place on 5 September 2006. It was confirmed at this meeting that the committee is to guide and advise 

Alkantpan on the environmental way forward and to ensure legislative compliance to the Act.

Annual meetings are scheduled to monitor the process and provide feedback on the progress. The last meeting of the Alkantpan 

Environmental and Conservation Steering Committee was held on 4 June 2010. No new issues or risks were reported at the 

meeting held and it was reported that the current measures in place is sufficient to manage the range in compliance with the Act.

The cost incurred for rehabilitating the site during the period under review was an amount of R1 355 849.
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Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has entered into operational leases on certain motor vehicles and items of machinery and equipment. These leases 

have an average life of between one and ten years. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

0.3 0.5 Within one year 0.8 0.5 

0.4 0.2 After one year but not more than five years 0.7 0.7 

0.7 0.7 1.5 1.2

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, certain investments and 

accounts payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The principle market risks to which the Group is exposed through financial instruments are:

• foreign exchange rate generating translation and transaction gain and losses;

• interest rates;

• credit risk; and

• liquidity risk.

Interest rate management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short-term loan and cash and 

cash equivalents. In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash from the transfer payment to fund its 

operations, as well as to fund working capital and capital expenditure requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus funds 

are invested in a manner to achieve maximum returns while minimising risk.

Credit risk management

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high-quality credit standing.

Trade account receivables comprise a widespread customer base. The granting of credit is controlled by well-established 

criteria, which are reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.
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At year end, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk that has not been insured or 

adequately provided for. With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to 

credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The maximum credit exposure is the carrying amount of financial assets as disclosed in the balance sheet.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of call accounts. The 

Group maintains a sufficient level of liquidity to be able to meet all its obligations. The Corporation has no overdraft facility. No 

additional banking facilities or reserve borrowings are considered necessary.

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure 

that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business. The Group manages its capital 

structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes to economic conditions. No changes were made in the objective, 

policies or processes for the year ended 31 March 2011. The Group does not have external imposed capital requirements. The 

Group does not make use of capital from outside providers other than trade and other payables and have sufficient cash and 

cash equivalents to cover its net debt.
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CORPORATION GROUP

2010 2011 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

(139.7) (195.9) Trade and other payables (224.8) (169.7)

345.6 376.7 Cash and cash equivalents 374.8 341.1

Fair Value (Group)

CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE

2011 2010 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets

-  Trade receivables - 8.3 - 8.3 

Trade and other receivables 178.8 153.1 178.8 153.1 

Cash allocated to insurance reserve 23.2 25.0 23.2 25.0

Cash and cash equivalents 351.6 319.1 351.6 319.1 

Financial liability

Current liabilities (336.3) (257.4) (336.3) (257.4)

Other non-current financial liabilities

- Related party payables - (6.6) - (6.6)

The carrying amounts for cash, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and current liabilities approximate fair value due to 
the short-term nature of these instruments.

Related party payables and trade receivables measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is 10.6% (2010: 10.6%). The amounts are payable within 1 year.

Interest rate risk (sensitivity analysis)

The Group’s exposure to the risk in market interest rates relates primarily to interest received on call accounts and fixed 

deposits.
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Interest rate risk table

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates with all other variables held constant.

Increase/decrease in basis points Increase/decrease in surplus for the 

year and equity

2011 +/-50 +/- R2.2 milion

2010 +/- 50 +/- R1.3 milion

31. INFORMATION REQUIRED IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE

 MANAGEMENT ACT

An amount of R76 050 (2010: R48 657) relating to unrecoverable debts was written off during the year.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure of an immaterial amount of R51 693 (2010: R106 724) was incurred as a result of penalties 

levied on late deliveries. Of this an amount of R Nil (2010: R4 888) was recovered after year end.
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FEES BASIC
SALARY

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 8 9 10

R R R R R R

32. DIRECTORS’/EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS’ 
EMOLUMENTS

31 MARCH 2011

Directors’ emoluments

Executive Directors

JG Grobler - 997,992 233,786 107,004 211,385 1,550,167

JS Mkwanazi - 1,407,747 399,980 235,816 273,160 2,316,703

Subtotal - 2,405,739 633,766 342,820 484,545 3,866,870

31 MARCH 2010

JG Grobler - 896,457 207,296 103,404 187,995 1,395,152

JS Mkwanazi 1 - 1,280,625 260,237 138,436 233,999 1,913,297

HS Thomo 2 - 1,184,403 548,580 144,359 200,959 2,078,301

Subtotal - 3,361,485 1,016,113 386,199 622,953 5,386,750

Non-Executive Directors

31 MARCH 2011

EL Borole 12 186,151 - - - - 186,151

RP Meyer 12 163,650 - - - - 163,650

PS Molefe (Dr) 12 656,625 - - - - 656,625

LW Mosiako 12 132,682 - - - - 132,682

SA Msibi 12 168,454 - - - - 168,454

R Msiza 12 333,173 - - - - 333,173

V September 12 137,106 - - - - 137,106

Subtotal 1,777,841 - - - - 1,777,841
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FEES BASIC
SALARY

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 8 9 10

R R R R R R

31 MARCH 2010

EL Borole 150,642 - - - - 150,642

N Medupe 3 95,692 - - - - 95,692

RP Meyer 106,402 - - - - 106,402

PS Molefe (Dr) 232,380 - - - - 232,380

LW Mosiako 137,370 - - - - 137,370

SA Msibi 163,914 - - - - 163,914

R Msiza 119,674 - - - - 119,674

V September 132,946 - - - - 132,946

Subtotal 1,139,020 - - - - 1,139,020

TOTAL 31 MARCH 2011 1,777,841 2,405,739 633,766 342,820 484,545 5,644,711

TOTAL 31 MARCH 2010 1,139,020 3,361,485 1,016,113 386,199 622,953 6,525,770
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FEES BASIC
SALARY

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 8 9 10

R R R R R R

MANAGEMENT 
BOARD

EMOLUMENTS

Executive Members

31 MARCH 2011

NRM Borotho - 1,228,122 210,706 104,028 190,784 1,733,640

TT Goduka - 939,360 166,228 133,932 192,221 1,431,741

D Griesel - 845,436 270,790 321,436 207,676 1,645,338

MM Matibe - 719,895 164,247 238,605 172,789 1,295,536

SP Mbada - 873,648 130,102 169,452 125,520 1,298,722

KP Hanafey 5 - 905,832 259,836 133,005 193,784 1,492,457

Total - 5,512,293 1,201,909 1,100,458 1,082,774 8,897,434

31 MARCH 2010

NRM Borotho - 1,121,217 199,154 105,054 146,592 1,572,017

TT Goduka - 863,358 152,219 133,932 187,628 1,337,137

D Griesel 7 - 325,190 72,196 74,032 75,462 546,880

MM Matibe - 653,628 177,112 233,495 165,758 1,229,993

SP Mbada 6 - 472,815 18,638 98,847 68,381 658,681

IF Potgieter (Dr) 4 - 252,516 71,573 89,108 60,906 474 103

KP Hanafey 5 - 835,248 146,520 127,895 170,622 1,280,285

Total - 4,523,972 837,412 862,363 875,349 7,099,096

Non-Executive Audit Committee members, not members of Board of Directors

31 MARCH 2011

RD Marule 39,148 - - - - 39,148

N Medupe 3 70,491 - - - - 70,491

TOTAL 109,639 - - - - 109,639

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 (continued) 



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
134

Notes applicable to note 32

1. Appointed on 19 November 2009 as acting CEO.

2. Employment contract terminated with effect from 7 January 2010. In terms of an agreement reached at the CCMA on 5 

August 2010 the parties agreed to pay 15 months’ remuneration amounting to R2 703 610 in full and final settlement.

3. Appointed as Director from 1 May 2008 and resigned on 3 February 2010.

4. Appointed from 14 January 2008 as Management Board member (Acting General Manager: Human Resources) to 31 

August 2009.

5. Appointed from 1 April 2009 as Management Board member (Acting General Manager: Armscor Defence Institutes) and 

appointed as Director of Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd from 1 October 2009. 

6. Appointed from 1 September 2009 as Management Board member (General Manager: Human Resources).

7. Appointed from 23 November 2009 as Management Board member (Acting General Manager: Acquisition).

8. Other benefits include bonus (13th cheque), performance-related payments and leave capitalisations.

9. Allowances include sums paid by way of expense allowances, i.e. computer, motor, cell phone and acting allowance, as 

well as long-service awards.

10. Retirement benefits include contributions made to any pension fund; medical benefit fund; medical aid; unemployment 

and funeral scheme.

11. No emoluments are paid to Armscor Defence Institutes ex officio Directors: messrs JG Grobler, KP Hanafey (appointed 1 

October 2009), NRM Borotho (appointed 1 October 2009), SP Mbada (appointed 1 October 2009), JS Mkwanazi

 (appointed 7 January 2010) and HS Thomo (removed as director on 7 January 2010).

12. During the year the Armscor Board of Directors’ remuneration was reviewed. The review was done in terms of the State 

owned Enterprises (SOE) Remuneration Guidelines, supported by an independent market survey. The remuneration was 

therefore adjusted using the SOE guidelines as benchmark. The Minister of Defence and Military Veterans approved the 

increase on 20 September 2010, backdated to 1 April 2009. The correction was implemented during the 2011 financial 

year.

Share options

No share options exist and therefore no share option gains are included in the amount of emoluments received as Directors of 

the Corporation.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 (continued) 



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
135

Directors’ service contracts

Notice periods in respect of employment contracts of Executive Directors do not exceed one year. Non-Executive Directors are 

appointed for a three-year period and not bound by employment contracts.

Pensions

Pensions paid or receivable by Executive Directors are paid or received under defined contributory pension schemes.

33. RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited (“Armscor”) is a statutory body, wholly owed by the State, established in 

terms of the Armaments Development and Production Act (Act No 57 of 1968), and continues, its existence through the Arma-

ments Corpoation of South Africa Limited Act (Act No 51 of 2003).

To execute it’s mandate, Armsor received a Goverment grant of R594.8 million (2010: R528.9 million) from the State through the 

Department of Defence (DOD).

.

Investment in subsidiaries and loans from subsidiaries as detailed below are set out in note 9 of the financial statements.

2011 2010

SUBSIDIARIES Rm Rm

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd (loan from) (51.5) (56.2)

Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Ltd (loan to) 40.9 40.9 

Erasmusrand Eiendomme (Pty) Ltd (loan to) 136.0 136.0 

Oospark (Pty) Ltd (loan to) 1.1 1.1 

Sportrand (Pty) Ltd (loan to) 2.0 2.0 

R R

Institute for Maritime Technology (Pty) Ltd (loan from) (4.0) (4.0)

Unsecured non intrest bearing loans with no fixed repayment conditions. The shareholder has subordinated it’s right to claim 

repayment of its’s loan until such time as the assets of corporation, fairly valued, exceeds it’s liabilities.
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The following table provided the total amount of transactions, which have been enterest into by the group with related parties for 

relevant financial year.

Sales of goods
and services

to related parties

Purchases of
goods

from related parties

Amounts owed
by related parties

Amounts owed
to related parties

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Armscor Defence Institutes 20.7 25.6 53.8 43.2 0.2 0.3 - -

Department of Defence 810.5 666.5 56.2 42.1 15.6 11.2 98.8 59.3 

State-controlled entities

Major national public entities (Schedule 
2 and 3 public entities)

194.1 154.3 1 092.5 923.2 44.1 9.8 18.2 26.8 

National Government 36.5 32.1 - - 1.6 0.9 14.2 8.4 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 

unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related-par-

ty receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group has made provision for doubtful debts of R73.9 million 

(2010: R55.1 million) relating to amounts owed by related parties.

Included in the above figures are payments of R6.4 million (2010: R6.1 million) in respect of a service level agreement paid by 

Armscor Defence Institutes to Armscor, an amount of R43.3 million (2010: R38.9 million) paid by Armscor to Armscor Defence 

Institutes for subsidiary support and rent of R1.9 million (2010: R1.9 million) paid by Armscor Defence Institutes to Armscor and 

net interest paid to Armscor Defence Institutes by Armscor of R4.0 million (2010: R4.3 million).

In accordance with Armscor’s mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the Department of Defence. These transactions 

are set out in note 26 of the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 (continued) 



ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11
137

Armscor Defence Institutes had the following business with the Department of Defence, as stated below.

Sales of goods
and services

to related parties

Purchases of
goods

from related parties

Amounts owed
by related parties

Amounts owed
to related parties

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Special and General Defence Account 154.2 124.4 - - 12.4 11.5 14.6 6.6 

Included in the sale of goods to related parties above is a secondary transfer payment (in terms of a separate memorandum of 

agreement) from the the Department of Defence to the value of R53,4 milliion (2010: R Nil)

GROUP

Rm Rm

Reconciliation of transfer payments received from the Department of Defence

-   Primary transfer payment recognised in comprehensive income 594.8 528.9 

-   Secondary transfer payment received 53.4 -

-   Plus:  Funding received for post-retirement medical benefit of Dockyard employees 1.6 -

-   Less:  Funding received for intellectual 
    property management recognised as transfer payment (4.7) -

-   Plus:  Funding transferred to deferred income due to outstanding conditions 5.1 -

-   Less:  Deferred income recognised as transfer payment relating of utilisation of
    assets transferred to Dockyard     (3.3) -

Total transfer payments reflected at Department of Defence 646.9 528.9

Assets and stock transferred to the Dockyard with an effective date of 1 April 2010 has been fair valued at R42.7 million and

accounted for as deferred income, with the purpose of recognising it in line with the utilisation of the assets and stock. During 

the financial year, an amount of R17.5 million was recognised as income in accordance with the utilisation thereof, of which

R3.3 million relates to assets and R14.2 relates to stock.
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Directors

Directors’ interests in related parties: No interests in related parties have been declared by Armscor Directors.

One of Armscor’s Executive Directors and three Armscor Management Board members are ex officio Directors of the Armscor 

Defence Institutes’ Board of Directors at 31 March 2011. One Armscor Executive Director is also ex officio Director on the 

Boards of Erasmusrand Eiendomme (Pty) Limited, Sportrand (Pty) Limited and Oospark (Pty) Limited. 

Key management personnel

Information on the remuneration of all key management personnel is disclosed in note 32.

34. DISCLOSURE OF EXPENDITURE RELATING TO SOCCER WORLD CUP CLOTHING  
 AND TICKETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2010/2011 2009/2010

Quantity R’000 Quantity R’000

Tickets acquired 4 1.8 26 24.5

Distribution of tickets:

Clients/Stakeholders - - 16 16.1

Senior Management - - 2 1.7

Other employees 4 1.8 8 6.7

Travel cost - -

Purchase of other world cup apparel - - - -

Total world cup expenditure 4 1.8 26 24.5
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35. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION

35.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Company adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year 
and that are relevant to its operations:

2009 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 7 (AC 118) – Statement of Cash Flows

The amendment provides that expenditure may only be classified as “cash flows from investing activities” if it resulted in the
recognition of an asset on the statement of financial position.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2010.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2011 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

2009 Annual Improvements Projects: Amendments to IAS 17 (AC 105) – Leases
   
The amendment removes the guidance that leases of land, where title does not transfer, are operating leases. The amendment 
therefore requires that lease classification for land be assessed in the same manner as for all leases. The amendment is to be 
applied retrospectively, unless the information is not available. In these cases, existing leases will be reconsidered based on facts 
and circumstances existing at the date of adoption of the amendment. The lease asset and lease liability shall, in these cases, be 
recognised at their fair values on that date, with any difference in those fair values recognised in retained earnings.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2010.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2011 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

2009 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 18 (AC 111) – Revenue

The amendment provides additional guidance in the determination of whether an entity is acting as an agent or principal in a 
revenue transaction.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 June 2009.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2011 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

2009 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 38 (AC 129) – Intangible Assets

The amendment provides guidance on the measurement of intangible assets acquired in a business combination.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2009.

The Company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2011 financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.
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35.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet effective

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are 
mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2011 or later periods:

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments

This new standard is the first phase of a three-phase project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 
Phase one deals with the classification and measurement of financial assets. The following are changes from the classification and 
measurement rules of IAS 39:

• Financial assets will be categorised as those subsequently measured at fair value or at amortised cost.

• Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets where the business model for managing the assets is to hold 
the assets to collect contractual cash flows (where the contractual cash flows represent payments of principal and interest 
only). All other non current financial assets are to be subsequently measured at fair value.

• Under certain circumstances, financial assets may be designated as at fair value.

• For hybrid contracts, where the host contract is within the scope of IFRS 9, the whole instrument is classified in accordance 
with IFRS 9, without separation of the embedded derivative. In other circumstances, the provisions of IAS 39 still apply.

• Voluntary reclassification of financial assets is prohibited. Financial assets shall be reclassified if the entity changes its 
business model for the management of financial assets. In such circumstances, reclassification takes place prospectively 
from the beginning of the first reporting period after the date of change of the business model.

• Investments in equity instruments may be measured at fair value. When such an election is made, it may not subsequently be 
revoked, and gains or deficits accumulated in equity are not recycled to surplus or deficit on derecognition of the investment. 
The election may be made per individual investment.

• IFRS 9 does not allow for investments in equity instruments to be measured at cost under any circumstances.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2013.

The Company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2014 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

IAS 24 (AC 126) – Related Party Disclosures (revised)

The revisions to IAS 24 include a clarification of the definition of a related party, as well as providing a partial exemption for
related party disclosures between Government-related entities.

In terms of the definition, the revision clarifies that joint ventures or associates of the same third party are related parties of each 
other. To this end, an associate includes its subsidiaries and a joint venture includes its subsidiaries.

The partial exemption applies to related party transactions and outstanding balances with a Government which controls, jointly 
controls or significantly influences the reporting entity, as well as to transactions or outstanding balances with another entity which 
is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the same Government. In such circumstances, the entity is exempt from 
the disclosure requirements of paragraph 18 of IAS 24 and is required only to disclose:

• The name of the Government and nature of the relationship.

• Information about the nature and amount of each individually significant transaction and a quantitative or qualitative
 indication of the extent of collectively significant transactions. Such information is required in sufficient detail to allow users 

to understand the effect.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.
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The Company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2010 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IFRS 7 (AC 144) – Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Additional clarification is provided on the requirements for risk disclosures.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The Company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2010 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 1 (AC 101) – Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendment now requires that an entity must present, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes, an analysis 
by item.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The Company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

35.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 April 2011 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations.

2010 Annual Improvements Project: Amendments to IAS 21 (AC 112) – The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The amendment provides transitional provisions as a result of changes to IAS 27 (AC 132) – Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2010.

The Company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Improvements to IFRIC 14 (AC 447) - IFRS 19 (AC 116) – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The amendments apply in limited circumstances: when an entity is subject to minimum funding requirements and makes an early 
payment of contributions to cover those requirements. The amendments permit such an entity to treat the benefit of such an early 
payment as an asset.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2011.

The Company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2012 financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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ABBREVIATIONS

AACO Armscor Asset Control Office 
AAD Africa Aerospace and Defence
ABET Adult Basic Education and Training
ACG Armscor Consultative Group 
ACTDM Advanced Concept Technology Demonstration Model
ADAC Armscor Defence Asset Management Centre 
ADI Armscor Defence Institutes
AFB Air-Force Base
AIS Automatic Identification System
AMP Assisted Maintenance Plan
AMSL Airbus Military
ASATA Association of South African Travel Agents
AUS Autonomous Underwater Vehicle
BBBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment
BEE Black Economic Empowerment
BoD Board Of Directors 
CAA Civil Aviation Authority
CAASA Civil Aviation Association of Southern Africa
CAE Computer Aided Engineering 
CALMIS Computer-Aided Logistic Management Information System
CB Chemical Biological
CBW Chemical Biological Warfare
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CFO Chief Financial Officer
COTS Commercial Off the Shelf
CSH Combat Support Helicopter
CSI Corporate Social Investment
CSP Customised Sector Programme
DDSI Defence Decision Support Institute
DED Docking Essential Defect
DEFCOM RSA-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Defence Committee
DEPS Defence Equipment and Personnel Support
DER Defence Evaluation and Research Institute
DES Defence Export Support
DIP Defence Industrial Participation
DIS Defence Industry Support 
DMA Defence Materiel Acquisition 
DMD Defence Material Disposal 
DOD Department Of Defence 
DRDB Defence Research and Development Board
Dti Department Of Trade And Industry 
DTM Drakensberg Truck Manufacturers 
EDM Engineering Development Model
EEC Employment Equipment Committee
EEZ Exclusive Economic Zone
EW Electronic Warfare
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FEM Finite Element Method
FIATA Federation of Freight Forwarders Associations
FMV Förvarets Materielverket
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
GBADS Ground-Based Air Defence System
GDA General Defence Account
GFC German Frigate Consortium
HF High Frequency
HR Human Resources 
HVOC Harbour Venue Operational Centres
IATA International Airport Transport Association
ICT Information and Communication Technology
IMT Institute of Maritime Technology
IPCS Intra Platform Communication System
IPMS Intellectual Management Property Support
IR Infrared
IT Information Technology
KPI Key Performance Indicator
LEAD Lead-In Fighter Trainers
LMS Learner Management System
LWS Local Warning Segment
MAAC Military Attaché and Advisory Corps
MBES Multi – Beam Echo Sounder 
MDA Maritime Domain Awareness
MICCSA Military Information and Communication Symposium of South Africa 
MUP Maintenance Upkeep Plan
NATO North Atlantic Treaty Organization
NBC Nuclear, Biological and Chemical
NCACC National Conventional Arms Control Committee
NDD Naval Dockyard Durban 
NDS Naval Dockyard Simon’s Town 
NEHAWU National Education and Allied Workers Union
NGICV New Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle Product System
NIP National Industrial Participation
NPC National Non-Proliferation Council
NQF National Qualifications Framework
OAD Off-board Active Decoy
OEM Original Equipment Manufacture
OPCW Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons
OT&E Operational Test and Evaluation
PAA Public Audit Act
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PMP Pretoria Metal Pressing
RDI RSA Defence Related Industry
RPL Recognition of Prior Learning
SAAF South African Air Force
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SAAFF South African Association of Freight Forwarders 
SABS South African Bureau Of Standards
SACAA South African Civil Aviation Authority
SADC Southern African Development Countries
SADI South African Defence Industries
SADRI South African Defence-Related Industries
SAMHS South African Medical Health Services
SAN South African Navy
SANAS South African National Accreditation System
SANDF South African National Defence Force
SAPS South African Police Service
SARS South African Revenue Service
SDA Special Defence Account
SDP Strategic Defence Package 
SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
SHE Safety, Health and The Environment
SLA Service Level Agreement
SRCS Short Range Communication System
TDP Talent Development Program
UK United Kingdom
UL Unit Load
V/UHF Very/ Ultra High Frequency
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